Public Document Pack

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board

Date: 19 October 2023
Time: 10.00 a.m.
Venue: Committee Room 1 — Birkenhead Town Hall

Contact Officer:  Mike Jones, Principal Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 0151 691 8363
e-mail: michaeljonesl@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

Please note that public seating is limited, therefore members of the public
are encouraged to arrive in good time. Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire
and Merseyside are fully committed to equalities and our obligations under
The Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting,
please let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to facilitate
where possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.qov.uk

This meeting will be webcast at https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

No. |Item Lead
1 Welcome and Apologies for Absence Simon Banks
2 Declarations of Interest Simon Banks
3 Minutes of Previous Meeting held on 28 September | Simon Banks

2023. (Pages 1 - 6)

4 Action Log Simon Banks

Items for Oversight and Assurance

5 Board Assurance Reports

6 Place Quality and Performance Report including C- | Lorna Quigley
Difficile (Pages 7 - 12)

7 Place Finance Report incorporating Pooled Fund | Martin McDowell
Update (Pages 13 - 20)
8 Developing a Risk Management Framework for Wirral | Simon Banks

Place Partnership Arrangements (Pages 21 -60)



mailto:michaeljones1@wirral.gov.uk
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Programme Delivery Reports

9 Wirral Health and Care Plan Programme Delivery | Julian Eyre
Dashboard (Pages 61 -70)

10 Unscheduled Care Programme Delivery Update | Janelle Holmes
(Pages 71 - 90)

11 Primary Care Networks (Pages 91 - 100) lain Stewart

12 Mental Health Urgent Response Centre (Pages 101 - | Suzanne Edwards
208)

Supporting Group Chairs’ Reports

13 Finance and Investment Group (Pages 209 - 212) Martin McDowell

14 Primary Care Group (Pages 213 - 216) lain Stewart

15 Strategy and Transformation Group (Pages 217 - | Simon Banks
222)

Questions from the Public Simon Banks

Notice of questions to be given in writing or by email
by Monday, 16 October 2023 to the Council’s
Monitoring Officer (via the online form here: Public
Question Form) and to be dealt with in accordance
with Standing Order 10. Please telephone the
Committee Services Officer if you have not received
an acknowledgement of your question by the deadline
for submission

16 Work Programme (Pages 223 - 228) Mike Jones

17 Any Other Business Simon Banks

18 Future Meetings:
10am on 23 November 2023



https://forms.office.com/r/H1WT279VSq
https://forms.office.com/r/H1WT279VSq

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

10am on 21 December 2023
10am on 25 January 2023




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD

Thursday, 28 September 2023

29

PRESENT
Simon Banks

Councillor Julie McManus
Councillor Kieran Murphy

Councillor Simon
Mountney
Graham Hodkinson

Jayne Marshall

James Barclay
Hayley Kendall

David McGovern
Karen Howell

Paul Satoor
Martin McDowell

Dr David Jones
Lorna Quigley

Carol Johnson Eyre
Kirsteen Sheppard
Andreia Ramos Silva
Bev Morgan

Gareth Prytherch
Stephen Woods

Jo Chwalko

Matthew Neal
Mike Jones

Chair and Place Director
Wirral Council
Wirral Council

Wirral Council

Director of Adults, Health and Strategic
Commissioning, Wirral Council

Head of Community Care Market Commission,
Wirral Council

Wirral Improvement team

Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Wirral Community Health and Care NHS
Foundation Trust

CEO, Wirral Council

Associate Director of Finance & Performance,
NHS Cheshire and Merseyside

Primary Care

Associate Director Quality and Safety
Improvement, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
Citizen’s Advice Wirral

Healthwatch Wirral

Healthwatch Wirral

Chair, VCFSE Senior Leaders Network

CEO, Wirral Community and Voluntary Services
Head of Strategy, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
Wirral Community Health and Care NHS
Foundation Trust

Lead Principal Lawyer, Wirral Council
Secretary

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chair welcomed the members of the Board, officers and those watching
the webcast to the meeting.

The Chair amended the order of items so that the Joint Forward Plan item
(minute 43) was dealt with first. The minutes are in the order of the agenda.

Page 1



30

31

32

33

34

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from:

Dave Bradburn Director of Public Health, Wirral Council

lan Cubbin Primary Care (Community Pharmacy)

Janelle Holmes Wirral University Teaching Hospital

Karen Howell Wirral CHC

Justine Molyneux Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social Enterprise sector
(VCFSE)

Karen Prior Healthwatch

Simone White Director of Childrens Services, Wirral Council

Dr Stephen Wright Primary Care (Community Dentistry)
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chair asked for members to declare any interests in any items on the
agenda. No interests were declared.

MINUTES

Resolved — That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2023 be
approved as a correct record.

PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS

The Chair reported that no public questions, statements or petitions had been
received.

THE ROLE OF THE VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY, FAITH AND SOCIAL
ENTERPRISE (VCFSE) IN PLACE

The Chief Executive Officer of Koala North West and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social Enterprise Senior
Leaders Network presented this report which detailed how the Voluntary,
Community, Faith and Social Enterprise (VCFSE) contributed at Place to
achieve better outcomes for Wirral residents. It was noted that there were
over 300 registered charities and over 40 Community Interest Companies in
the sector.

Members discussed the involvement of particular bodies in different initiatives
and gave thanks for the work the sector undertook.

Resolved — That the information in the report and how the VCFSE can

continue to contribute to making Wirral a better Place and deliver
positive outcomes across the Wirral system be noted.

Page 2



35

36

UNSCHEDULED CARE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE

The Healthy Wirral Programme Manager presented the report of the Chief
Executive Officer of Wirral University Teaching Hospital which detailed
progress of the Unscheduled Care Improvement Programme across its 5
workstreams with the aim of improving urgent and emergency care services in
Wirral. The sentinel measure of the programme success was a sustained
reduction in the No Criteria to Reside (NCTR) numbers where the Wirral
system has been a national and regional outlier for a significant period. The
NCTR number had reduced from 171 in July to 104 in August 2023, directly
related to the establishment and ongoing development of the Transfer of Care
Hub - Discharge.

Resolved — That the update be noted.

UPDATE ON THE TRANSFER OF CARE HUB WORKSTREAM,
UNSCHEDULED CARE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

The Chief Operating Officer, Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust presented this report which provided an update on the
Unscheduled Care Improvement Programme work stream for the Transfer of
Care Hub. Wirral had been an outlier because of a high number of Non-
Criteria To Reside patients in acute beds so the Hub was developed and went
live in July 2023, bringing together two teams under a single leadership
structure to reduce the numbers and had been successful.

Members noted how other bodies including charities collaborated in the
design and further development of the Hub.

Resolved — That

1. the improvements to the statistically significant reduction in the
number of patients with no Criteria to reside (NCTR) since the
start of the transition into the Transfer of Care Hub from April
2023 be noted.

2. the future work of the Hub to embed new ways of working to
improve the timeliness of discharge for patients needing support
out of hospital on pathways 1-3 be endorsed.

3. the interface working between the Hub and the other Unscheduled

Care Improvement Programme workstreams and the requirement
to streamline services be noted.

Page 3



37

38

UPDATE ON CARE MARKET SUFFICIENCY WORKSTREAM, HEALTHY
WIRRAL PROGRAMME

The Assistant Director, Commissioning and Integrated Services introduced
the report of the Director of Care and Health which provided an update on the
Healthy Wirral work stream for Care Market Sufficiency. The purpose of the
workstream was to ensure sufficiency in community care market to respond to
local needs, to increase capacity and responsiveness of the care homes
market, support the Home First initiative and discharges.

Resolved — That

1. the improvements to the Care market capacity and flow for
domiciliary care be noted.

2. the work competed with care homes to improve safe transfers of
care from a hospital setting be noted.

3. the future work of the care market sufficiency group be endorsed.

2023/24 POOLED FUND FINANCE REPORT TO MONTH 04 JULY 2023

The Associate Director of Finance, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, presented
this report which provided a description of the arrangements that had been
put in place to support effective integrated commissioning. It set out the key
issues in respect of: (a) budget and variations to the expenditure areas for
agreement and inclusion within the 2023/24 shared “pooled” fund; and (b) risk
and gain share arrangements. In 2023/24 Wirral Health and Care partners
had chosen to currently jointly pool £267.88m to enable a range of responsive
services for vulnerable Wirral residents as well as a significant component of
Better Care Funding to protect frontline social care delivery. This paper
provided an update to the pooled fund budget, a summary forecast position as
at Month 4 to 31st March 2024 and the financial risk exposure of each partner
organisation. The report also provided an update on the preparation of the
framework partnership agreement under Section 75 of the National Health
Services Act 2006 relating to the commissioning of health and social care
services.

Resolved — That

1. it be noted that the forecast position for the Pool at Month 4 is
currently a balanced planned budget position.
2. it be noted that the shared risk arrangements are limited to the

Better Care Fund only, which is reporting a planned balanced
budget position.

3. it be noted that the 2023/24 Section 75 agreement has been sent
for the final legal review from both parties before organisational
sign off.

Page 4



39

40

41

42

KEY ISSUES RELATING TO QUALITY AND SAFETY: (REPORT FROM
THE QUALITY AND SAFETY GROUP)

The Associate Director of Quality and Safety Improvement for NHS Cheshire
and Merseyside presented this report which identified key issues relating to
Quality and Safety through the Wirral Quality and Performance Group and
other relevant sources. Issues included notable numbers of C-Difficile cases,
work with care homes regarding hydration and increased cases of influenza
and covid.

Resolved — That the areas of concern contained within the report, and
the actions that are being taken, be noted.

STRATEGY AND TRANSFORMATION GROUP HIGHLIGHT REPORT

The Place Director (Wirral), NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, presented this
report which was a highlight report from the Strategy and Transformation
Group. The work to develop the Urgent Health Response Centre was noted
and the work with the Police on the ‘Right Care Right Person’ approach to
dealing with incidents.

Resolved — That the work of the Strategy and Transformation Group be
noted and updates continue to be received as a standing agenda item.

PRIMARY CARE GROUP HIGHLIGHT REPORT

The Place Director (Wirral), NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, presented this
report which was a highlight report from the Primary Care Group, including
detail on meetings held and topics discussed.

Resolved — That the work of the Primary Care Group be noted and
updates continue to be received as a standing agenda item.

HEALTHWATCH WIRRAL UPDATE SEPT 2023

The Business Development & Volunteer Manager and the Research Officer
for Healthwatch Wirral presented this report which shared the emerging
trends and themes gathered from public views and personal experiences
relating to health and care. It was noted that future reports would be given to
the Health and Wellbeing Board as that was the more appropriate body to
receive them. Research, developed training and common issues were noted.
Common reasons for comments included communication with professionals
and access to appointments.

Resolved — That the report be noted.

Page 5



43

44

CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE JOINT FORWARD PLAN 2023-28

The Associate Director of Strategy and Collaboration, NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside presented this report which provided an update on the contents of
the Cheshire and Merseyside Joint Forward Plan (2023-28) outlining the
content and priorities for 2023/24. The report updated the Board in relation to
the proposed approach to updating the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and
Care Partnership Strategy and republishing the Joint Forward Plan (JFP) by
March 2024. This report also provided an update on the proposed monitoring
of the JFP and associated Annual Delivery Plan.

It was noted that the JFP had been published in July and that there were
plans to align the Health and Care Partnership Strategy with All Together
Fairer Strategy and develop a delivery plan.

Resolved — That

1. the Cheshire and Merseyside Joint Forward Plan (2023-28) and the
plans to monitor progress be noted.

2. feedback be noted in relation to the proposals for:

e Cheshire and Merseyside Interim Draft Health and Care
Partnership Strategy to be updated to align with the All Together
Fairer recommendations and plans even more closely

e For the Cheshire and Merseyside Joint Forward Plan to be
produced as a system delivery plan focussing on the updated
contents of the Health and Care Partnership Strategy with the
additional mandated NHS content produced as an appendix to this
Joint Forward Plan

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP WORK PROGRAMME

The Lead Principal Lawyer introduced the report which presented the annual
work programme of items for consideration by the Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board.

Amendments to the Programme were proposed.

Resolved - That the work programme be noted, subject to C Difficile
being incorporated into the Place Quality and Safety report, and the
addition of areport on the Right Care Right Person with Merseyside
Police.

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 6

NHS!

Cheshire and Merseyside
WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
THURSDAY 19 OCTOBER 2023

REPORT TITLE: PLACE QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE REPORT
REPORT OF: ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF QUALITY AND SAFETY

REPORT SUMMARY

This report is intended to provide the Place Based Partnership Board oversight of Key
Performance metrics relating to Wirral Place.

Work is being undertaken to ensure that all key performance metrics developed are
discussed through the associated groups/committees to assure the board that there has
been scrutiny and oversight.

RECOMMENDATION/S
The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is recommended to:

Note the performance in relation to Health Care Associated Infections and the actions being
undertaken.

Page 7



1.0

2.0

2.1

3.0

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The impact that Health Care Associated Infections on the population both from a
personal and organisational level leads to a prolonged inpatient stay, long term
disability and increased resistance to microorganisms and antimicrobials, additional
financial costs and excess deaths.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
No others at this stage.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

To reduce duplication and ensuring effectiveness of reporting Business Intelligence
teams are working in partnership to ensure that key performance metrics are
meaningful and reflect both national and local priorities.

It is acknowledged this report will continue to evolve as the metrics are defined and
the process developed. The Wirral based reporting pack for July 2023 has identified
Key lines of Enquiry in the following areas:

3.1 Health Care Associated Infections (HCAISs)

Healthcare-associated infections (HCAIs) can develop either as a direct result of
healthcare interventions such as medical or surgical treatment, or from being in
contact with a health or care setting.

The term HCAI covers a wide range of infections. The most well-known include
those caused by methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) and
Clostridium difficile (C. difficile).

3.1.2 Clostridium difficile (C-Difficile)

The rate of C-Difficile within Wirral Health Care settings remains high. Based on
several factors including population last year’s infection rate. A system tolerance has
been set 2023/23. Whilst September’s figures have improved from 143% over the
tolerance in July to 140% in September, this remains concerning.

A contributory factor of C-Difficile is antibiotic prescribing. Wirral has a history of high
antibiotic prescribing and has previously been ranked nationally as the highest
prescribing area. June’s data demonstrates improvement from this position to Wirral
being ranked as 86/106 for total prescribing in Primary Care. Several measures are
in place to continue this improvement including.

e Implementation of the key findings from the system C-Difficile review

e Key specialist roles within the system to improve prescribing including- AMR

pharmacist and GP.

Page 8



e Working with partners to gain Insight and understanding to the population
demand and prescribing habits of professionals.
e Alignment of prescribing guidelines across Cheshire and Merseyside to
ensure consistency.
These key metrics and associated actions are being managed through the Wirral
Place Quality and Performance Group.

3.2.1 E coli Infection

Work has been undertaken with care homes to reduce the amount of community
urinary tract infections (UTI) which lead to Blood stream infections. This has included
delivery of training in UTI improvement and hydration to care homes and primary
care nursing teams with support from the Health Protection Service Team to educate
and empower patients and carers to improve hydration on older residents. Despite
the work that has been undertaken the E coli rates for Wirral have deteriorated from
140% above the annual tolerance in July to 144% September. This ranks Wirral
97/106 for E. coli Infections.

A review of the effectiveness of the current improvement plan is required, and
oversight is managed through the Quality and Performance Group.

3.2.2 Influenza

Quarter 2’'s data has demonstrated an increase in the seasonal influenza vaccination
uptake for the over 65years cohort to 81% against a national target of 85%. Eligible
cohorts have been targeted across health and care settings to increase uptake.

An anti-viral pathway has been developed and approved to support community
settings should an outbreak of influenza occur.

The Health Protection Board in October (chaired by the Director of Public Health)
has a focus on Immunisations and Vaccinations.

3.2.3 Cervical Screening

The latest data available is Quarter 4 2022- 2023. This indicates an increase in
cervical screening coverage for females aged 25-64yrs attending within the target
period to 71%.

3.2.4. Talking Therapies

Access to talking therapies (previously known as improving access to psychological
therapies- IAPT) is an ambition set out in the long-term plan. Significant progress
has been made in June with access rate from 69% to 77% against a target of 100%.
This has been achieved by increasing awareness of talking therapies through a
population- based campaign, simplifying the referral process including self-referrals
and awareness sessions with professionals.

Recruitment for trainee counsellors has been successful by the provider and it is
expected that this will support the further demand required to meet the target in
addition to a national talking therapies campaign due to launch in Quarter 4.

Progress is monitored through the Transformation and Partnership Group.

Page 9



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

In addition to the NHS Constitutional Standards relating to planned care and waiting
times data.

Partners are working and developing local metrics which include:

Urgent and Emergency- reporting on care market sufficiency, virtual wards
Primary/Community Care- reporting on access to primary care services including tele
dermatology.

Frailty and Dementia- which will include diagnosis rates, admissions to Hospital and
out of area placements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None identified.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal implications have been considered within this report relating to NHS
constitutional standards which have been referenced within the report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS
None identified.
RELEVANT RISKS

Underperformance against trajectory are being scrutinised through improvement
plans and oversight by relevant group/board.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Partnership working in the development of the metrics continues to be undertaken.
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision, or activity.
Any service changes will be subject to an Equality Impact Assessment,

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

There are no environmental or climate implications identified that would result from
the proposal.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

There are no community wealth implications identified within this paper.

Page 10



REPORT AUTHOR: Name Lorna Quigley
Associate Director of Quality and Safety

telephone: (0151) 651 0011
email: lorna.quigley@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

NHS!

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
Thursday, 19 October 2023

REPORT TITLE: 2023/24 PLACE FINANCE REPORT
INCORPORATING POOLED UPDATE TO MONTH
05, AUGUST 2023

REPORT OF: ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, CHESHIRE
& MERSEYSIDE INTEGRATED CARE BOARD -
WIRRAL PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY

This paper provides a high-level update of the Month 5 financial position for the
Wirral Place Partnership. Due to the timing of published reports, the financial position
of Wirral MBC is taken as at the end of Quarter 1 of the 23/24 Financial Year.

The paper also provides an update in relation to arrangements that have been put in
place to support effective integrated commissioning. It sets out the key issues in
respect of:

a. budget and variations to the expenditure areas for agreement and
inclusion within the 2023/24 shared “pooled” fund; and

b. risk and gain share arrangements.

In 2023/24 Wirral Health and Care partners have chosen to jointly pool £267.88m to
enable a range of responsive services for vulnerable Wirral residents as well as a
significant component of Better Care Funding to protect frontline social care delivery.

This paper provides an update to the pooled fund budget, a summary forecast
position as at Month 5 to 31% March 2024 and the financial risk exposure of each
partner organisation.

The report also provides an update on the preparation of the framework partnership
agreement under Section 75 of the National Health Services Act 2006 relating to the
commissioning of health and social care services, which will be subject to approval
and final sign off by Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board (ICB) Health
and Wellbeing Board and Local Authority Adult Services Committee.

Page 13



RECOMMENDATION/S
The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is recommended to:

1) Note the Wirral care and health system year-to-date variance from plan of
£8.3m at Month 5 and that the forecast out-turn deficit is currently in line with
plan of £25.6m although all system partners have acknowledged significant
risks to this position.

2) Note the forecast position for the Pooled fund at Month 5 is currently a
balanced planned budget position.

3)

4) Note that the shared risk arrangements are limited to the Better Care Fund
only, which is reporting a balanced budget position.

5) Note that the 2023/24 Section 75 agreement has been sent for legal review

and is scheduled for sign off from both parties at upcoming committee
meetings in line with their respective governance requirements.

Page 14



1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

Wirral Health and Care partners have the responsibility to maintain pooled
funds and report on the expenditure under the framework partnership
agreement under Section 75 of the National Health Services Act 2006 (“the
Section 75 agreement) relating to the commissioning of health and social care
services.

To support Wirral Place effective integrated commissioning, approval of the
2023/24 Wirral pooled fund budget was given at the Joint Health and Care
Committee on 4th July 2023.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
No other options have been considered as necessary.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Wirral health and care system has developed an approach to ensure that
all partners take account of decisions from a wider system perspective, having
undertaken several planning workshops during Q3/Q4 of the last financial
year to determine the approach to the 2023/24 Financial year. Following
submission and approval of relevant plans, the Wirral system financial plan
was set at £25.6m deficit for the year, with the acknowledgement that system
partners faced several key challenges ahead of the financial year.

Within the system plan, the pooled fund plays a key part to support better
integrated commissioning and service delivery to enable a focus on the best
outcomes for the Wirral population.

The following key features of integration have been outlined as essential to
success:

Pooling resources, intelligence, and planning capacity.
Delivering the Right Care in the Right Place at the Right Time.
Managing demand and reducing the cost of care.

Clear accountability and governance arrangements.

Resilience and flexibility to emerging issues in service delivery.

The pooled fund arrangements are already well established in Wirral and
enable a range of responsive services to vulnerable Wirral residents as well
as a significant component of Better Care Fund (“BCF”) funding to protect
front line social care delivery.

Continuing to expand the scope and scale of pooled arrangements for

2023/24 would be an important statement, that Wirral has a strong foundation
for integrated commissioning at place level.

Page 15



3.6

4.0

4.1

Establishment and Authorisation of the Section 75 Agreement.

The Section 75 agreement is updated to set out the detail of budget areas that
are being pooled in 2023/24 and the associated governance. There is a
mandatory legal requirement to have a Section 75 agreement in place
between the Council and the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board
(CMICB) in place to draw down the elements of the pool relating to the BCF.
In this context a section 75 agreement is being progressed, following legal
review from both parties and is scheduled for sign off from both parties at
upcoming committee meetings in line with their respective governance
requirements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND IMPLICATIONS

The Wirral system financial performance is shown in the Table 1 below, and
notes that the system had an actual reported deficit of £23.0m compared with
a planned year-to-date deficit of £14.7m, which represents an adverse
variance of £8.3m.

The reported out-turn position remains in line with the planned deficit of
£25.6m although all partners acknowledged significant risks to the delivery of
this position. The Wirral MBC financial position at Q1 is shown below and a
further update to report the Q2 position is expected at the Policy and
Resources Committee in early November.

Month 5 Financial Performance £m

YTD YTD YTD Forecast | Forecast | Forecast

Plan Actual | variance Plan outturn | variance
Organisation name £m £m £m £m £m £m
Wirral Place (part of C&M ICB)

(3.0)] (10.7) (7.7) (7.2) (7.2) 0.0

Wirral Community Health & Care NHS Foundation Trust 03 03 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0
Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (11.8) (11.3) 06 (18.6) (18.6) 0.0
Cheshire & Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust * (0.2) (1.3) (1.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Wirral Health System (14.7) (23.0) (8.3) (25.6) (25.6) 0.0
Wirral Borough Council ** 0.0 0.0 (3.6) 3.6
Total Wirral System (14.7) (23.0) (8.3) (25.6) (29.2) 3.6

* note CWP full position included as opposed to Wirral-only element
** note LA Q1 reported only

Page 16




2023/24 Pooled Fund for Wirral Place

As at Month 4 the Pooled Fund budget for 2023/4 of £267.88m is set out in
Table 2 below.

Table 2
2023/ 24 Wirral | \vee | Total
Summary Place
Budget £m £m
£m

ICB Wirral Place Pool £158.05m 158.05 158.05
Health & Care £48.67m 48.67 48.67
Children and Young People £1.70m 1.7 1.7
Better Care Fund £59.46m 33.5| 25.96 59.46
Grand Total £267.88m 19154 | 76.33| 267.88

A full breakdown of the 2023/24 Pooled Fund budget and finance position is
illustrated in Appendix 1 of this report.

As at month 5 the reported forecast out-turn position of the pooled fund is a
small underspend of £0.1m, and a summary position is provided below in
Table 3 below,

4.5

4.6

Table 3
Summar 2023 /24 Forecast Variance
y Budget Outturn

ICB Wirral Place Pool £158.05m £158.05m £0.00m
Health & Care £48.67m £48.57m -£0.10m
Children and Young People £1.70m £1.70m £0.00m
Better Care Fund £59.46m £59.46m £0.00m
Grand Total £267.88m £267.78m -£0.10m

This year’s national discharge fund for Wirral is £5.15m. The allocation
received was split £2.46m ICB - Wirral Place and £2.69m Local Authority.

Table 4 overleaf shows the forecast reported position on the discharge

allocation.

Page 17



4.7

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Table 4

. . 2023 /24 .
Discharge Funding Budget Forecast Variance
CMICB Wirral Place Pool £2.46m £2.46m £0.00m
Adult Social Care £2.69m £2.69m £0.00m
Grand Total £5.15m £5.15m £0.00m

NB pre pay award notification

The Home First scheme has been prioritised for funding from the CMICB
allocation to Wirral Place.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

A section 75 agreement for the pooled fund is the contractual agreement
which sets out the terms of the arrangements between the Council and the
ICB. Such an agreement is required to draw down resources under the BCF
and to enable the pooling of wider funding elements which are in the scope of
the arrangement. Each year, the Council’s legal services are fully engaged in
the development of the Section 75 agreement.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

Currently there is no significant impact on resources, ICT, staffing, and assets
because of the integration agenda. As greater integration occurs there are
likely to be efficiency savings through economies of scale with appropriate
sharing of posts and assets etc.

RELEVANT RISKS

The 2022/23 reporting arrangements will continue into 2023/4, and as such
there will be three main financial risks identified to impact the pooled budget: -

. R1 — Local Authority budget overspend.
. R2 — ICB / Wirral Place budget overspend; and
. R3 — Efficiency savings are not achieved.

It is proposed to retain the more focused risk-sharing arrangements. This
approach removed the generic approach to risk share arrangements by
targeting the 50% risk share arrangement onto the Better Care Fund, with
host organisations retaining full financial risk on other areas pooled.

The Better Care Fund shows a small underspend forecast position at month 5,
so there is no risk share impact to report.

It must be noted that there are some substantial financial risks emerging in the
first part of the year for Wirral place pooled commissioned services (All Age
Continuing Healthcare and Prescribing) and these risks are being evaluated
along with the identification of potential mitigation strategies where possible.

Page 18



8.0 ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION

8.1 There is no requirement for engagement or consultation within this report.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 No implications have been identified because it is not anticipated that the
integration of commissioning functions will have an impact on equality. Rather,
potential impacts on equality will come from commissioning decisions for
which EIAs will need to be produced at the development stage.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environment and climate implications directly arising from this
report.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no community wealth implications directly arising from this report.
REPORT AUTHOR: Louise Morris

Head of Finance, Wirral Place
Louise.Morris@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Sara Morris
Senior Finance Business Partner
saramorris@wirral.qov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Section 75 Pooled Fund Budget 2023/24

The PDF file may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users of
assistive technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact
Louise.Morris@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk if you would like this document in an
accessible format.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Draft Section 75 agreement 2023/24
JHCCEG Finance Report M5

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 19


mailto:Louise.Morris@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk
mailto:saramorris@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:Louise.Morris@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

APPENDIX 1 - Section 75 Pooled Budget 2023/24 — Wirral Place — Finance

position M5

A ICB - Wirral Place

2022 / 23

Budget

2022/ 23
Outturn

Adjustments
to Pool
(R/NR)

2023/ 24
Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Variance

Commissioned out of Hospital

Prescribing

Primary Care
QIPP
Total

B Health & Care

£66.7m

£73.5m

£8.3m
-£6.1m
£142.5m

2022 / 23

Budget

£75.5m

£76.2m

£7.6m
-£6.1m
£153.4m

2022 /23
Outturn

£5.9m

£0.8m

-£0.2m
-£1.7m
£4.8m

Adjustments
to Pool
(R/NR)

£81.3m

£77.1m

£7.4m
-£7.8m
£158.0m

2023/ 24
Budget

£81.3m

£77.1m

£7.4m
-£7.8m
£158.0m

Forecast
Outturn

£0.0m

£0.0m

£0.0m
£0.0m
£0.0m

Variance

Public Health

Learning Disabilities
Mental Health

Children with Disabilities
Client Charges
Joint-Funded Income
Total

C Children and Young People

£0.2m
£44.1m
£14.4m
£1.1m
-£3.6m
-£7.9m
£48.4m

2022/ 23

£0.2m
£44.6m
£13.9m
£0.8m
-£3.4m
-£9.5m
£46.6m

2022 / 23
Outturn

-£0.16m
£0.6m
£1.1m
£0.3m
£0.0m
£0.3m

£2.07m

Adjustments
to Pool

£0.0m
£45.2m
£15.0m
£1.1m
-£3.4m
-£9.2m
£48.7Tm

2023/ 24
Budget

£0.0m
£45.1m
£15.4m
£0.9m
-£3.6m
-£9.2m
£48.6m

Forecast
Outturn

£0.0m
-£0.1m
£0.4m
-£0.2m
-£0.2m
£0.0m
-£0.1m

Variance

Care Packages
Total

D Better Care Fund

£1.7m
£1.7m

2022 / 23
Budget

£1.7m
£1.7m

2022 / 23
Outturn

(R/NR)
£0.0m
£0.0m

Adjustments
to Pool

£1.7m
£1.7m

2023/ 24
Budget

£1.7m
£1.7m

Forecast
Outturn

£0.0m
£0.0m

Variance

Integrated Services

Adult Social Care Services
CCG Services

DFG

Other

Total

£27.0m
£24.0m
£2.0m
£4.7m
£0.6m
£58.3m

£26.9m
£24.0m
£2.0m
£4.Tm
£0.6m
£58.2m

Page 20

(R/NR)
£1.1m
-£0.0m
£0.1m
£0.0m
£0.0m
£1.3m

£28.1m
£23.9m
£2.1m
£4.7Tm
£0.6m
£59.5m

£27.9m
£24.1m
£2.1m
£4.7Tm
£0.6m
£59.5m

-£0.2m
£0.2m
£0.0m
£0.0m
£0.0m
£0.0m



Agenda Iltem 8

Developing a Risk Management Framework for Wirral Place
Partnership Arrangements

Simon Banks, Place Director (Wirral), NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
Authors Dawn Boyer, Head of Corporate Affairs and Governance, NHS
Cheshire and Merseyside

Title

Report for Wirral Place Based Partnership Board

Date of Meeting 19" October 2023

Report Purpose and Recommendations

The purpose of this report is to provide the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board with details
on how NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s Risk Management Framework will be applied in
Wirral. The paper sets out the key components of the Risk Management Framework and
includes a draft Place Delivery Assurance Framework.

The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is asked to:

e Note the work to apply NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s Risk Management
Framework to the Wirral Place Partnership governance arrangements.

¢ Note that the application of the Risk Management Framework will be undertaken
through engagement with partner organisations in Wirral.

e Endorse the work to develop a Place Delivery Assurance Framework and risk
registers for the supporting groups to the Board.

e Request an update on the development of the Risk Management Framework and an
updated PDAF at the December meeting of the Board.

Key Risks

This report sets out the Risk Management Framework and a Place Delivery Assurance
Framework that is designed to support partners in managing key strategic risks. The key
strategic risks identified so far in the draft Place Delivery Assurance Framework pertain to:

Service Delivery

Children and Young People
Collaboration

Workforce

Finance

Community Wealth Building

The documentation defines the initial, current and target risk score for each of these
strategic risks.

Governance journey

Date ‘ Forum Report Title Purpose/Decision
. Approved Risk
23" February 2023 NHS Cheshire and Risk Management Management Strategy

Merseyside Board and Framework

!age !!




11

Background

111

In February 2023 NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s Board approved the organisation’s
Risk Management Strategy. The Strategy reflects current best practice, considering
a range of governance standards including those set out in:

e UK Corporate Code of Governance (2018)
e BS31100: The British Code of Practice for Risk Management & Guidance
e NHS Controls Assurance, Risk Register Working Group 2002

1.1.2

The Strategy seeks to create an effective risk management framework to ensure that
high quality services are delivered within available resources and to provide a safe
working environment for staff. The framework that the Strategy creates
incorporates Place Based Partnership Boards and their supporting groups as these
are part of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s governance arrangements in each of
the nine Places. This paper sets out how the Risk Management Framework will be
applied to the Wirral Place Based Partnership governance arrangements.

1.1.3

Appendix 1 defines the meaning of the terminology used in this paper.

1.2

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s Risk Management Framework

1.2.1

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside (NHS C&M) is committed to the provision of high-
quality commissioning, partnership and collaboration, and NHS system-wide
working and oversight in the delivery of its objectives. This will be supported
through the development and implementation of a robust system of internal control
including processes for risk management and assurance that are understood and
embedded at all levels of the organisation.

1.2.2

The establishment of effective risk management systems is vital to the successful
management of the organisation and local NHS system and is recognised as being
fundamental in ensuring good governance. NHS C&M’s management needs to
receive robust and independent assurances on the soundness and effectiveness of
the systems and processes in place for meeting its objectives and delivering
appropriate outcomes. NHS C&M’s leadership therefore has overall responsibility
for ensuring they have assurance that the process of risk identification, evaluation
and control are effective.

123

The Risk Management Framework supports the delivery of NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside’s strategic objectives, which are:

Improve population health and healthcare.

Tackling health inequality, improving outcomes and access to services.
Enhancing quality, productivity and value for money.

Helping the NHS to support broader social and economic development.

1.2.4

The aims of managing risk effectively are to:

Ensure the management of risk is consistent with and supports the
achievement of NHS C&M strategic objectives.

Provide high quality services to patients.

Initiate action to prevent or reduce the adverse effects of risk.

Minimise the financial and other negative consequences of losses and

claims, for example, pogs publicly, loss of reputation.
raytc 24




e Ensure the risks associated with new developments and activities remain
within agreed tolerances determined by the relevant Executive Director in
accordance with the Board’s risk appetite.

e Meet statutory and legal obligations and improve compliance with the
ongoing requirements of best practice governance standards.

e Protect visitors and staff from risks as far as is reasonably practicable.

1.2.5

Appendix 2 sets outs the key components of the risk management framework. This
paper is concerned about the application of the framework to the Place Based
Partnership Board and supporting groups.

1.3

Applying the Risk Management Framework to Wirral Place Partnership
Arrangements

13.1

It is often at the interface between organisations that the highest risks exist and clarity
about responsibilities and accountabilities for those risks can sometimes be difficult.
Partnership risks in each Place need to be jointly owned by NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside and its partners. They need to be influenced by the strategic objectives
of Place as well as by those of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside. An approach to
partnership risks needs to be developed in conjunction with partners in each Place.

1.3.2

Place risks are those that threaten the delivery of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
strategic objectives or statutory functions and duties in each of the nine Places.
These are assessed with reference to the impact and likelihood for the Place. The
same or similar risks may exist in more than one Place but would be assessed
independently in the context of the environment and situation in each Place. Risks
will be aggregated across the nine Places and assessed with reference to the
impact and likelihood for NHS Cheshire and Merseyside as a whole for the
purposes of inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register.

1.3.3

As set out in Appendix 2, the focus for Place is to develop a Place Delivery
Assurance Framework (PDAF) and a Place Risk Register. The PDAF will focus on
the principal risks to the delivery of Place strategic objectives. A Place Risk
Register will focus on the delivery of functions delegated to Place, whether specific
to a Place or across multiple Places. The Place Risk Register will be influenced by
the risk registers of the five supporting groups, which are:

Finance and Investment
Primary Care

Quality and Performance
Strategy and Transformation
Workforce

1.34

Appendix 3 sets out the risk assessment matrix that is being used by NHS Cheshire
and Merseyside across the whole organisation and the nine Places. This sets out
the criteria used to define and measure impact and likelihood, resulting in the risk
rating. This aims to ensure a consistent approach to the rating of risks. This matrix is
used for the NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Board Assurance Framework and Risk
Registers and is also applied to the PDAF, Place Risk Register and the risk registers
of the four supporting groups.

1.4

Developing the Place Delivery Assurance Framework (PDAF)

141

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside have engaged with governance leads from partner
organisations in Wirral to develop a draft PDAF, which can be found in Appendix 4.
The draft PDAF identifies strategic fi3&g)ig tA8following areas:




e Service Delivery

e Children and Young People
e Collaboration

e Workforce

e Finance

e Community Wealth Building

The documentation defines the initial, current and target risk score for each of these
strategic risks.

1.4.2 | The PDAF sets out the controls, the systems and processes, that are currently in
place to prevent a risk from occurring, or to reduce the potential consequences and
likelihood. The PDAF also provides evidence on the assurances that controls are in
place, operating effectively and objectives are being achieved.

1.4.3 | The PDAF provides an assurance framework for the Wirral Place Based Partnership
Board. The PDAF creates a structured means of identifying, mapping and
assessing sources of assurance in relation to the strength and effectiveness of the
controls that have been put in place to mitigate the risks to Place objectives. By
receiving and reviewing the actual assurances and using findings, the adequacy of
controls can be confirmed or modified.

1.4.4 | Governance leads from partnership organisations reviewed the draft PDAF and risk
summaries on 7" September 2023. Governance leads from partner organisations
will continue to be engaged to develop the PDAF further, reviewing the PDAF
against their own organisational strategic risk management arrangements. The
PDAF is a “living” document that will be reviewed by the Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board every quarter.

2 Implications

2.1 | Risk Mitigation and Assurance

The implementation of the Risk Management Framework will support the management
of the key strategic risks for NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s partnership arrangements
in Wirral.

2.2 | Financial
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report, although the ability of
the Wirral system to achieve financial balance is a key strategic risk.

2.3 | Legal and regulatory
There are no direct legal or regulatory implications arising from this report, although the
Risk Management Framework does follow the principles of good governance.

2.4 | Resources

There are no direct implications for other resources — staffing, IT and assets — arising
from this report. The Risk Management Framework will be managed within existing
NHS Cheshire and Merseyside partnership arrangements in Wirral. The PDAF does
also identify workforce capacity, capability and availability as a key area of strategic
risk.

2.5 | Engagement and consultation

Engagement with system partners has taken place in the development of the PDAF.
This will continue as the Risk Manalgférgeét E@mework is fully implemented in Wirral.




2.6 | Equality

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside and statutory partners have a legal
requirement to make sure their policies, and the way they carry out their work, do not
discriminate against anyone. No Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required for this
report.

2.7 | Environment and Climate

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside and partners in Wirral are committed
to carrying out their work in an environmentally responsible manner. There are no
environment and climate implications arising from this report.

2.8 | Community Wealth Building

Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration.
These partnerships are led by Wirral Council with external partners and stakeholders,
including residents. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside and partner organisations will
support the Council in community wealth building by ensuring health and care
organisations in the borough have a focus on reducing health inequalities and
contribute to the development of a resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral. The
report concerns the establishment of effective risk management systems which, while
not directly impacting on health inequalities, will create a framework for the
consideration, identification, and mitigation of risks to health equality, and provide
assurance regarding the effectiveness of mitigation strategies.

3 Conclusion

3.1 | The next steps in developing NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s Risk Management
Framework in Wirral are to:

e Develop the PDAF and establish quarterly reporting to the Wirral Place
Based Partnership Board.

e Develop the risk registers for the supporting groups to the Wirral Place
Based Partnership Board.

3.2 | This work will be undertaken through engagement with the governance leads of
partner organisations and members of the supporting groups. The Wirral Place
Based Partnership Board will then receive the latest and most relevant documentation
for oversight and assurance.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Definitions

Appendix 2 — Key components of the Risk Management Framework

Appendix 3 — Risk Management Matrix

Appendix 4 — Draft Place Delivery Assurance Framework and Risk Summaries

Author Simon Banks

Contact Number 07796 207 640

Email simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Page 25


mailto:simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

APPENDIX 1

DEFINITIONS

Risk

The effect of uncertainty on objectives.

Risk is the combination of the probability of an event and its
consequence.

The chance of something happening that will have an impact on
objectives.

An uncertain event or set of events that, should it occur, will have an
effect on the achievement of objectives.

Issue

A relevant event that has happened or is certain to happen, was not
planned, and requires specific management action.

The distinction between an issue and a risk is that an issue is an event
that has happened or will happen, and a risk is an event that may
happen.

Risk
Assessment

A systematic process of identifying, analysing and evaluating risks.

Impact

A measure of the anticipated effect on the achievement of NHS C&M'’s
objectives if the event or set of events occurs.

Likelihood

A measure of the chance or probability of the event or set of events
occurring.

Risk Rating

The severity assigned to a risk following assessment. This is determined
by multiplying the impact of the risk by the likelihood of occurrence.

Risk Matrix

A matrix setting out the criteria used to define and measure the impact
and likelihood, resulting in the risk rating. This aims to ensure a
consistent approach to the rating of risks across NHS C&M. Impact may
be measured in the context of each of the 9 places or for the ICB as a
whole.

Risk
Management

The culture, framework, processes and structures that are directed
towards identifying, understanding and controlling exposure to risks
which may threaten the achievement of NHS C&M'’s objectives.

Risk Register

A log of risks of all kinds that threaten the achievement of NHS C&M’s
objectives. It is a dynamic document, populated through the
organisation’s risk management process, enabling risk to be quantified
and ranked. It provides a structure for collating information about risks
that helps both in the analysis of risks and in decisions about whether or
how these risks should be treated. The ICB will have a Corporate Risk
Register and 9 Place Risk Registers.

Controls

The systems or processes we currently have in place to prevent a risk

from occurring, or to reduce the potential consequences and likelihood.

Examples of possible controls include:

e Implementation of policies and guidance

e Management structure and accountabilities

e Corporate and clinical governance processes

e Statutory frameworks e.g., Standing Orders, Standing Financial
Instructions, Scheme of Delegation

e Incident reporting, complaints, and patient and public feedback
procedures

e Staff recruitment, retentioraaeyaiNiRg.
FagesLo




Assurance

Confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls are in
place, operating effectively and objectives are being achieved.

Assurance
Framework

A structured means of identifying, mapping and assessing sources of
assurance in relation to the strength and effectiveness of internal
controls to mitigate the risks to the organisation’s objectives. By receiving
and reviewing actual assurances and using findings, the adequacy of
internal control can be confirmed or modified.

Board
Assurance
Framework

The document used to capture and provide assurance to the ICB’s board
in relation to the control of the principal risks and delivery of the strategic
objectives.

Principal
Risks

The key risks, of such significance that should they be realised, would
prevent NHS C&M from delivering its strategic objectives, continuing to
operate and/or seriously affect its performance, future prospects or
reputation. These include risks that would threaten the business model,
future performance or financial sustainability of NHS C&M.

Corporate
Risks

Risks that threaten the delivery of the ICB’s operational plan, statutory
functions and duties. These are assessed with reference to the impact
and likelihood for the ICB as a whole and in some cases will be an
aggregation of risks being managed in the 9 places.

Place Risks

Risks that threaten the delivery of the ICB Place objectives, operational
plans, statutory functions and duties in each of the 9 places. These are
assessed with reference to the impact and likelihood for the place. The
same or similar risks may exist in more than one place but would be
assessed independently in the context of the environment and situation
in each place. Risks will be aggregated across the 9 places and
assessed with reference to the impact and likelihood for the ICB as a
whole for the purposes of inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register.

Risk Appetite

The amount of risk that NHS C&M is willing to seek or accept in the
pursuit of its strategic objectives. This is determined by the Board in
relation to each strategic objective and is reviewed annually. It is used by
the leadership team to determine what potential options will / will not be
considered in pursuing these objectives.

Risk
Tolerance

The boundaries of risk taking outside of which NHS C&M is not prepared
to venture in the pursuit of its strategic objectives. This is determined by
the Board and reflected in this Risk and Assurance Strategy. It is used
by leadership to determine where action is required to improve control
and when risks require escalation.

Page 27




APPENDIX 2

g¢ obed

Board Assurance Framework
Frincipal Risks

Corporate Risk Register

Extreme (15+) & High (12+) Corporate Risks

Committes Risk Commitiee Risk Committes Risk Committee Risk
Register Register Register Register

Place Delivery Assurance Framework x 9
Frincipal Place Risks

Place Risk Register x 9
Extreme {15+) & High (8 to 12) Place Risks

Directorate Risk Registers Programme & Project Risk
Registers

KEY COMPONENTS OF THE NHS CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Board and Audit Committee
Guarterly Reports

Board and Audit Committee
Quarterly Reports

NHS C&M Committees
Each meeting

Place Partnership Board
Quarterly Reports

Place Supporting Groups
Each meeting

Management Oversight
Monthlwiguarterly review



APPENDIX 3

RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX

DESCRIPTOR

DESCRIPTION - ICB LEVEL

DESCRIPTION - PLACE LEVEL

Safety - multiple deaths which is responsibility of ICB. Multiple
permanent injuries or irreversible health effects. An event
affecting >50 peonle.

Finance - significant financial loss - >1% of ICB budget
Reputation - failure to be authorised, sustained adverse

national media (3 days+), significant adverse public reaction /
loss of public confidence

Safety - multiple deaths which is responsibility of ICB.
Multiple permanent injuries or irreversible health effects.
An event affecting >50 people.

Finance - significant financial loss - >1% of delegated
Place budget

Reputation - ICB delegation withheld / withdrawn,
sustained adverse local media (3 days+), significant
adverse public reaction / loss of public confidence

Safety - individual death / permanent injury/ disability which is
responsibility of ICB. 14 days off work - affects 16 - 50

Safety - individual death / permanent injury/ disability
which is responsibility of ICB. 14 days off work - affects 16

(25% > - 50%)

Negligible
(<5%)

budget

Reputation - conditions imposed on authorisation by NHSE/I,
litigation, local media coverage, patient and partner
complaints & dissatisfaction

Major . U ) T Finance - major financial loss of 0.5-1% of delegated
4 (50% > 75%) Finance - major financial loss of 0.5-1% of ICB budget Place budget
Reputation - criticism or intervention by NHSE/I, litigation, Reputation - criticism or intervention by ICB, litigation,
adverse national media, adverse public adverse local media, adverse public reaction
Safety - moderate injury or iliness, requiring medical treatment | Safety - moderate injury or illness, requiring medical
e.g. fracture which is responsibility of ICB. RIDDOR/Agency treatment e.g. fracture which is responsibility of ICB.
reportable incident (4-14 days lost). RIDDOR/Agency reportable incident (4-14 days lost).
3 Moderate Finance - moderate financial loss - less than 0.5% of ICB Finance - moderate financial loss - less than 0.5% of

delegated Place budget

Reputation - conditions imposed on delegation by ICB,
litigation, local media coverage, patient and partner
complaints & dissatisfaction

Safety - minor injury or illness requiring first aid treatment
Finance - minor financial loss less than 0.2% of ICB budget

Reputation - some criticism slight possibility of complaint or
litigation but minimum impact on ICB

Safety - minor injury or iliness requiring first aid treatment
Finance - minor financial loss less than 0.2% of delegated
Place budget

Reputation - some criticism slight possibility of complaint
or litigation but minimum impact on Place

Safety - none or insignificant injury due to fault of ICB

Finance - no financial or very minor loss

Reputation - no impact or loss of external reputation

Safety - none or insignificant injury due to fault of ICB

Finance - no financial or very minor loss

Reputation - no impact or loss of external reputation




3

Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain
The event could only occur in The event could occur at some The event may well occur at some | The event will occur in most The event is almost certain to
exceptional circumstances (<5%) time (<25%) time (25%> -50%) circumstances (50% > 75%) occur (>75%)

LIKELIHOOD of risk being | IMPACT (severity) of risk being realised
realised

Negligible (1) Minor (2) Moderate (3) Major (4) Catastrophic (5)
5

Rare (1)

Unlikely (2)

Possible (3)

Likely (4)

Almost Certain (5)

o€ abed



APPENDIX 4

DRAFT PLACE DELIVERY ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK AND RISK SUMMARIES

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board Delivery Assurance Framework 2023/24

Risk
Identifier

Principal Risks

PDAF 1

T¢ obed

Service Delivery: Wirral system partners
are unable to deliver the priority programmes
within the Wirral Health and Care Plan which
will result in poorer outcomes and greater
inequalities for our population.

Target
Risk
Score

Priority Actions
[ Assurance
Activities

Responsible  Inherent Current Change

Group and Risk Risk from

SRO Score Score previous
(Lx1) (Lx1) quarter

Wirral Place

Based

Partnership
Board, Place
Director

3x4=12

2x4=8

Place Based
Partnership
Board has
approved Wirral
Health and Care
Plan.

Common
approach to
reporting on
delivery using
SmartSheets
needs to be
agreed by Place
Based
Partnership
Board.

Regular reporting
to relevant
supporting group
and/or Wirral
Place Based
Partnership
Board needs to
be established.




PDAF 2

2 abed

Children and Young People: The Wirral
health and care system is unable to meet the
needs of children and young people with
complex and/or additional needs leading to
long term health issues, increased inequalities
and demands on services.

Wirral Place
Based
Partnership
Board, Place
Director

3x4=12

2x4=8

Development of
a JSNA for
children and
young people.

Implementation
of actions to
address SEND
Written
Statement of
Action.

Development of
new pathways
and services for
children and
young people
with complex
needs that
provide
alternatives to
care, custody or
inpatient
admission
through
anticipatory care.

PDAF 3

Collaboration: Leaders and organisations in
the Wirral health and care system may not
work together effectively to improve
population health and healthcare.

Wirral Place
Based
Partnership
Board, Place
Director

4x3=12

3x3=9

PDAF 4

Workforce: The Wirral health and care
system is unable to recruit, develop and retain
staff to create a diverse health and care
workforce with the skills and experience

Wirral Place
Based
Partnership
Board, Place

Place Review
Meetings

Reporting
systems in place.

3x4=12

3x3=9

Establish
Workforce
Strategy Group




required to deliver the strategic objectives. Director

PDAF 5 Finance: Poor financial performance in the Wirral Place
Wirral health and care system leads to a Based
negative impact and increased monitoring and | Partnership
regulation. Board, Place

Director

o

Q

«Q

@

w

w

PDAF 6 Community Wealth Building: The focus on | Wirral Place
responding to current service priorities and Based
demands diverts resource and attention from | Partnership
delivery of longer-term initiatives in our Board, Place
strategies that support the broader social and | Director

economic development of the borough.

Develop
Workforce
Strategy

Establish
reporting
mechanisms to
Place Based
Partnership
Board.

Develop and
implement Wirral
Place Financial
Recovery Plan.

Establish
reporting
mechanisms to
Place Based
Partnership
Board through
Finance and
Investment

group.

3x3=9

2X3=6

Approval of Joint
Forward Plan by
Wirral Health and
Wellbeing Board.

Establish delivery
arrangements
and governance
for Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy.




Heat Map

PDAF5 PDA
Catastrophic 5
PDAF1 PDA
MajOI’ 4 PDAF2 < DDA PDAFG
PDAF4 PDAF
PDAF3 PDA
Moderate 3

- PDAF6

Q

@

Q.
- E
Q
@ .
D Minor 2
w
N

Insignificant 1
1 2 3 4 5
Rare Unlikely Possible

Likely Almost Certain

Current Risk




Risk Assurance Map

Risk
Identifier

Current
Risk
Score

Principal Risks

PDAF 1 Service Delivery: Wirral
system partners are
unable to deliver the
priority programmes
within the Wirral Health 12
and Care Plan which will
result in poorer outcomes
and greater inequalities

for our population.

AF 2 Children and Young
People: The Wirral
health and care system is
unable to meet the needs
of children and young
people with complex 12
and/or additional needs
leading to long term
health issues, increased
inequalities and demands
on services.

ge aBed

Collaboration: Leaders
and organisations in the
Wirral health and care
system may not work
together effectively to
improve population health

PDAF 3

Policies

Processes

Controls

Contracts

Reporting

15 line of
defence

2" line of
defence

3" line of
defence

Assurance
Rating

Senior Programme Reporting to
Responsible reporting to Place Based
Officer and Strategy and Partnership
management | Transformation Board -
control of each | Group (majority | Planned Reasonable
priority of programmes) -
programme — | Planned
In place.
Day to day Escalation to Escalation to
management | senior leadership | Wirral
oversight and | -In place. system
leadership — In CEOs and
place. Place
Director — In | Reasonable
place.
Day to day Alignment of Place
management | programmes of Director and
oversight and | work around Wirral
AN 2 leadership — In | Wirral Health System FEEEETEE
place. and Care Plan — | CEOs
In place. meeting — In




Risk

Identifier

Principal Risks

and healthcare.

Current

Risk

Score

0
0
L
°
o

Processes

Controls

Contracts

15 line of
defence

Reporting

2" line of
defence

Working groups
to deliver system
priorities — In

3" line of
defence

place.

Reporting to
PBPB —

Assurance
Rating

regulation.

Recovery Plan —
Planned.

place. Planned.
Reporting to Place
supporting Review
groups — Meetings —
Planned. In place.
o
L Q
«Q
®
RRAF 4 Workforce: The Wirral Day to day Workforce Reporting to
o health and care system is management | Supporting PBPB —
unable to recruit, develop oversight and | Group and Planned.
and retain staff to create leadership — In | associated work
a diverse health and care 12 Al A | A A | place. programme — Reasonable
workforce with the skills Planned.
and experience required
to deliver the strategic
objectives.

PDAF 5 Finance: Poor financial Day to day Internal Reporting to
performance in the Wirral management | organisational PBPB —
health and care system oversight and | controls — In Planned.
leads to a negative leadership — In | place.
impact and increased A|A | A| A |place. Reasonable
monitoring and Financial




Risk
Identifier

Principal Risks

15 line of
defence

Current Controls
Risk

Score

Policies
Processes
Contracts
Reporting

2" line of
defence

Monitoring and
interventions
through Finance
and Investment
Group —In
place.

3" line of
defence

Assurance
Rating

PDAF 6

)€ abed

Community Wealth
Building: The focus on
responding to current
service priorities and
demands diverts
resource and attention
from delivery of longer-
term initiatives in our
strategies that support
the broader social and
economic development of
the borough.

Day to day
management
oversight and
leadership — In
place.

Reporting to
Health and
Wellbeing Board
and Place Based
Partnership
Board - Planned

Review and
approval of
Wirral Health
and
Wellbeing
Strategy by
Wirral Health
and
Wellbeing
Board — In
place.

Reasonable




Risk Summaries

ID No: PDAFE1 Risk Title: Wirral system partners are unable to deliver the priority programmes within the Wirral Health and Care Plan

which will result in poorer outcomes and greater inequalities for our population.

Likelihood Impact

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5 scale,
this is the score before any controls are
applied]

Current Risk Score

Target Risk Score 2 4 8 s

@k Appetite NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.
Q

Senior Responsible Lead Operational Lead Directorate Responsible Committee
Associate Director, Transformation
and Partnerships, NHS Cheshire
and Merseyside

Fﬁgce Director, NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside,

Wirral Place Place Based Partnership Board

Strategic Objective Function Risk Proximity Risk Type Risk Response
Strategic Objective 1:
Tacklmg_Heglth Transformation C - beyond financial year | Place Manage
Inequalities in Outcomes,

Access and Experience

Date Raised Last Updated Next Update Due

12™ July 2023 7" September 2023 31°% October 2023




Risk Description
[Description of risk and rationale for score — think about the cause, what this might lead to (the risk) and the consequences if this happens]

The Wirral Health and Care Plan 2023/24 has been agreed with system partners and approved by the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board.
The Plan and the component programmes now need to be delivered. The Board needs oversight of these programmes to gain assurance on
delivery and to intervene if there is deviation from or non-delivery of these programmes. This risk therefore concerns the potential consequences
of deviation from the agreed Plan. It is the role of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside to hold providers to account for the delivery of the Plan through
the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board.

AIVECRE UG EIRGE S The operational Risk Registers are to be developed.

Current Controls
Policies NHS Operational Planning Guidance 2023/24
Processes Health and Care Plan developed collaboratively. Programme Management, Contract Management

Flans Wirral Health and Care Plan 2023/24 developed with and approved by partners.
Contracts Wirral Health and Care Plan 2023/24 included in contracts with providers.
Reporting Governance and reporting routes agreed.

Gaps in control
[areas where controls are not in place or are not effective, or where we cannot be assured of their effectiveness]

Individual programme delivery plans to be finalised.
Establish common approach to reporting on delivery using SmartSheets.

Actions planned \ Owner Timescale Progress Update
Individual delivery plans to be finalised by In progress

programme Senior Responsible Officers and 19"

shared with relevant supporting group/ SROs October

Place Based Partnership Board. 2023

Common approach to reporting on delivery 19" In progress on agenda for October PBPB.
using SmartSheets (will require Place Based WIT October

Partnership Board agreement). 2023




Assurances

Planned \ Actual
Place Based Partnership Board approval of Wirral Health and Approved by Wirral Place Based Partnership Board in June
Care Plan. 2023 (reasonable)

Common approach to reporting on delivery using SmartSheets to
be agreed by Place Based Partnership Board (planned

September) Reasonable

Regular reporting to relevant supporting group and/or Wirral
Place Based Partnership Board (planned to commence
September)

Cz2ps in assurance

@eas where controls are not in place or are not effective, or where we cannot be assured of their effectiveness]

@

Gammon approach to reporting on delivery using SmartSheets needs to be agreed by Place Based Partnership Board.
Fegular reporting to relevant supporting group and/or Wirral Place Based Partnership Board needs to be established.

Actions planned \ Owner \ Timescale Progress Update

Common approach to reporting on delivery ogth Work in progress with Programme Delivery Unit and Strategy and
using SmartSheets needs to be agreed by Place September Transformation Group.

Place Based Partnership Board. Director 2023

Regular reporting to relevant supporting ogth Work in progress with Programme Delivery Unit and Strategy and
group and/or Wirral Place Based Place September Transformation Group.

Partnership Board needs to be established. Director 2023




Risk Title: The Wirral health and care system is unable to meet the needs of children and young people with complex

ID No: PDAF 2

and/or additional needs leading to long term health issues, increased inequalities and demands on services.

Likelihood Impact  Risk Score

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5 scale,
this is the score before any controls are

applied]

Current Risk Score

12 >

Target Risk Score

2 4

8

Risk Appetite

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.

Senior Responsible Lead

P.@ce Director, NHS Cheshire and

Operational Lead

Joint Commissioning Lead for CYP,
Wirral Council and NHS C&M

Directorate

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside,
Wirral Place

Responsible Committee

Wirral Place Based Partnership
Board

Merseyside
(@]
9]

Strategic Objective
Strategic Objective 1:
Tackling Health Inequalities
in Outcomes, Access and
Experience

Function Risk Proximity

Quality, transformation
and commissioning

Date Raised
25™ August 2023

Last Updated
7" September 2023

Risk Type

Risk Response

Next Update Due
31° October 2023

Risk Description




Increased demand and complexity of children and young people which has increased since the pandemic which is now compounded by cost of
living crisis which is leading to more children living in poverty and neglect and a reduction in support to CYP.

AIVECRE NGRS The operational Risk Registers are to be developed.

Current Controls

HR Policies. Operational policies and SEND. CHC national framework. Safeguarding. Mental Health Act.
Children’s Act.

CYP mental health escalation framework. DSD data base. Neurodevelopmental pathway. AACHC Children’s
framework

Plans SEND Written Statement of Action (WSOA) - Action Plan. CYP mental health transformation.

Contracts NHS Standard Contract. Local Authority contract
Children, Young People and Education Committee. SEND Transformation Board. Health and Wellbeing
Reporting Board. JHECCG. Wirral Place Based Partnership Board. Children Safeguarding Partnership. Quality and
Performance Group. Contract meetings. Strategy and Transformation Group.

Policies

Processes

GAaps in control
Qowledge of future needs of population. Preparation for re-inspection of SEND with a view to removal of Written Statement of Action (WSOA).
ghways and services for CYP with complex needs that provide alternatives to care, custody or inpatient admission through anticipatory care.

Actions planned Owner Timescale Progress Update
Demand modelling — delivering Better Value for Assistant In progress
Send and review of JSNA Director:
Education
(\Nlrra; oCir?tunC") December
2023

Commissioning
Lead for CYP

(Wirral Council

and NHS C&M)

Action planning for SEND reinspection and Director, In progress
delivery of WSOA action plan. Children’s
Services (Wirral |  January
Council) and 2024
Associate

Director,




Quality and
Patient Safety
(Wirral), NHS
C&M
Devglppment of alternative care pathways and 2 2 ?2?
provision.
Assurances
Planned Actual Rating
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for CYP to be agreed by Wirral Health and On forward plan for Wirral Health and
Wellbeing Board. Wellbeing Board 2023/24 Work Programme.
Evidence of progress against WSOA to Wirral Council Children, Young People Progress being reported regularly into local
and Education Committee and other governance arrangements in Wirral Place. governance and needs to continue.
Progress on CYP transformation agenda monitored through programme . Reasonabl
Programme reporting to Strategy and e

reporting to Strategy and Transformation Group and subsequently Place Based Transformation Group.
Partnership Board.

agreed JSNA. Removal of WSOA by Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (OFSTED). Establish reporting on
delivery of transformation programme.

Actions planned Owner T|m<:sca| Progress Update
Health and Wellbeing Board agree JSNA. Assistant In progress, dependent on Health and Wellbeing Board
Director: scheduling.
Education
(Wirral Council)
Joint February
Commissioning 2024
Lead for CYP
(Wirral Council
and NHS
C&M)
System meeting requirements to enable OFSTED to Director, Timescale | Director, Children’s Services (Wirral Council) liaising
remove WSOA. Children’s dependent | with OFSTED.
Services on




(Wirral Council)
and Associate
Director,
Quality and
Patient Safety
(Wirral), NHS
C&M

OFSTED

Quarterly programme reporting to Strategy and
Transformation Group.

CYP
Programme
SRO

October
2023

In progress, first report due 19™ October 2023.

vt abed




Risk Title: Leaders and organisations in the Wirral health and care system may not work together effectively to
improve population health and healthcare.

ID No: PDAF 3

Risk Score

Likelihood Impact

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5 scale, s
this is the score before any controls are 4 3 12 20 i Cui.
applied L

pplied] o -~
Current Risk Score 3 3 9 (5)

E-I%Igslélg?l%l“dlslglglglEI

Target Risk Score 1 3 <z - < v 0O =za0 w3
Risk Appetite NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.

Directorate
NHS Cheshire and Merseyside,

Responsible Committee
Wirral Place Based Partnership

Operational Lead
Place Director, NHS Cheshire and

Senior Responsible Lead
Place Director, NHS Cheshire and

Mgrseyside Merseyside Wirral Place Board

Q

»trategic Objective Function Risk Proximity Risk Type Risk Response
a Quality, performance,

transformation,

Strategic Objective 2:
Improving Population Health
and Healthcare

commissioning, finance,
workforce and
governance.

B — within the financial
year

Place

Manage

Date Raised

Next Update Due
31° October 2023

Last Updated

22" August 2023 7" September 2023

Risk Description



health and social care services.

Collaborative working across system partners in Wirral is essential to the successful provision of quality services and delivery within budget.

Good working relationships improve communication, save time, reduce duplication of effort, and provide a better experience for people who use

NHS Wirral Place has a strong relationship with partners across the borough and this has only been strengthened with the maturing Wirral Place
Based Partnership Board and the reciprocal cross inclusion of senior staff at leadership forums at Wirral Council and NHS Wirral.

AIVECREENG RS The operational Risk Registers are to be developed.

Current Controls
Policies Wirral Place Governance Manual. Target Operating Model.

Processes

Place Based Partnership Board (PBPB) and supporting groups established with cross sector representation.
Business meetings outside of these groups.

Plans Wirral Health and Care Plan and supporting programme delivery.

Contracts Contracts in place with providers in the system which include duty to collaborate.

Reporting Reporting to PBPB.
Gaps in control
Risporting that demonstrates impact of actions by Wirral partners — finance, quality, performance and programme delivery.

Actions planned

Owner

Timescale

Progress Update

Team

Place Finance Report for PBPB Associate In progress
Director — October
Finance and 2023
Performance
Place Quality and Performance Report for PBPB Associate In progress
Director — October
Quiality and 2023
Safety
Place Programme Delivery Report for PBPB Programme In progress
Director
o October
Wirral 2023
Improvement




Assurances

Planned

Actual

Place Review Meetings

Held quarterly, next meeting scheduled for
29" September 2023. Positive feedback
from meeting held in May 2023.

PBPB receives regular reports on finance, quality, performance and risk.

Reports in these areas due to commence
at October 2023 meeting.

Reasonabl

PBPB receives regular reports on programme delivery.

Reporting due to commence at October €
2023 meeting.

Outcome of September Place Review Meeting.

Actions planned

Reports received on finance, quality, performance, programme delivery and risk.

Owner

Gaps in assurance

Timescal
e

Progress Update

Rtace Review Meeting P 29" Preparations underway.
ace
Lc% Director September
N 2023
I'—'j\ance report for PBPB. Associate In progress.
Director of 19"
Finance and October
Performance 2023
(Wirral)
Quality and Performance report for PBPB. Associate In progress.
Director of 19
Quallt.y and October
Patient 2023
Safety
(Wirral)
Risk Management Framework for PBPB. Place 19" In progress.
Director October
(Wirral) 2023
Programme reporting for PBPB. Programme 19" In progress.
Director, October
Wirral 2023




Improvement
Team

gy abed




ID No: PDAF 4

Risk Title: The Wirral health and care system is unable to recruit, develop and retain staff to create a diverse health

and care workforce with the skills and experience required to deliver the strategic objectives.

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5 scale,
this is the score before any controls are

Likelihood Impact

applied]

Current Risk Score

Risk Score

12 >

Target Risk Score

3 3

9

Risk Appetite

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.

Senior Responsible Lead
@ce Director, NHS Cheshire and

rseyside

Operational Lead

Senior Responsible Officer,
Workforce Programme

Directorate

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside,
Wirral Place

Responsible Committee

Wirral Place Based Partnership
Board

«Q
@D

Strategic Objective
Strategic Objective 3:
Enhancing Quality,
Productivity & Value for
Money

Function Risk Proximity

Workforce

Date Raised

Last Updated

Risk Type

Risk Response

Next Update Due

10" August 2023 7" September 2023 31% October 2023

Risk Description



Ensuring that we have a diverse workforce with the necessary skills and experience, is essential to the delivery of our strategic objectives. It is
also essential in realising the benefits of increased employment across our population. The Wirral system has significant workforce challenges
including recruitment, retention and sickness absence. Our health and care workforce includes providers of care in the voluntary, community,
faith and social enterprise (VCFSE) sector and independent sector as well as the NHS and statutory social care. The potential impact of this risk
includes provider inability to meet demand for care, leading to quality and safety impacts through delays in care provision, absence of specific
clinical skills and financial impacts of mitigation through temporary workforce solutions.

BIVCEREEUGERIE I The operational Risk Registers are to be developed.

Current Controls

Policies Provider Recruitment & Selection, Widening Participation, Wellbeing, Development, Retention Strategies.
Organisational development, workforce planning, PDR, training & development, communication & Amber
Processes engagement, recruitment, demographic profiling, international recruitment, apprenticeship levy, Partnership
approaches through Wirral Place Level Workforce Strategy Programme Group

C&M People Plan, NHS People Promise, provider workforce plans, care sector workforce recruitment and

| retention work plan
Contracts Employment contracts, terms and conditions
F2porting Wirral Workforce Group reporting to Wirral Place Based Partnership Board

CGaps in control

No current System Workforce dashboard
Maturity of collaborative working at Place level
Inconsistent workforce planning process/methodology across Wirral Place
Links to educational institutions in place but require further development
Actions planned Owner \ Timescale Progress Update
Mapping and engagement exercise with Wirral Senior Date set for engagement workshop
Health & Care Plan programme SROs and Responsible Mapping exercise under development as part of wider enabling
Workforce leads to identify key Wirral Place Officer, programme mapping
workforce issues Workforce

Pro%rs(;nme September

2023
Programme
Director,
Wirral

Improvement

Team (WIT)
Mapping of available data with Place Organisations Senior October | Engagement with system HR Directors and workforce leads




to understand current baseline workforce including Responsible 2023 underway
. Officer,
e Vacancy profile Workforce
e Demographics Programme
e Recruitment ‘hotspots’ and
Programme
This will lead to the creation of a workforce Director,
dashboard. WIT
Establishment of Wirral Place workforce strategy Senior Draft Terms of Reference Produced, and group membership
group to oversee the development of Wirral Place Responsible established
Workforce Strategy and prioritised Work Officer,
Programme Workforce
Programme October
g 2023
and
Programme
Director,
WIT
T
D
@
)
Assurances
Planned Actual Rating
Draft terms of Reference circulated 14/08/23
: Governance manual incorporating assurance
Wirral Place Workforce Strategy Group structures agreed at Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board (PBPB) 27/07/23
i i i . Reasonabl
g(;:;r;erly Assurance reviews on work plan at Wirral Place Based Partnership Included in the PBPB Workplan .

Gaps in assurance
No current System Workforce dashboard

Actions planned

Owner

Timescal

Progress Update




Establish regular workforce reporting to PBPB. Senior Workforce dashboard in development.
Responsible
Officer,
Workforce
Programme
and
Programme
Director,
WIT

January
2024

2G abed



Risk Title: Poor financial performance in the Wirral health and care system leads to a negative impact and increased
monitoring and regulation.

ID No: PDAF 5

Likelihood Impact Risk Score

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5 scale,
this is the score before any controls are
applied]

Current Risk Score

Target Risk Score

Risk Appetite NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.

Senior Responsible Lead Operational Lead Directorate Responsible Group

. , Associate Director of Finance and . .

Place D|_rector, NHS Cheshire and Performance, NHS Cheshire and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, Place Based Partnership Board
\@&rseyside i Wirral Place

O Merseyside

\V

(0)]

w

Strategic Objective Function Risk Proximity Risk Type Risk Response

Strategic Objective 3:
Enhancing Quality,

B — within the financial

Productivity & Value for Finance year Place Manage
Money

Date Raised Last Updated Next Update Due

25" August 2023 7" September 2023 31% October 2023

Risk Description



The Wirral Place is unable to deliver its financial target due to overspending against allocated budgets or non-delivery of its savings plan.

Key system performance measures, (e.g. Non Criteria to Reside (NCtR), CHC assessments, Out of Area Mental
Health Placements)

Linked operational risks

Current Controls

NHS Planning guidance 2023/24. Local CM ICB approach across key areas (e.g. All Age Continuing Care
and Prescribing budget setting).

CMICB SORD governing approval limits for Place based leaders. Budget books published to Place for
agreement. Further work to streamline approval processes underway. Total control environment.
Financial Plan approved by CM ICB, with commentary covering corresponding risks in system. Financial
Plans plans shared with all partner organisations in Wirral to ensure consistency in terms of approach to savings | Amber
and avoid unintended consequences.

Local contracts agreed with main NHS Providers. Further work to agree contracts in other key areas
notably in relation to package of care related budgets. Total control environment.

Financial Position reported monthly to CM ICB Board. Place based financial position reported monthly to
Reporting Wirral Place Leadership Team. The overall financial report to the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is | Amber
in development.

Policies

Processes Amber

Contracts Amber

Gaps in control
Wirral Financial Recovery Plan.

Actions planned Owner Timescale Progress Update

Publish Wirral Place based financial recovery plan Associate Wirral Financial Recovery Plan under development with
Director of finance leads from partner organisations.
Finance and October
Performance, 2023
NHS
Cheshire and
Merseyside
Review of all expenditure to determine whether any Associate All organisations reviewing this as part of total control
“discretionary” expenditure exists. Director of environment,
: October
Finance and
2023
Performance,
NHS




Cheshire and
Merseyside

Assurances
Planned Actual
Overall Wirral system financial report in

Reporting arrangements to be established. development and will be shared with Place Reasonabl
Based Partnership Board in October. e

Financial Recovery Plan agreed by system partners. As above.
Gaps in assurance

Further assurances required to understand the basis of reports generated from third party organisations and ICB central team.

Actions planned Owner Tlmzscal Progress Update
Report to be taken to Wirral Place Based Partnership Associate
Bg?ard Director of
Q Finance and | 4. /.o
@ Performance, 2023
g NHS

Cheshire and

Merseyside




ID No: PDAF 6

Risk

Likelihood
Score

Impact

Inherent Risk Score [assess on 5x5
scale, this is the score before any
controls are applied]

Risk Title: The focus on responding to current service priorities and demands diverts resource and attention from delivery of
longer-term initiatives in our strategies that support the broader social and economic development of the borough.

10
Current Risk Score 3 3 9 5
O T T T
. 5 > € 5
Target Risk Score 2 3 6 < s 2"

Risk Appetite

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are still working on guidance on Risk Appetite.

Senior Responsible Lead

Place Director, NHS Cheshire and

M,E{seyside

Sirategic Objective

Associate Director, Transformation

Operational Lead Directorate

and Partnerships, NHS Cheshire

Responsible Committee

Place Based Partnership Board

and Merseyside
Function

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, Wirral
Place

Risk Type

Risk Response

‘ Risk Proximity

‘ Last Updated Next Update Due

SPategic Objective 4: Helping the NHS to
stport broader social & economic
velopment

Date Raised
13™ September 2023

Risk Description

Delivery of our shared aims, strategy and plans are dependent on collective ownership and collaborative effort by communities and organisations across
Wirral. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside has a key role in system leadership and promoting greater collaboration across the NHS and with local partners. This
risk relates to the potential that the NHS Cheshire and Merseyside and Wirral system partners are unable to build effective collaboration, shared ownership
and delivery of strategies such as the Wirral Plan 2026, Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership Interim Strategy, Wirral Health and Wellbeing
Strategy and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Joint Forward Plan on behalf of the population. This is in the context of the changing operating model of NHS
England and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside, and current national and local quality, safety, performance and financial pressures.

Linked

Operational
Risks

The operational Risk Registers are to be developed.




Current Controls

NHS Operational Planning Guidance 2023/24. Wirral Place Governance Manual. Target Operating Model. Health and
Wellbeing Board status as a statutory committee. Wirral Plan 2026.

Joint strategic and operational planning embedded for health and care in Wirral. Delivery mechanisms agreed for Wirral
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership Interim Strategy, Joint 5-year Forward Plan, Wirral Plan 2025, Wirral
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Wirral Health and Care Plan, CORE 20+5 work, Anchor Institution approaches.

Contracts Duty to collaborate in NHS contracts. Commitments to social value procurement approaches contracts.

Policies

Processes

Plans

Reporting Health and Wellbeing Board, Place Based Partnership Board.

Gaps in control

Work is still ongoing to finalise and secure agreement to the Joint Forward Plan from Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board.
Reporting on delivery of Wirral Health and Wellbeing Strategy to Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board and Place Based Partnership Board.

Actions planned Owner \ Timescale Progress Update
Serure Wirral Health and Wellbeing 21" On agenda for 21°** September 2023 meeting of Wirral Health and
%ard approval for the Joint Forward Place Director September | Wellbeing Board.

n. 2023
Reporting arrangements for delivery Director of December In progress
orWirral Health and Wellbeing Public Health,

: . 2023

Strategy. Wirral Council

Assurances

Planned Actual
Approval of C&M Interim HCP Strategy by Wirral Health and

W ) Approved July 2023.

ellbeing Board.

Engagement of Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board in refresh of Engagement being established through Health and Care

HCP Strategy. Partnership mechanisms.

Approval of Joint Forward Plan by Wirral Health and Wellbeing Reasonable

Board Paper prepared for meeting to be held on 21% September 2023.

Gaps in assurance

Approval of Joint Forward Plan.




Actions planned
Approval of JFP by Wirral HWBB.

Owner

Place
Director

‘ Timescale ‘

September
2023

Paper prepared and published.

Progress Update

gG abed




Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Title Wirral Health and Care Plan Programme Delivery Dashboard

Authors Julian Eyre Programme Director, Wirral Improvement Team

Report for Wirral Place Based Partnership Board

Date of Meeting 19" October 2023

Report Purpose and Recommendations

The purpose of this report is to present to Place based partners the performance dashboard
for the programmes within the Wirral Place Health and Care Plan. The dashboard structure
has been developed and agreed with the Strategic Transformation Group (STG), and the live
dashboard is reviewed by the STG on a monthly basis, where programme Senior Responsible
Officers (SRQO’s) attend.

The report aims to provide the Board with information and assurance on the progress of the
Programmes associated with the Wirral Health and Care plan 2023-24.

It is recommended that the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board note this report which
provides assurance on the delivery and oversight of the Health and Care plan programmes.

Key Risks

This report relates to Place Delivery Assurance Framework (PDAF) and the associated high-
level risks, namely:
e Service Delivery
Children and Young People
Collaboration
Workforce
Finance
Community Wealth Building

The Programme Delivery Dashboard presented in this paper forms part of the assurance
framework that measures the strength and effectiveness of the controls that have been put
in place to mitigate the risks to Place objectives.

Governance journey

Date ‘ Forum Report Title Purpose/Decision

Strategy and To Update STG on
21° September 2023 | Transformation H%a|:251n3 32{2 Plan progress on Health
Group brog P and Care plan

1.1 Background

1.1.1 | Following the publication of the Wirral Place Health and Care Plan 2023-24 and its
endorsement by the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board (WPBPB) on 22" June
2023 work has been undertaken by the Wirral Improvement Team, led by the
Strategy and Transformation Group (STG) to build a performance dashboard
providing oversight of the whole programme portfolio within the plan.

Page 61




1.1.2

For the avoidance of doubt, the programmes that constitute the portfolio within the
Health and Care Plan are summarised in the figure below:

Wirral Place Programmes

Population Health including prevention and health inequalities

Neighborhood Guiding
Model - Programmes

Use of Resources

Unscheduled Primary and Children and Mental Learning

Disability Delivery
and Autism Programmes

Community

(of:1-}
Care

Young People Health

Place Place Digital Place Estates and Place Medicines Enabling
Workforce maturity Sustainability DRt o Programmes

1.1.3

The data and narrative that constitutes the dashboard was built through consultation
with the SRO’s and Programme Leads for each constituent programme and the
membership of the Wirral STG. An agreed process of recording and monitoring each
programme allowed for the build of templates within the ‘Smartsheets’ Programme
Management software, that allows for automatic uploading of information into the
dashboard, ensuring that data only needs to be entered once.

1.14

Of the programme portfolio within the Health and Care plan; a number of the
programmes are managed directly through the Wirral Improvement team, whilst
others are managed by partner organisation Programme Management Office (PMO)
functions. However, the Wirral Improvement team oversee the collation and reporting
of the whole portfolio, working with the SRO’s and programme leads.

1.15

The dashboard forms the information baseline for the monitoring and control of the
suite of programmes within the plan. The monitoring process follows a clear timeline
for report updating, review and adjustment. It also supports the detailed review of
individual programme areas though a schedule of ‘deep dives’. The monthly process
is summarised in the figure below:

Page 62




EMAIL
PROJECT PAPERS
REPORT i DS onaD STG MEETING SUBMITTED
UPDATES FHOM SUBMITTED FOR WPBPB
SMARTSHEETS

STG REQUESTED

PROGRAMME SRO UPDATE SATDI?A?;[I:Q AMENDMENTS WPBPB
BOARD (SmartSheets) MADE TO MEETING

SIRCULATED SMARTSHEETS

1.1.6

The ‘Live’ Dashboard is presented to STG monthly, who act as the programme board
for the portfolio, with the exception of those programmes that it has been agreed
should currently report directly to WPBPB. However the whole portfolio will be
shared including these areas for the completeness of information, and to ensure that
there is a full ‘read across’ within the portfolio and a consideration of
interdependencies.

1.1.7

In order to build strong assurance into the oversight of the Health and Care Plan, the
whole portfolio will be subject to a monitoring and control strategy which is under
development with STG. The strategy will define how Wirral Place Health and Care
Plan programmes will be monitored and controlled to ensure that they are:
o Effectively managed in line with best practice project and programme
management standards
e Focussed on action and delivery
e Focussed on achieving positive, demonstrable outcomes for the Wirral system
including its residents, health and care organisations and employees
The strategy will define clear tolerances, escalation governance and change
authority.

1.1.8

The overall performance RAG rating for the Health and Care plan delivery in
September was Green, with two programmes in the portfolio reporting Amber and the
rest reporting Green. Based on the information within the September dashboard the
board is directed to note the following highlights:

Guiding Programmes

e The Neighbourhood programme has now identified two trailblazer
neighbourhoods, one in Wallasey and one in Birkenhead. Asset mapping has
been completed to capture wider population priorities

e A workshop is being organised by the Population Health Programme to
explore approaches to improve early detection and better management of
cardiovascular disease.

e The Use of Resources programme has identified two key delivery priorities;
the financial recovery plan and value for money, which will now be established
as projects.

Delivery Programmes

e Following a workshop with senior leaders in Wirral Place, the Children and
Young People’s Programme have identified three key priorities for focus
which will be taken to the Joint Health and Care Commissioning Executive
Group for ratification

e Alearning Disabilities all ageyguegdas taken place which has identified an
ageos




initial priority around transition between children’s and adult’s services.

e Within the Mental Health programme work has been undertaken around acute
capacity and demand baseline data. This has highlighted some key
challenges around the increased multi-factorial complexity of service users.

e The Primary and Community programme has established its programme
structure and have agreed to incorporate the Ageing Well agenda into the
programme.

e The Urgent and Emergency Care programme reports separately and directly
to WPBPB

Enabling Programmes

e Within the Digital Maturity programme, the focus has ben on the migration
work from the Wirral Care Record to CIPHA. A gap analysis is being
undertaken by the provider. The Telederm offer has now raised over 1000 live
cases. The phased implementation has been extended with a projected 100%
roll out by the end of October 2023.

e Work is underway to establish the key priorities within the Estates and
Sustainability programme to align with the wider system requirements.

e The Medicines Optimisation programme has worked with partners to
rationalise approaches to establish a single oversight group which will aid the
programme prioritisation and governance arrangements

e The Workforce programme held a System Workshop 13 September with an
enthusiastic membership, the outcome of this workshop will help to support
the development of the programme and its priorities.

2 Implications

2.1 | Risk Mitigation and Assurance

Each programme within the Health and Care Plan has identified the relevant
programme risks and mitigations. A summary risk report is available that identifies the
red and amber rated risks across the portfolio of programmes.

2.2 | Financial

The potential financial implications arising from the Wirral Health and Care Plan are
considered within the individual programme benefits, risk and issue logs, and any
specific financial implications would be addressed through the appropriate processes.
The Use of Resources programme will focus on identifying opportunities to deliver
further efficiencies to spending on Wirral.

2.3 | Legal and regulatory

There are no legal or regulatory implications directly arising from this report.

2.4 | Resources

The Health and Care Plan programme structure includes enabling programmes for
workforce, digital maturity, estates, and sustainability. Part of the remit of these
programmes is to identify and support the specific resource implications of the delivery
and guiding programmes.

2.5 | Engagement and consultation

The programmes presented within the dashboard are specific to the Wirral Health and
Care Plan, which has been developed collaboratively across key stakeholders across
the Place through place workshops and with system colleagues within Strategy and
Transformation Group meetings.

2.6 | Equality

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside have a legal requirement to make
sure their policies, and the way they carry out their work, do not discriminate against
anyone. Within the Health and Care Plan there is a framework for our approach to
tackling health inequalities and eacm%a@ﬂne of work will complete impact




assessments to ensure any adverse impact is identified and mitigating actions put in
place where possible.

2.7 | Environment and Climate

The enabling programmes within the Health and Care Plan include an estates and
sustainability programme which has a specific aim to target investment to support net
zero carbon ambitions. Furthermore, the plan is cognisant of and guided by a number
of key national, regional and Wirral specific strategy and policy requirements that focus
Wirral Place on environment and climate implications, including the Wirral Plan 2021-
26, the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-27 and Marmot Principles to build safe,
sustainable and vibrant communities.

2.8 | Community Wealth Building

Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration.
These partnerships are led by Wirral Council with external partners and stakeholders,
including residents. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will support the Council in
community wealth building by ensuring health and care organisations in the borough
have a focus on reducing health inequalities and contribute to the development of a
resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral.

3 Conclusion

3.1 | The dashboard presented within this report provides an oversight of the whole
programme portfolio, provides a monthly narrative update and RAG rating of overall
programme performance, benefits, risks, and issues. There is a requirement to
demonstrate progress against the delivery of the priorities within the Plan to evidence
the progress made to the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board. The programme
dashboard provides that evidence.

The dashboard will be updated on a monthly basis to provide assurance to this board.

4 Appendices
Appendix 1 Wirral Health and Care Plan Dashboard

The PDF file below may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users of
assistive technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact julian.eyre@nhs.net if
you would like this document in an accessible format.

Author Julian Eyre

Contact Number 07796 444827

Email Julian.eyre@nhs.net

Page 65


mailto:julian.eyre@nhs.net
mailto:Julian.eyre@nhs.net

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Wirral Health and Care Plan Dashboard

Date of Report About the Wirral Health and Care Plan Escalation Reports

Sept 2023 (W] &
Wirral Place Health and Care plan 23.24.11.d... Wirral Health and Care Plan Benefits Report
e
Wirral Health and Care Plan Risk Report
&

Wirral Health and Care Plan Issue Report

Guiding Programmes

Neighbourhood Model Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Graham Hodkinson @ m
Neighbourhoods Model

Programme Commentary

Neighbourhood Steering Group signed off two trailblazer neighbourhoods (Birkenhead A and Wallasey C)
Stakeholder list drafted to support trailblazer neighbourhoods

Asset Mapping and Event Scoping complete to ensure wider population priorities are captured

Core Group Development meeting scheduled 14/09/23

Neighbourhood Workshops being arranged to consider core group membership/ priorities (workshop Sept/Oct)
Communications developed to brief stakeholders on the Neighbourhood model

Project Name Project Status

Ouerall Project Milestone  gonefits RAG  Risk RAG  Issue RAG  Highlight Report

Neighbourhood Care Model No Change [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] Neighbourhood Care Model - Highlight Report

Population Health Management Programme

Programme SRO Programme Plan

Dave Bradburn m

Population Health Management

Programme Commentary

« A focussed workshop is planned for Autumn to explore the different approaches that the system can implement to achieve earlier detection opportunities and better
management of CVD (heart attacks and strokes), with a focus on our most ‘vulnerable’ residents. The C20P5 group will be key to developing and co-owning this. There is also a
big opportunity here for the initial Neighbourhoods groups to be the delivery vehicle (if CVD is chosen as their priority).

* The ‘additionality’ model being pushed through the HWB strategy implementation has already yielded some useful connections between Priority Area 1 (focussing on
Employment and Regeneration) and Priority Area 2. Examples of this include:

1. National Workwell Programme. The aim of this programme is to create an integrated work and health support for people with disabilities and/or health conditions who want
help to start, stay or succeed in work. The programme will be locally led, bringing together the NHS, local authorities and other partners, in collaboration with jobcentres. Julian
Eyre will support this from the Wirral Improvement Team linked to the H&C plan and has made contact with the National Team for this programme. Bev Staniford and Helen
Carney will lead for the council in terms of Economic Growth.

2. C&M ICB Anchor Institutions framework will now include the LCR ‘Fair Employment’ Charter. This will support the requirement to support fair wages. Julian Eyre will liaise with
the SRO for the Workforce Programme within the H&C Plan to encourage NHS partners to sign up to the Fair Employment Charter.

Use of Resources Model Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Martin McDowell o m

Use of Resources Model

Programme Commentary

Summary: Finance, Investment and Resources Group (FIRG) will be utilised to support the delivery of the Use of Resources Model Programme. FIRG is place based and reports into
the Finance, Investment and Resource Committee (FIRC) at a C&M level. Delivery of some elements of the programme will be determined by FIRC.

Progress this month: Two priorities for delivery have been determined, Financial Recovery Plan - incorporating QIPP, and Value For Money. Work will now take place to establish
these as projects and update FIRG to enable programme progress monitoring.

FRP expected to be submitted for review by the ICB in September

Overall Project Milestone

Project Name Project Status RAG RAG Benefits RAG Risk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report
Financial Recovery Plan No Change @ ® Einancial Recovery_Plan - Highlight Report
Value For Money No Change [ ] [ ] Value For Money, - Highlight Report

Delivery Programmes

Children and Young People Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Simone White o m

Children and Young People

Programme Commentary

WSoA progress - Performance meetings held monthly where progress against actions reported: 84.6% actions complete (green), 10.8% actions delays (amber) and 4.6% actions
have not started (red). Mitigation plans in place.

EHWB transformation progress - Tender for SPA platform complete, Alliance tender underway. Slightly delayed Aug release now Sept but shouldn't impact overall timescales. My
Happy Minds funding agreed 100% coverage of Primary Schools. Thorne Heys - Joint commissioned specialist/transitional provision project underway.

Work started on Complex Children's pathway. Joint Commissioning progress - Workshop held with senior leaders (Wirral Place & LA) agreed focus on 3 priorities: ND Pathway, SALT
& Complex children. Paper confirming priorities will go to JHCCG in October for ratification.

PagRe 67

Benefits RAG isk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report

N . Overall Project Milestone
Project Name Project Status RAG RAG



Learning Disabilities and Autism Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

° Graham Hodkinson . m

Mental Health

Programme Commentary

An All age review for Learning Disabilities and Autism has taken place and highlighted the initial priority of transitional services for service users who are moving from Children to
Adult support.
A meeting is being held on 18 September to further review findings and develop the overarching strategy of the programme and associated projects

Benefits RAG Risk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report

. Overall Project Milestone
Project Name RA A

All Ages Disability ® [ ] ® All Age Disability Revi - Project Highlight Report

Mental Health Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Suzanne Edwards o m

Mental Health
Programme Commentary
Good progress being made on live projects and projects currently being established.
Data being reviewed as part of Acute capacity and demand project (establishment stage) has highlighted some key challenges and changes in the type of person that is using acute

Mental Health services since 2019. These findings reflect the increased multifactorial complexity of service users, while facing workforce challenges within Mental Health services. A
Clinical Network summit is being held on 27 September to review the data and identify some potential solutions to provide direction to the programme.

Overall Project Milestone

Project Name Project Status Benefits RAG Risk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report
Community Mental Health Transformation No Change @ ® @ ® Community Mental Health Transformation - Highlight Report
First Response No Change [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] Eirst Response - Highlight Report
SuperMADE No Change @ ® SuperMADE - Highlight Report
Integrated Housing No Change [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] Integrated Housing_- Project Highlight Report
Acute Capacity, Demand and Flow No Change @ @ ® ® Acute Capacity, Demand - Project Highlight Report
Dementia Strategy No Change [ ] [ ] Dementia Strategy_- Project Highlight Report

Primary and Community Care Programme
Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Jo Chwalko o m

Primary and Community Care

Programme Commentary

Programme Structure agreed and will incorporate the Ageing Well Agenda in addition to Falls and Modern Practices projects. Key members of the board agreed and draft TOR
completed.

Atrial of the Falls risk stratification tool has been completed with an MDT reviewing and identifying any additional solutions for patients identified by the tool. The findings of this are
being presented in the October falls meeting to support the role out of the tool.

Overall Project Milestone
RAG RAG

Project Name Project Status Benefits RAG Risk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report

Falls Prevention and Management No Change [ ] ® ® [ ] Ealls Prevention and Management - Highlight Report

Urgent and Emergency Care Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Janelle Holmes @ m

Wirral Place Health and Care Plan

Programme Commentary

Headline Metric (NCTR): A revised programme trajectory has been endorsed by place partners in July with the new trajectory targets revised from 1st August onwards. This metric is
captured as a snapshot on the first of every month. August’s data shows a significant reduction from the previous month, from 171 on the 1st July to 124 on the 1st August meaning
the revised target of 143 has been exceeded.

Three out of five projects have now agreed their supporting metrics and are actively reporting (i.e. metrics that will lead to a reduction in the NCTR headline metric). The metrics for
the Transfer of Care Hub (Discharge) have been agreed and continue to be progressed with build changes to Cerner now progressing to enable the capture and reporting of these
metrics.

The care market sufficiency project aims to increase the overall number of new hours picked up by 14% from 2,822hrs per month in April to 3,212hrs per month in September.
Additionally, it aims to increase the number of new packages accepted by 10% from 263 packages per month in April to 288 packages per month in September. Both metrics cover all
referral sources (e.g. community and acute). July’s data shows that the target trajectory has been met for both the overall number of new hours picked up (3459 against a target of
3056) and the number of new packages accepted (281 against a target of 278).

The Virtual Ward project aims to double throughput on its frailty ward from 40 patients per month in November 22, to 80 patients per month in August, then to 120 per month in
November 2023. The trajectory for the respiratory virtual ward has been revised this month to reflect seasonal variation with throughput increasing from 60 per month in August to 70
in September, then incrementally to 120 per month in November 2023. July’s data shows a reduction in throughput on its frailty ward on the previous month, from 59 in June to 50 in
July, the target of 60 was not met. Throughput on the respiratory ward increased on the previous month, from 59 in June to 68 in July, meeting the revised trajectory target of 60.

The HomeFirst service is undergoing a large-scale expansion to its core staff base. As such, it aims to increase the number of patients referred by the service by 215% from 54
patients per month in April 23 to 170 patients per month in December 23. Up to 88% of the patients referred into the service will be from the acute hospital and will be patients who
would otherwise have remained in hospital with no criteria to reside. Performance for July shows that, overall, there has been an increase in referrals accepted on the previous month
from 91 in June to 95 in July, however the target of 101 for July was not met. July’s data shows that referrals accepted from hospital have increased on the previous month however
are under target (81 against a target of 91). July’s data shows pick ups for CICC are above target (13 against a target of 10)

Community Reablement are yet to agree project level metrics. However, action plans are in place and being actively tracked and managed by the project SRO.

Project Name Project Status (R)X%ral\ pooisch I\R/IXeGstone Benefits RAG Risk RAG  Issue RAG Highlight Report
Virtual Wards Improving [ ] Virtual Wards - Highlight Report
AbleMe Improving [ ] Community. Reablement - Highlight Report

HomeFirst Expansion - Highlight Report
[ ] Care Market Sufficiency - Highlight Report

HomeFirst Expansion Project No Change

®

Transfer of Care Hub (Discharge) No Change @ ® P a e 6 8 Wirral Discharge Hub - Highlight Report
o 9 °
® e ®

Care Market Sufficiency Improving ®



Enabling Programmes

Place Digital Maturity Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Chris Mason .
Wirral Place Health and Care Plan

Programme Commentary

Summary/Progress this month:

ShCR /PHM

+ CIPHA Migration - Migration from WCR to CIPHA is in initiation phase. Graphnet undertaking GAP analysis.

+ HIE development - As part of discussions with C&M and suppliers re how we connect to Wirral HIE to Cheshire care record. Connection via APl under review with Oracle.

Primary Care

« Diabetes - To utilise CIPHA diabetic elective care patient list and target cohort with pre-hab offer using Surgery Hero app. Project now Live.

« Asthma - Piloting BT attachment to patients' inhalers to effectively control usage. Pilot period now Live.

* Hypertension - PATCHs rollout commencing, 42/47 Practices Live. Housebound project near closure - aiming to facilitate Housebound Hypertensive patients in Wirral to engage
with BP@Home and identify barriers. Discussions with C&M to see how we approach Hypertension P2 projects at scale including Florence, health literacy apps, health diagnostics
etc.

C&M Programmes
* Telederm - 1000+ cases raised, 33/45 Practices Live. 9 Practices Ready for Go-Live, phased roll-out authorised to continue 09/23. Full rollout planned completion date: 10/23.

Escalations: Nil

Overall Project Milestone
RA( AG

Project Name Benefits RAG Risk RAG Issue RAG Highlight Report

WCR / CIPHA Migration [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] WCR / CIPHA Migration - Highlight Report
Health Information Exchange Enhancements ® [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] HIE Enhancements - Highlight Report
Telederm [ ] [ ] [ ] ® Telederm - Highlight Report

Digital First Primary Care [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] DFPC - Highlight Report

Place Estates and Sustainability Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Paul Mason o m

Wirral Place Health and Care Plan

Programme Commentary

Summary: The established Sustainability and Estates Group (SEG) will provide a supporting mechanism for programme delivery. SEG has hosted good examples of system wide
working previously and baselining work has been developed. This has supported the completion of some key milestone achievements:

1. Wirral Place Estates Programme (Completed) - GB Partnership (attached)

2. Develop agreed RFI Register (Completed Q3 2022-23)

3. SEG Property Data Collection (Completed Q4 2022-23)

4. Green Plan and Associated actions plan oversight (Completed Q4 2022-23)

5. Wirral Place Sustainability Group established (Completed Q4 2022-23)

Progress this month: Wirral Place Sustainability Group has developed the scope of its delivery plan to support the Wirral Health Plan. Priority projects have been identified. We now
need to pause and re-assess SEG scope and deliverables to align with Wirral Health Plan frameworks which establishes, the appropriate governance and seek funding to support the
delivery overarching programme.

Additionally SEG have developed a high level overview of a proposed integrated approach to estates regional healthcare. (Case for Change)

Collated a reflective story board that understands and integrates the collective progress we have made to date and next steps required to delivery a sustainable programme.
(attached)

Continue to build Stakeholder relations across Wirral, e.g Wirral Council that fosters collaborative working and opportunities for Estates and efficiencies.
Supporting the PCN pilot 'Wirral Neighbourhood Hood Model'

Escalations/ Barriers to Delivery:
Need to understand overarching programme governance for SEG to reform to align, allowing information flow and decision making to be understood to provide system assurance.

Group need sight of (PCN) GP developed clinical strategies.
Assessment of requirements needs to integrated with Wirral Health Plan / programme
Need to identify leads for transformational change programmes

Need funding to support systems and programme delivery

Project Name Project Status Oerall Project MIestone  gonefits RAG  Risk RAG  Issue RAG  Highlight Report
Accommodation Requests and Move Managemen No Change [ ] [ ] Accommodation Requests and Move Management - Highlight Repor
Achieving Net Zero Carbon No Change [ ] [ ] Achieving Net Zero Carbon - Highlight Report
Capital Overview Prioritisation and Pipeline No Change o [ ] Capital Overview Prioritisation and Pipeline - Highlight Report
Disposal and Void Management No Change [ ] [ ] Disposal and Void Management - Highlight Report
Estates Data Baselining No Change @ ® Estates Data Baselining - Highlight Report

Place Medicines Optimisation Programme

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Lucy Reid o m

Place Medicines Optimisation

Programme Commentary

Progress this month:

« Agreement has been reached to create a single oversight group for MO delivery in Wirral bringing together Medicines Management Committee and Wirral Pharmacy System Leads
group. The terms of reference has been drafted and are to be agreed in October with the group to meet for the first time in November. This aligns with wider Wirral Place MO and ICS
governance arrangements

+ Engagement has continued between senior MO stakeholders which has enabled progress on programme governance arrangements

« Programme/project structure has been created in Smartsheets and continues to be developed

« Wirral place pharmacy leads continue to meet and collaborate on Wirral wide work. Work plans have been shared at the last next meeting

« Pharmacy leads meeting now includes safety as a focussed agenda item once a quar‘(erp \éer input, especially PCN, and shared learning.

Escalations: Providers have shared their CIP information in a written format or verbally apart from organisations who have not been in attendance at Wirral Place meetings



Overall

Project Name Project Status Project g\lzslone girgﬂts E:é ‘;Zlée Highlight Report
Programme Mobilisation No Change [ ] [ ] @  Programme Mobilisation - Highlight Report
Care Homes and Social care No Change @  Care Homes and Social Care - Highlight Report
Patient awareness and engagement No Change ® @  Patient awareness and engagement - Highlight Report
Mental Health No Change @  Mental Health - Highlight Report
Community Pharmacy No Change ® @®  Community Pharmacy - Highlight Report
Polypharmacy and Tackling Health Inequalities No Change [ ] ©®  Polypharmacy and Tackling health inequalities - Highlight |
Medicines Value No Change ® @®  Medicines Value - Highlight Report
Medicines Safety No Change [ ] @®  Medicines Safety - Highlight Report
Antimicrobial Resistance and Stewardship No Change [ ] @  Antimicrobial Resistance and Stewardship - Highlight Rep
Collaboration No Change [ ] @®  Collaboration - Highlight Report
Place Workforce Programme
Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan

Debs Smith m

Place Workforce

Programme Commentary

Summary: The key activities to build the strategic workforce planning and programme enabling functions require the establishment of clear and achievable programme priorities for
2023-4 and beyond. From this an accountability and reporting framework for the wider programme will be established alongside agreed project sub groups, leadership and
membership

Progress this month: The terms of reference for the group have been drafted and shared with the Wirral Place Governance Group to ensure they are congruent with the wider place
governance framework. The Place Risk summary has been completed, identifying the principal risks, mitigations and assurances. A Wirral Place Workforce summit was held on
13/09/23 with the aim of supporting the priority setting process and aligning a work plan with the strategic aims. This was well attended by stakeholders who were enthusiastic in their
support of the programme. The outputs from this workshop will support the immediate (2023-24) work plan priorities as well as identify the key 5 year workforce strategic aims.

Escalations: None

Project Name Project Status Ourall Project MIestone  ponefits RAG  Risk RAG  Issue RAG  Highlight Report
Baseline Mapping for Wirral Workforce No Change [ ] ® Baseline Mapping_for Wirral Workforce - Highlight Report
Wirral Workforce Strategy No Change [ ] [ ] Wirral Workforce Strategy - Highlight Report

At Scale Programme

Place Supported Programmes

Programme SRO Programme RAG Programme Plan Performance Charts
Hayley Kendall m ®
Wirral Place Health and Care Plan At Scale - Trajectories v Actual

Programme Commentary

ELECTIVE RECOVERY:

In July 2023, the Trust attained an overall performance of 96% against plan for outpatients and an overall performance of 84% against plan for elective admissions

The Trust was on plan to achieve the activity plan in July but was impacted by Industrial Action

REFERRAL TO TREATMENT:

The national standard is to have no patients waiting over 104 weeks from March 2023 and to eliminate routine elective waits of over 78 weeks by April 2023 and 65 week waits by
March 2024. The Trust's performance at the end of July against these indicators was as follows:

+ 104+ Week Wait Performance — zero

* 78+ Week Wait Performance - 2

+ 65+ Week Wait Performance - 317

« 52+ Week Wait Performance - 1459 (0 by March '25)

» Waiting List Size - there were 42,632 patients on an active RTT pathway

WUTH have continue to support neighbouring Trusts by offering mutual aid to treat very long waiting patients through the Cheshire and Merseyside Surgical Centre and this will
continue through the year.

CANCER: Quarter 2 to date: « 2 Week Waits — performance at the end of July was 89.2% + Faster Diagnosis Standard — was 79.12% + NSS Numbers — remains zero « 31 Day
Treatment Numbers - Above trajectory and expected to continue. « 62 Day CA Performance - Target 188 vs Actual 203 « 104 Day CA Performance - Target 41 vs Actual 49 As with all
Trusts across C&M delivery against the 31- and 62-day indicators remains a priority but given the increases in demand the recovery of performance against the targets remains a
focus for 2023/24. The surgical working group, focussing on cancer pathways and long waiting patients, commenced in February and continues with its multi-disciplinary approach in
the management of patient pathways at 104 and 62 days. Colorectal remains focussed in the workstreams to improve the patient pathway and positive results are beginning to yield,
although remains a concern. Urology recovery performance is below plan and the Division are undertaking a full review complete with remedial actions.

DIAGNOSTICS:

In July 95.10% of patients waited 6 weeks or less for their diagnostic procedure for those modalities included within the DMO01. This is against the national standard of 95% and
requirement for Trust's to achieve 95% by March 2025.

RISKS TO RECOVERY AND MITIGATIONS

The clinical divisions are continuously working through options to reduce the backlogs of patients awaiting elective treatment and progress is being made to improve waiting times for
patients. These include the recruitment of new staff, with a focus on consultants, additional activity outside of core capacity. The two major risks to the delivery of the elective recovery
programme are the continually high bed occupancy levels and future impact of industrial action.

On strike days, elective activity is being managed patient by patient to ensure minimal disruption to our patients whilst maintaining safe standards of care across the hospital sites,
with a focus to keep patient cancellations to an absolute minimum.

MATERNITY:

Vacancies at less than 1%

Page 70



Agenda Item 10

Unscheduled Care Improvement Programme Update

Title

Authors

Janelle Holmes, CEO Wirral University Teaching Hospital

Report for Wirral Place Based Partnership Board

19" October 2023

Date of Meeting

Report Purpose and Recommendations

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information and assurance on the work
of the Unscheduled Care Improvement Programme for Wirral.

It is recommended that the Board: Note the update

Key Risks

This report relates to these key Risks:

Acute hospital beds are not available for people who meet the criteria to reside in hospital.
This may result in the further risks of:

. Patient deconditioning and potential harm associated with long lengths of stay

. The inability to work through the elective recovery backlog

. Shared resources are not used in the most efficient and effective way possible,
therefore not aiding financial recovery and sustainability

. Potential harm brought about by ambulance handover delays and corridor care.

The main driver for the Unscheduled Care Improvement Programme is to mitigate the above
risks.

Governance journey

Date
22 June 2023

Report Title

Purpose/Decision

Resolved — That: (1) the
update be noted (2) the
programme approach
be endorsed.

Unscheduled Care
Programme

Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board

27 July 2023

28 September 2023

Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board

Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board

Unscheduled Care
Improvement
Programme

Update on the
Transfer of Care
Hub Workstream,
Unscheduled Care
Improvement
Programme

Resolved — That the
update be noted.

Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board

Page 71



11

Background

111

At September’s meeting it was reported that the Unscheduled Care Improvement
Programme continues to make significant progress in the delivery of the key
programme milestones. This progress has again continued across its 5 workstreams
with the aim of improving urgent and emergency care services in Wirral. The sentinel
measure of the programme success is a sustained reduction in the No Criteria to
Reside (NCTR) numbers where the Wirral system has been a national and regional
outlier for a significant period. This has brought with it national NHS and Local
Authority leadership scrutiny and an expectation for improvement, which we are now
seeing. This report provides the Board with evidence of that improvement to date and
assurance of the decision of endorsement of the programme presented at
September’s meeting.

1.1.2

Analysis of data since the previous report, shows a ‘statistically significant’ reduction
in the number of hospital inpatients with NCTR (sentinel measure). In direct
correlation with the improvement of the NCTR position, statistically significant
improvement is also being seen in the Length of Stay (LOS) of both 14 and 21 days.
The NCTR number has reduced from 124 in August to 117 in September. The
progress made is reflected in Wirral's improved position in the Cheshire & Mersey
ICS with Wirral remaining in 2nd position out of 7 areas, where Wirral consistently
was in bottom position at the start of the programme.

1.1.3

It continues to be the case that the continued improvement is directly related to the
new Transfer of Care Hub. The Hub is continuing to embed standardised daily
workflow processes and developing the Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s) to
ensure they are in place before winter. The impact of this is demonstrated by the
NCTR number reaching 106 in September from improved flows of patients across the
sector and on track to meet the programme trajectory target of no more than 100 by
1st November.

The transfer of care hub is developing a command centre which will provide live
demand and capacity information from across the system. This is enabled through
the development of digital systems and improved reporting which enables patients to
be tracked through any part of their discharge journey. In addition, all other
programme workstreams have met milestones this month with the anticipated
benefits of Home First, Care Market Sufficiency and AbleMe creating further
improvements to the NCTR numbers as they further develop.

1.14

To further support programme progress, Wirral system leads have agreed for Sir
John Bolton OBE, a Consultant in capacity planning to work with the Wirral system in
order to help Wirral develop a medium-term system demand and capacity plan. Wirral
system data has already been shared and the working group, which will support
development of the plan is to meet for the first time on the 9™ October. The Board will
be kept up to date with progress of the plan development.

1.15

Work is in progress to finalise the Winter Plan which is being overseen by the Wirral
Chief Officers Operational Management Group. The final Winter Plan will be taken to
October’s Unscheduled Care programme Board on the 31st October for approval and
then brought to November’s Wirral Place Based Partnership Board.

1.1.6

The Board is asked to note the update.

1.2

Background Information

1.2.1

Since the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board (WPBPB) meeting on the 28"
September 2023, programme delivery has been progressing within the refreshed
Unscheduled Care Improvement Rsogramns.

rayc 14




1.2.2

To further support programme progress Wirral system leads have agreed for Sir John
Bolton OBE, a consultant in capacity planning to work with the Wirral system for 5
days funded by the BCF National Team in order to help Wirral pull together a
medium-term system demand and capacity plan. This will focus on having the right
range and amount of support to continue to facilitate pathways out of hospital,
avoiding hospital step up and step-down services. The development of the demand
and capacity plan is underpinned by two stakeholder working groups. The group is
due to meet for the first time on the 9" October. Wirral system data has already been
shared. The Board will be kept up to date with progress of the plan development.

1.2.3

Work is in progress to finalise the Winter Plan which is being overseen by the Wirral
Chief Officers Operational Management Group. The final Winter Plan will be taken to
October’s Unscheduled Care Programme Board on the 31st October for approval and
then brought to November’s Wirral Place Based Partnership Board.

1.2.4

Transfer of Care Hub: Following the go-live of the new Transfer of Care Hub on the
1st July, which coincided with Adult Social Care staff transferring back to the Council,
there has been a significant amount of work undertaken. The focus has been on the
delivery of the medium-term objectives, which include developing detailed SOP’s for
all processes, making changes to the Cerner system, with some now complete, to
enable the improved management of the patient discharge pathway, improved
reporting and establishing an electronic transfer of care form to improve the
assessment of patients and improving the time between the patient having no criteria
to reside and discharge from hospital. In addition, work has started on staff
development and the more practical elements of the Hub. A proposal has been
developed with the Wirral University Teaching Hospital (WUTH) Organisational
Development team which includes a set of recommendations and development plan.
Work continues with the Estates team to improve the workplace and Hub
environment, developing the “control room” approach to the transfer of care. This
activity will continue to contribute to a more effective way of working, improved
performance and improved patient experience and outcomes along with improving
Wirral’s performance against the NCTR metrics, given pre-April 2023 Wirral was a
regional and national outlier in this area. The improvements against the NCTR and
long LOS metrics are detailed in the graphs below:

Mo of inpatients not meeting the Criteria to Reside Mo of inpatients with LoS 21+ days

250 350 @
. [

] N 1 ety ft @ 0o
200 . - . 300
 ,* A

- [ ]
150 L 250 = wihags &

Y ¥ _aan T sty La™
‘. pr o e, 8 &

200

100

L |
50 150 e ¥

1405 /23

1.2.5

Transfer of Care Hub shared governance arrangements, between Wirral Borough
Council and WUTH have commenced, with the Transfer of Care Hub Quality Board
meeting for the first time in September. The terms of reference for the Board have
been agreed and future meetings diarised. The Board will continue to meet on a
monthly basis.

1.2.6

The two enabling workstreams estakﬂjsgc?g, If),iupport the implementation of the




programme, which report into the Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC) Programme
Board are well established and continue to deliver their objectives.

1.2.7

Finance, Contracts and Commissioning Enabling Workstream Group (FCC Group):
This group was established to ensure that budget and commissioning intentions are
aligned to well understood capacity and demand requirements and support the
transformation work. The workstream is led by the Wirral Place Director and includes
representatives from all partner organisations. A number of key milestones have now
been completed, including the establishment of the financial envelope for
unscheduled care for 2023/24 and agreement reached on how the financial resources
for unscheduled care will be deployed. The Finance and Investment Group will
monitor any slippage or overspend to enable remedial action to be taken and seek
assurance on value for money, costs avoided and costs saved. Clarity has also been
provided on the services that are commissioned for unscheduled care in Wirral,
paying particular attention to those services from the “front door” through to the “back
door” of Arrowe Park Hospital. This will continue to be updated and worked through
with the Chief Operating Officers group. All actions that have arisen from this group
have been assigned to executive level groups to be progressed, therefore it has been
agreed that the FCC Group will be stood down until further notice.

1.2.8

Workforce Enabling Programme Group: The objective of this group is to develop a
joined-up and sustainable workforce plan because many of the delivery projects
include a strong reliance of having a robust and sustainable workforce. The group
was established following the recognition that there is a potential for Wirral partners to
work together smarter when planning and designing our unscheduled care workforce,
especially during times of scaling up teams. The group is being led by one of the
partner Directors of Human Resources and has input from all partner organisations.
The group has met twice and provided ongoing opportunities to raise any workforce
related issues. The group is scheduled to meet again in October.

1.2.9

Progress against the programme and project metrics for the month of August:

e This metric is captured as a snapshot on the first of every month. August’'s
data shows continued good progress with a reduction from the previous
month, from 124 on the 1st August to 117 on the 1st September meaning the
target of 128 has been exceeded.

e As a direct consequence of the improvement of the NCTR position,
improvement is being seen in other key indicators. Long length of stay (LLOS)
for patients who have resided in a bed for over 21 days has seen a notable
reduction from 144 in August to 127 in September.

1.2.1

Supporting Metrics - supporting metrics are managed at a project level. Each of the
five supporting projects must be able to measure progress against one or more
metrics which, if achieved, will result in an improvement to the headline metric.

1.2.1

Care Market Sufficiency - the care market sufficiency project aims to increase the
overall number of new hours picked up by 14% from 2,822hrs per month in April to
3,212 hours per month in September. Additionally, it aims to increase the number of
new packages accepted by 10% from 263 packages per month in April to 288
packages per month in September. Both metrics cover all referral sources (e.g.
community and acute). August’s data shows both metrics are slightly under their
trajectory target. The overall number of new hours picked up is 3052 against a target
of 3134 and the number of new packages accepted remains the same as the
previous month at 281 against a target of 283.

1.2.1

Virtual Wards - the Virtual Ward prg'g&teai?i to double throughput on its frailty ward




2 from 40 patients per month in November 22, to 80 patients per month in August, then
to 120 per month in November 2023. The trajectory for the respiratory virtual ward
has been revised this month to reflect seasonal variation with throughput increasing
from 60 per month in August to 70 in September, then incrementally to 120 per month
in November 2023. August’s data shows a reduction in throughput on its frailty ward
on the previous month, from 50 in July to 31 in August, the target of 80 was not met,
due to challenges with medical staff cover over seven days Throughput on the
respiratory ward decreased on the previous month, from 68 in July to 53 in August,
not meeting the target of 60.

1.2.1 | The HomekFirst service is undergoing a large-scale expansion to its core staff base.

3 As such, it aims to increase the number of patients referred by the service by 215%
from 54 patients per month in April 23 to 170 patients per month in December 23. Up
to 88% of the patients referred into the service will be from the acute hospital and will
be patients who would otherwise have remained in hospital with no criteria to reside.
Performance for August shows that, overall, there has been a slight increase in
referrals accepted on the previous month from 95 in July to 96 in August, however the
target of 113 was not met. August’s data shows that pick-ups from hospital have
decreased on the previous month and have not met the target (72 against a target of
103). August’s data shows pick-ups for CICC are above target (19 against a target of
10). Work has progressed between partners to increase pick up from the hospital bed
base.

1.2.1 | The AbleMe project board met for the first time in September and held the first of a
4 series of co-production workshops with Adult Social care leads to design the AbleMe
service. Activity is on track to recruit to key roles for both the Registered manager
post and AbleMe practitioner role and the identification of the tasks and timeline for
both the CQC registration and HR workstream has been completed. The project
remains on track to agree the project level metrics.

2 Implications

2.1 | Risk Mitigation and Assurance

There is a risk that the projects will not be delivered in time due to availability of health
and care staff, which will need to be recruited to support increased activity levels. This
risk is being managed by the workforce leads across Wirral, who are actively
monitoring recruitment levels against the trajectory and are actively seeking out
innovative recruitment practices to help attract more people into the professions.

All project risks are captured and monitored in a programme risk register within a single
electronic programme management system. Risks are managed in line with the
framework set out in the Wirral Place monitoring and control strategy. Risks are
reviewed and updated on a weekly basis and where a risk is not able to be resolved
within the project it will be escalated to the Unscheduled Care Programme Board.

2.2 Financial

Patients who remain in hospital with NCTR have a significant financial impact on the
Wirral system. Having a programme that is focussed on moving people into services
that provide the right type of care, at the right time, will bring about non-cashable
efficiencies and improve quality and safety.

2.3 | Legal and regulatory

Page 75




There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

2.4 Resources

N/A

2.5 | Engagement and consultation

Weekly meetings are taking place within each of the individual project teams, to ensure
that progress is being tracked and that stakeholders are engaged.

A weekly senior operational managers group is in place to review and manage the
many co-dependencies between the projects.

A monthly Programme Board is in place to provide a point of escalation from the
projects and to unblock issues.

A fortnightly SRO meeting is in place with the senior leads from each workstream.

2.6 | Equality

All projects will give due regard to equality implications and will complete an equality
impact assessment where needed.

2.7 Environment and Climate

There are no environment and climate implications from the report.

2.8 | Community Wealth Building

Recruitment programmes are actively seeking to recruit Wirral residents.

3 Conclusion

3.1 | This report provides the Board with evidence and assurance that the Unscheduled
Care Improvement Programme continues to make significant progress in delivery,
improving patient experience for Wirral residents. This is clearly evidenced with the
sentinel measure of the programme success, the sustained reduction in NCTR
numbers where the Wirral system has been a national and regional outlier for a
significant period.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Unscheduled care programme highlight report 26.09.23
Appendix 2 — Cheshire and Merseyside long length of stay report

Author James Barclay

Contact Number

Email james.barclayl@nhs.net

Page 76



Wirral Place Unscheduled Care Programm

Latest rative Update

Headline Metric (NCTR): This metric is captured as a snapshot on the first of every month. August’s data shows continued good progress with a reduction from the previous month,
from 124 on the 1st August to 117 on the 1st September meaning the target of 128 has been exceeded.

Three out of five projects have now agreed their supporting metrics and are actively reporting (i.e. metrics that will lead to a reduction in the NCTR headline metric). The metrics for the
Transfer of Care Hub have been agreed and the Cerner build change to enable the capture and reporting of these metrics is expected to go-live WC 18th September.

The care market sufficiency project aims to increase the overall number of new hours picked up by 14% from 2,822hrs per month in April to 3,212hrs per month in September.
Additionally, it aims to increase the number of new packages accepted by 10% from 263 packages per month in April to 288 packages per month in September. Both metrics cover all
referral sources (e.g. community and acute). August’s data shows both metrics are slightly under their trajectory target. The overall number of new hours picked up is 3052 against a
target of 3134 and the number of new packages accepted remains the same as the previous month at 281 against a target of 283.

The Virtual Ward project aims to double throughput on its frailty ward from 40 patients per month in November 22, to 80 patients per month in August, then to 120 per month in
November 2023. The trajectory for the respiratory virtual ward has been revised this month to reflect seasonal variation with throughput increasing from 60 per month in August to 70 in
September, then incrementally to 120 per month in November 2023. August’s data shows a reduction in throughput on its frailty ward on the previous month, from 50 in July to 31 in
August, the target of 80 was not met. Throughput on the respiratory ward decreased on the previous month, from 68 in July to 53 in August, not meeting the target of 60.

The HomeFirst service is undergoing a large-scale expansion to its core staff base. As such, it aims to increase the number of patients referred by the service by 215% from 54
patients per month in April 23 to 170 patients per month in December 23. Up to 88% of the patients referred into the service will be from the acute hospital and will be patients who
would otherwise have remained in hospital with no criteria to reside. Performance for August shows that, overall, there has been a slight increase in referrals accepted on the previous
month from 95 in July to 96 in August, however the target of 113 was not met. August’s data shows that pick-ups from hospital have decreased on the previous month and have not met
the target (72 against a target of 103). August’s data shows pick-ups for CICC are above target (19 against a target of 10).

Community Reablement are yet to agree project level metrics. However, action plans are in place and being actively tracked and managed by the project SRO.

Progress against our headline metric

Acute Inpatients with NCTR About our headline metric
Our guiding measure of success is the
250 number of acute inpatients with no criteria to
. Target reside (NCTR). People who remain in
hospital without a criteria to reside are
Actual
200 200 200 . etz known to deteriorate faster than they would
if they were in their normal home. It is for
167 167 171 that reason that the system must work
towards no more than 5% of acute beds
150 134 143 being occupied by people with no criteria to
124 128 reside.
17 14
101 100 At the start of the programme (1st April) the
100 number of beds occupied by people with
NCTR was 200 with the target to reduce this
to no more than 70 by 1st August.

50 Arevised programme trajectory has been
endorsed by place partners in July with the
new trajectory targets revised from 1st
August onwards. The revised trajectory

0 target is to reduce the number of beds
01/04/23 01/05/23 01/06/23 01/07/23 01/08/23 01/09/23 01/10/23 01/11/23 occupied by people with NCTR to no more
than 100 by 1st November.
Project-level targets: Care Market Sufficiency
Overall hours picked up Number of packages accepted
4000 3607 350
w500 3459 ‘ Target 313 288 . Target
3255 3212 Actual 300 27881 28281 Actual
253 313450 o 26265 26859 27 ®
3000 282 @ Dec 2019 levels 250 @ Dec 2019 levels
2500
200
2000
150
1500
100
1000
50
(o]
Apr-23  May-23  Jun-23  Jul-23  Aug-23  Sep-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-z3 Aug-23 Sep-23

Project Level Targets: Virtual Wards

Frailty Virtual Ward - Patient Throughput Respiratory Virtual Ward - Patient Throughput
140 140
120 Target T 1
120 . arge! 120 120 arge
. Actual . Actual
100 100
80 80 81
80 80
0 60 6059 60 608 608 605560 6069 G
40 4040 I iz i&iﬂi Ii II Ii EiI I I I I II Ii II II I
AN F & Page l 4 IS Y@L IS
Ac?‘z h‘zf’m 3§ Q‘? ¥ ,@& 3§ << ¥



Overall Pick up target

180
160
140
120
100

April-23

Hospital pick-up targets

180
140
120
100
7171

59
4446 44I I
0 II I

LA S
o

N O
S S © o

A
?R"\ 5\)‘\z D

oY

Project-level targets: Home First

157

May-23 June-23 July-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23

157

Nov-23

. Total Planned Pick-up Levels . Actual Pick-up

147 147 150 150 150 150 25

129
91 103
Ii I72
o >
WL R I BN

£ H
W T ¢ o W

18

o

. Total Hospital Pick-up Levels . Actual Hospital Pick-up

>
v‘?“\\ﬂ x&"’*n

»

CICC Pick-Up Targets

23
20

20

15 13

1088 1088 10 10I
10

()I I I I

o p R

o

IS

170

139
101 13
95 96
82 g1
80
64
s 54 54
40
20
0 0 0 0
0

Dec-23

19
10| 10

> )
& &

2

10
)

oo

170 170 170

0 0 0

Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24

20 20 20 20
10 | |
R S SN
o e

@ Total CICC Pick-up Levels (@) Actual GIGG Pick-up

Project level target: Transfer of Care Hub

Project level metrics not yet agreed

Project level target: Community Reablement

Project level metrics not yet agreed

Project Milestone Plans

Unscheduled Care Programme Plan

Primary Milestone Progress Start Finish
Sheet Name
AbleMe - Project Plan (
Design Phase
Implementation Phase 30/06/23 30/06/23
Sheet Name
CMS Plan V3
Social Work team to use
Brokerage model for Care
Home Placements. Message to market to pick up placements using brokerage system only 23/09/22 31/10/23
MILESTONE: QIP Care Provider Improvement Policy underway which will go to Policy Board. Policy signed off at
Homes Board. 01/03/23 31/10/23
Care Home Contract and
Policies 99% ready. Should be signed off early September and floated at the October provider forum. 23/09/22 29/04/24
JM met with DB some plans in place that are being worked through on a regional basis.
Regional piece of work led by Darren. Strong links into Housing Market. Scheme in place in
Hoyle Road to support MH Discharges . Further development of MH support including
addition of 8 Bower Apartments in Birkenhead being used for step down, 5 new supported
living providers and further discussions around the housing model, this will need some
discussion around benefits. Escalation come in last week. 11 people. 8 vacancies available,
but team not aware of. Availability shows on brokerage. Ongoing discussions with Darren
Birks. Further work to be undertaken with MH teams. DL monitoring packages that are
Mental Health patient circulating across the board closely. DL to discuss with Jayne and share update. DB on
flow and capacity paternity leave so update not available for a couple of weeks. 03/10/22 01/09/23
Increased recruitment numbers and positive feedback coming through. This will show in the
April KPI's. The next joint NHS and WBC "Care across Wirral" recruitment day is scheduled
in for 30th September 23. DG meeting 2.8.23, update to follow. Event on 30th September
Recruitment Events 01/04/23 14/11/23

has been postponed due to strikes. New date set for 11.11.23 P 7 8n
* Awaiting review of Home First Service which is currently being r vie\agﬁn Stephens.

Workshops to take place over next few weeks. Specification work can begin once this

2022 2023 2024
Q1 Q2 Q3 @4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Implementation Phase

Social Work team to use Br

MILESTONE: QIP Care Ho

Care Home Cor

Mental Health patient flow and

Recruitment Events

Service Specifica



YT vILE YpTLIILauun PIULSDS 11ad USTH uUIS. corvuieo Viiusee

Sheet Name

HomeFirst Expansion |

Q1-41WTE Q1 recruitment underway and aiming to have 40 WTE in post by 31/05 01/04/23 31/05/23 Q1-41WTE
Q2 recruitment will increase staffing levels from 40 to 59WTE by 31/05/23. Ahead of plan for 31/08/23 Q2-77 WTE
Q2-77 WTE 01/07/23
Q3-102 WTE By 31/07/23 staff numbers will increase to 93 WTE 01/10/23 30/11/23 Q3 - 102 WTE
Q4 - 102 WTE By 31/10/23 staff numbers will increase to 102 01/01/24 29/02/24 Q4 -102 WTE
Sheet Name
Virtual Wards - Project
COPD SOP has been to divisional business group twice with updates made. SOP is being SOP and other Pracedures
updated to include new pathways CAP & Bronchiectasis. Revised version to be approved by
31/10/2023.
SOP and other Frailty SOP - final version awaiting ratification with WCHC Clinical Assurance Group and
Procedures WUTH Divisional of Medicine Quality Board 01/12/22 31/08/23
Stakeholder Engagement ARI comms plan complete and commenced. New pathways launch 1st September. Comms Stakeholder Engagement anc
and Communication plan for frailty being developed jointly with WCHC. 30/06/23 29/09/23
Data, Activity and Data, Activity and Performance
Performance CERNER power forms and inpatient ward build preparing to launch 02/10/2023 30/06/23 31/08/23
Clinical Governance structure approved at Medicine Quality Board in July 2023. Weekly Governance and Meds Mgmt
governance huddles commenced. Monthly VFW Clinical Governance and Operational
Meeting to commence 28/09/2023.
Governance and Meds VFW team moved to St Caths 12/06/2023, move has resolved issues of meds storage a/w
Mgmt cabinet and shelves to be fitted. 31/10/22 31/08/23
Recruitment for Frailty VW Medical roles has been a challenge. New GP commencing Recruitment
beginning of September, but 6 sessions remain uncovered. Workforce Workshop 07/09/2023
mapped workforce requirements. FVW reliant on two locum clinical fellows whilst recruitment
Recruitment is complete. 14/06/23 14/06/23
Plan in development to increase VFW beds to 30 . Implementation of telehealth in planning 4 Phase Three Bed release
Phase Three Bed release stage to support increased bed numbers. 29/09/23 29/09/23
Sheet Name
Wirral Discharge Hub -
Design Phase In Progress - the project is now in the detailed design phase where the team are developing ni 25/04/23 21/07/23 Design Phase
Review Phase Not started - in this phase we will review the changes and plan for sustaining improvements  01/09/23 01/09/23 Review Phase
Post 1st July - Wirral Post 1st July - Wirral Transf:
Transfer of Care Hub 12/07/23 23/10/23

Final draft complete 13/10/23 18/10/23
SOP sign-off - Initial sign-
off at Hub Quality Board 19/10/23 19/10/23

Discharge Hub Workflow
status capture (through

Cerner) 20/07/23 02/10/23
Cerner status capture live 21/09/23 21/09/23
Report live and new KPIs

added to dashboard 02/10/23 02/10/23
SToC development 20/07/23 23/10/23
SToC build/testing 18/09/23 13/10/23
SToC live 16/10/23 16/10/23
Modelling & Winter

resilience 15/08/23 25/08/23
Initial model shared and

further developed 21/08/23 25/08/23

Hub Quality Board 24/08/23 22/09/23
First meet of Hub Quality

Board 21/09/23 21/09/23
Indicative OD plan

agreed 25/07/23 06/10/23
OD Lead to present

recommendations and

agree plan 25/09/23 06/10/23

Project Updates

.

Final draft complete

SOP sign-off - Initial sign-off

.

Discharge Hub Workflow stat

Cerner status capture live

Report live and new KPlIs adc

SToC development
SToC build/testing
SToC live

Modelling & Winter resilience

Initial model shared and further

O A

Hub Quality Board

First meet of Hub Quality Boa

Indicative OD plan agreed

OD Lead to present recomm¢

The RAG statuses shown here are a high-level view,

Primary Link to highlight report  Project RAG

Care Market Sufficiency Care Market Sufficiency ®
- Project Highlight
Report

Virtual Wards Virtual Wards - Project If you would
Highlight Report

Discharge Hub Wirral Discharge Hub - o
Project Highlight Report

HomeFirst HomerFirst - Project o If you would
Highlight Report

Reablement Reablement - Project James Barcl

Highlight Report

Page 79

subjective view of the status of each project. They are
updated fortnightly, as a minimum.

like to see more information, please click the

‘link to highlight report', which will show the latest narrative
report, the project plan and the project risks and issues.

like to discuss any of the projects, please

contact the Healthy Wirral UEC Programme Manager:

ay on james.barclay1@nhs.net


https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=5a185a87686c4d77a9d5483a725c264c
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=5a185a87686c4d77a9d5483a725c264c
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=5a185a87686c4d77a9d5483a725c264c
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=7ed7c15b092c45ed9ba78fbc6000f449
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=7ed7c15b092c45ed9ba78fbc6000f449
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=2552c60e738249fd9a2da52d20e908cf
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=2552c60e738249fd9a2da52d20e908cf
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=827915451a414100abe070f52847e989
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=827915451a414100abe070f52847e989
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=4b90266cb9d44347afb7e78489b51b19
https://app.smartsheet.eu/b/publish?EQBCT=4b90266cb9d44347afb7e78489b51b19

This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS i pe s b e

C&M Long Stay Report

Brief Description:
This report aims to provide a summary of the key metrics in relation to the following areas:

Page

1.

Title

Long Stay Summary

Long Stay Trust Detail
AED Performance

Ambulance Handover

Care Homes

Non-Criteria to Reside

Reasons why Patients
Continue to Reside

Frequency: Daily
Author: Jeanette Smart

Date:

03/10/2023

Content

Latest C&M position in relation to beds occupied by long stay patients
(7+, 14+ and 21+ days).

Comparison of number of long stay patients against local trajectory split by Trust
Latest position in relation to AED 4 Hour performance at adult acute Trusts.

Latest position in relation to ambulance arrival to handover times at adult acute

Trusts
Latest position in relation to data integrity and care home closures

Comparison of number of patients who meet criteria for discharge against local

trajectory split by Trust.

Reasons why patients with 7+, 14+ and 21+ length of stay continue to reside split by

Trust.

Page 81



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS e RS e
C&M Long Stay Summary Latest Data:  01/10/2023 ... v

= Activity for patients staying 7+, 14+ and 21+ days have all increased on the previous day.

» C&M bed occupancy rate has increased on the previous day; 95.5% of General and Acute beds are currently occupied, this is
an increase of 0.3% on this same time last week. Countess of Chester are reporting the highest rate with 96.9% of beds
currently occupied.

= 55% of all occupied beds are for patients staying 7+ days, 35% for 14+ days and 25% for 21+ days.

= The latest weekly % of beds occupied by 7+ day length of stay patient is 56.2% compared to the national figure of 50.9%

G&A Bed Occupancy - 2022/23

100% 97.1%
94.9%  798% 95.5%

92.7%

90%
89.7% 90.2% 90.1%

86.6%
80% g1 .50

77.8%

70%
Jul 2021 Jan 2022 Jul 2022 Jan 2023 Jul 2023

Adult Patients Occupying a Bed for 21+, 14+ and 7+ Days - 2022/23

3K
7+ Days
K =14+ Days
=21+ Days
1K — 14+ Trajectory
=21+ Trajectory
0K

Jul 2021 Jan 2022 Jul 2022 Jan 2023 Jul 2023

Daily Number of Occupied Beds by Adult Long Stay Patients

Patients  Previous Previous % of Occ
kOS Day Week Beds
7+ Days 2693 A 89 v -19 55.3%
14+ Days 1725 A 35 vV -16 35.4%
21+ Days 1201 A 34 A 24 24.7%

Bed Occupancy Hagg‘ﬂz A 07% A 03%



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS

C&M Long Stay Trust Detail

Latest Data: 01/10/2023 ...

Trust Level Comparison of Long Stay Patients Against Local Trajectory

14+ Days 21+ Days

Trust Target Actual Variance Target  Actual Variance
Countess of Chester Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 76 140 + 64 54 93 + 39
East Cheshire NHS Trust 58 88 + 30 39 58 + 19
Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 268 575 + 307 179 424 + 245
Mersey and West Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 354 366 o 12 242 250 + 8
Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 91 159 + 68 61 98 + 37
Warrington and Halton Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 88 179 + 91 59 122 + 63
Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 118 218 + 100 79 156 + 77
Total 1,053 1725 + 672 713 1201 + 488

Page 83



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS

C&M AED Performance

AED Performance

Latest Data: 02/10/2023

= Wirral are reporting the highest AED Performance of 77.5%. East Cheshire are reporting the lowest latest AED performance of

55.6%.

= Four of the seven C&M Trusts are reporting increased performance compared to the same day the previous week.

100%
92.8%

80%

68.7%
60%

Jul 2021

78.3%

AED Performance

78.4%

75.2%

79.2%
74.0%

63.5% 64.1%
58.3%
Jan 2022 Jul 2022 Jan 2023 Jul 2023

Trust Short Name Current Var  Previous Var  Previous

Date Day Week
V'S
Countess 55.8% A 8.0% A 26%
East Cheshire 55.6% A 22% A 1.1%
LUHFT 70.0% Vv -1.9% Vv 27%
MAWL 74.7% A 51% A 14%
Mid Cheshire 57.9% VvV -31% VvV -8.0%
W&H 67.7% VvV -24% VvV -29%
Wirral 77.5% Vv -1.8% A 41%

67.9%

Number of Delays from Decision to Admit Over 12 Hours

Trust Short Name  Current Var Previous  Var  Previous
Date Day Week
Countess 16 A 5 v -9
East Cheshire 2 A 2 v -12
LUHFT 37 A 18 A 9
MAWL 17 A 6 A 4
Mid Cheshire 32 A 17 A 15
W&H 30 A 14 v -4
Wirral 11 A 8
Page 84



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS T - oo, R,
C&M Ambulance Handover Latest Data:  01/10/2023

Arrival to Handover Time

» LUHFT (Royal Site) are reporting the longest arrival to handover time of 33:38. Warrington & Halton are reporting the shortest
arrival to handover time of 12:08.

= One of the ten C&M hospital sites is currently achieving the 15-minute target.

Average Arrival to Handover Time (Mins)

200
150 142
100 87
73
50
19 20 19 19 22
0
Jul 2021 Jan 2022 Jul 2022 Jan 2023 Jul 2023
Trust Latest Date +/- Previous  +/- Previous
Day Var Week Var
Countess of Chester Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 00:25:09 - 00:30:51 - 01:14:44
East Cheshire NHS Trust 00:25:32 + 00:12:34 - 00:00:00
= Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 00:26:12 + 00:02:03 + 00:06:19
LUHFT (Aintree site) 00:18:46 - 00:05:38 + 00:03:01
LUHFT (Royal site) 00:33:38 + 00:09:47 + 00:09:34
Mersey and West Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 00:19:14 - 00:16:07 - 00:13:18
Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 00:23:17 - 00:03:05 + 00:03:00
Warrington and Halton Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 00:12:08 - 00:03:06 - 00:02:23
Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 00:17:43 - 00:03:41 - 00:05:01
Total 00:22:05 - 00:05:30 - 00:06:39

Page 85



oo ¢ .
. . .h" ..'u g ; 1’ . J“‘F » ] -
Cheshire & Merseyside ICS i e = ‘L o
- ' .
C&M Care Homes Latest Data: 03/10/2023

Data Integrity: Time Since Last Submission

Latest data show of the 663 care homes with a submission recorded 235 submitted either today or yesterday and 108 have
submitted within the past week. Of the remainder, 294 submitted within the last month and 26 care homes have not updated

their status within the within the last month.

NB. All adult care homes are mandated to submit between the 8th and the 14th of each month, therefore the most comprehensive
report would be on the 15th of each month. Care homes have been advised to continue to update as frequently as possible and to
resubmit if bed occupancy changes between mandated submissions.

600
@2a.0to 1 Day
@b. 2 to 7 Days
400
c. 1to 2 Weeks
d. 2 to 3 Weeks
e.3to4 Weeks 200

f. >4 Weeks

i M I !
: e
¢ 0
g ! : I g
o s
i .'i.‘|!i' il |||| |||| i i | “l I

Jan 2023 Mar 2023 May 2023 Jul 2023 Sep 2023

Care Home Status: Is Accepting Admissions? care homes who have submitted in the latest month only.

Latest data show of the 637 care homes with a status recorded 399 are open or partially open to admissions and 238 are

closed.
600 !‘!l!“ ll !
gl
o (2

400

200

Jan 2023 Mar 2023 May 2023 Jul 2023 Sep 2023

@ No: All vacancy types are closed @ Yes: Combination of partially open and open vacancy types

IsAccepting  Cheshire East Cheshire West Halton Knowsley Liverpool Sefton St Helens ~ Warrington Wirral Total
Admissions and Chester

-
No 26 23 15 9 30 50 17 17 51 238
Yes 71 58 11 Page 865 68 22 36 63 399

Total 97 81 26 24 85 118 39 53 114 637



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS ,. o ¥

C&M Non-Criteria to Reside (Weekly) Latest Data: 01/10/2023

Daily Discharge Numbers - 7 Day Moving Daily Discharge Numbers - 7 Day Moving Average Latest Date: 01 October 2023
g‘r,gee:a?()e"/ increase from wy/c 18/4/22 to 27/6/22) Trajectory =7 Day Moving Average I"USt Target Current Var
o (o)
Countess 15.8 410 252
Latest data show a 7 day moving average of 1000 EZT:;heSh're 3(5)‘; 1:;"2 lé';
502.4 patients discharged across C&M. This ' ' '
. . MAWL 266.1 113.7 -152.4
is_against the current target of 596.0 . : ,
'Ug Mid Cheshire 59.2 579 -1.3
2 o0 W&H 663 516 -147
D Wirral 82.8 717 -11.1
ES Total 5960 502.4 -93.6
o -89
Jan 2022 Apr 2022 Jul 2022 Oct 2022 Jan 2023 Apr 2023 Jul 2023
Daily Percentage of ALL Beds Occupied % of ALL Beds Occupied by Non-Criteria to Reside Patients Not Discharged Latest Date: 01 October 2023
by Non-Criteria to Reside Patients Not Non CTR Not Discharged = Sum of AdultTotalG&A_BedsOpen =% ALL Beds Occ by Non-C2R Not Disch IrUSt Target Current PP Var
Discharged *’WMM B Countess 100%  172%  7.2%
5K Vit A :
Latest data sh CaM 18.8% of Total Beds East Cheshire | 10.0% 6.4% -3.6%
atest data show across 16.6% 0 i« s LUHFT 100%  224% 12.4%
ALL beds are occupied by patients withno .. MAWL 100%  191%  91%
criteria to reside and have not been S K NCiR Ocupied % Mid Cheshire | 10.0%  20.7% 10.7%
discharged. This is against the current @ » 20%  W&H 10.0%  184%  84%
target of 10.0% . Wirral 100% 156%  56%
1K Total 10.0% 18.8% 8.8%

10%
Jan 2022 Apr 2022 Jul 2022 Oct 2022 Jan 2023 Apr 2023 Jul 2023



Cheshire & Merseyside ICS T >

C&M Non-Criteria to Reside (Weekly) Latest Data:

01/10/2023

Latest data show across C&M 18.5% of ALL beds (occupied + unoccupied) are occupied by patients with no
criteria to reside and have not been discharged. The table below shows the most recent weekly average for

C&M Providers.
Percentage of ALL Beds Occupied by Non-Criteria to Reside Patients Not

Latest Count of

Discharged Adult G&A Beds
Weekly Average

Irust 27/08/2023 03/09/2023 10/09/2023 17/09/2023 24/09/2023 01/10/2023 Irust

Countess 15.9% 16.6% 14.6% 16.6% 17.5% 17.1% Countess 424
East Cheshire 11.5% 15.0% 12.3% 13.6% 13.4% 7.3% East Cheshire 296
LUHFT 24.4% 24.7% 27.4% 26.5% 25.4% 24.8% LUHFT 1,477
MAWL 17.0% 16.6% 18.4% 19.2% 19.6% 20.9% MAWL 1,087
Mid Cheshire 15.7% 14.9% 18.4% 20.3% 20.3% 21.5% Mid Cheshire 455
W&H 26.1% 23.6% 22.0% 24.3% 22.0% 20.1% W&H 506
Wirral 18.7% 16.1% 18.3% 16.6% 16.8% 17.4% Wirral 703
Total 19.9% 19.4% 20.8% 21.1% 20.7% 20.4% Total 4,948

Page 88



.o ¢
. . i . X ; ‘." ¥
Cheshire & Merseyside ICS TR R Rl N
o N
. ]
C&M Reasons Patients Continue to Reside (Weekly) Latest Data:  01/10/2023
Reasons Why Patients Continue to Reside 7+ Days
Reason For Delay Short Name Countess | East Cheshire LUHFT MAWL | Mid Cheshire | W&H Wirral Total
Pathway 3 9 3 53 51 0 24 3 143
Awaiting confirmation from community 3 1 42 0 30 57 133
Pathway 1 24 1 34 21 0 11 28 119
Pathway 2 26 4 10 15 0 7 13 75
Awaiting medical decision 0 5 54 0 0 1 1 61
No Plan 0 0 44 1 0 2 7 54
Awaiting therapy decision 0 2 31 1 0 5 1 40
Awaiting diagnostic 1 0 35 0 0 0 0 36
Awaiting referral to community 7 0 2 1 0 4 0 14
Individual/family not in agreement 2 0 7 1 0 2 0 12
Homeless 2 0 6 1 0 2 0 11
Awaiting community equipment 1 1 2 3 0 1 0 8
Repatriation for specialist treatment 0 0 3 1 0 1 0 5
Safeguarding 1 0 3 1 0 0 0 5
Awaiting medicines 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2
Avoid spread of (non-Covid 19) infectious disease 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Declared as not meeting C2R 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Awaiting transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 73 19 285 139 0 92 112 720
Reasons Why Patients Continue to Reside 14+ Days
Reason For Delay Short Name Countess | East Cheshire LUHFT MAWL | Mid Cheshire | W&H Wirral Total
Pathway 3 9 3 50 47 0 21 3 133
Awaiting confirmation from community 0 3 1 29 0 25 51 109
Pathway 1 20 1 33 17 0 11 22 104
Pathway 2 22 2 10 12 0 5 11 62
Awaiting medical decision 0 5 43 0 0 0 1 49
No Plan 0 0 38 1 0 2 4 45
Awaiting diagnostic 1 0 31 0 0 0 0 32
Awaiting therapy decision 0 2 23 1 0 3 1 30
Individual/family not in agreement 1 0 7 1 0 2 0 1
Awaiting referral to community 6 0 1 1 0 2 0 10
Homeless 2 0 5 1 0 2 0 10
Awaiting community equipment 1 1 2 2 0 1 0 7
Repatriation for specialist treatment 0 0 2 1 0 1 0 4
Safeguarding 1 0 2 1 0 0 0 4
Avoid spread of (non-Covid 19) infectious disease 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Declared as not meeting C2R 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Awaiting medicines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Awaiting transport 0 D~AAK 0o O 0 0 0 0 0
Total 63 DAY T 48| 114 0 75 95 612




.o ¢

R PR i g U :

M M p »—__ & . ’
Cheshire & Merseyside ICS ‘ R R

- i
a ]
C&M Reasons Patients Continue to Reside (Weekly) Latest Data: 01/10/2023
Reasons Why Patients Continue to Reside 21+ Days

Reason For Delay Short Name Countess | East Cheshire | LUHFT MAWL Mid Cheshire W&H Wirral Total
Pathway 3 8 2 47 42 0 20 3 122
Pathway 1 18 1 28 11 0 10 18 86
Awaiting confirmation from community 0 2 1 23 0 17 34 77
Pathway 2 13 1 8 10 0 4 10 46
Awaiting medical decision 0 5 36 0 0 0 1 42
No Plan 0 0 33 0 0 2 2 37
Awaiting therapy decision 0 2 20 1 0 3 1 27
Awaiting diagnostic 1 0 22 0 0 0 0 23
Individual/family not in agreement 1 0 5 1 0 2 0 9
Awaiting referral to community 5 0 1 1 0 1 0 8
Homeless 1 0 5 1 0 1 0 8
Awaiting community equipment 1 1 2 2 0 0 0 6
Repatriation for specialist treatment 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
Safeguarding 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
Avoid spread of (non-Covid 19) infectious disease 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Declared as not meeting C2R 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Awaiting medicines 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Awaiting transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 48 14 212 94 0 60 71 499

Page 90



Wirral Neighbourhoods

Wirral Localities Aligned
to GP Practice

@ Birkenhead (15)

& south wirral (10)

@ Wallasey (17)
@ West Wirral (10)

Wirral Neighbourhoods
Aligned to LSOA

B Birkenhead A (25)
['] Birkenhead B (29)
M South Wirral A (18)
B South Wirral B (21)
| Wallasey A (16)
Wallasey B (21)
B WwallaseyC  (19)
[ West Wirral A (26)
B West Wirral B (31)

16 abed .~
d
&

Public Health Intelligence Team
Wirral Intelligence Service

TT Wal| epusby



26 abed

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Primary Care Networks (PCNs) form a key part of primary care. First developed
within the NHS Five Year Forward View published in 2014, and formally
established in July 2019, they are now part of a model of care in which
commissioners and providers work together in different ways to achieve closer
integration of services locally.

Primary Care Networks - background

PCNs are a core component of the NHS Long Term Plan and as such are key to the
delivery of digital services at scale. Developments since 2019 include online
consultations; cloud-based telephony systems; SMS messaging to patients

PCNs provide services according to the Network Contract DES (Directed Enhanced
Service) Specification which sets out their entitlements and requirements.

The range of services to be delivered under the DES include; Enhanced Access;
Structured Medicines Reviews; Enhanced Health in Care Homes; Early Cancer
diagnosis; Social Prescribing service;




NHS

Primary Care Networks — Overview Cheshire and Merseyside

A PCN is a group of GP practices working closely together, aligned to other health
and social care staff and organisations, providing integrated services to their local
population.

;?‘ PCN covers a patient population, of 30,000 — 50,000 patients, although by
Spproval of the commissioner, this may be lower in rural and remote areas, and
ddgigher where it is appropriate.

The ongoing aim is to offer a balance between effective and efficient care
provision within the local population (at scale) whilst enabling the delivery of
patient-centred care to meet the needs of individuals and the wider community.

There are around 1,250 PCNs in England, with over 99% of practices signed up to
deliver the DES. Whilst practices are not mandated to join a PCN, they will lose
out on significant extra funding if they do not. Those that do not sign up to a
network need to be aware that 100% of their patients will still have access to
network services via neighbouring PCNs.




NHS

Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific Cheshire and Merseyside

5 PCNs covering the Wirral population;

- Birkenhead PCN — c123k population

- Healthier West Wirral PCN — c70k population
Healthier South Wirral PCN — c49k population
Moreton & Meols PCN — c30k population
Wallasey PCN — c66k population

76 abed

- Within Birkenhead and Wallasey PCNs there are locally agreed sub-divisions of
practices working collectively in their respective geography;

- ICB hold the 5 PCNs to account for delivery of the Network DES requirements
to their patient populations;

- Each PCN have Clinical Directors drawn from their network member practices
to lead the networks;

- Wirral PCNs have formed Wirral Primary Care Collaborative to enable Wirral-
wide collaboration between the PCNs and act as a unified entity to engage
with Wirral partners




NHS

Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific — GP Access . .
Y P Cheshire and Merseyside

PCNs have been commissioned to deliver further improvements on patient access
to primary care services via the Primary Care Access Recovery Plan (PCARP);

PCARP seeks improvement in the following areas;

- Improving patient experience of contacting their practice and receiving a
;?esponse;
G Accuracy of coding in GP appointment dataset;
2 Improving overall patient experience;

There are payment incentives available to support PCARP - Capacity & Access
Support Payment (CASP) and Capacity & Access Improvement Payment (CAIP);

CASP offers 70% of total funding in advance to PCNs to organise/plan/mobilise
changes in delivery;

CAIP offers 30% of total funding as an achievement payment for improvements in
the three areas referenced above;

Total Wirral PCN PCARP funding available: £452,670



Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific

— Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) m

Cheshire and Merseyside

Under the Network Contract DES, funding is made available to PCNs through a new
Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme;

o he intention of the scheme is to grow additional capacity through new roles, and by
&oing so, help to solve the workforce shortage in general practice. It is not to fill
Sxisting vacancies or subsidise the costs of employing people who are already

working in primary care;

Reimbursement through the new ARRS will only be for demonstrably
additional people - additionality rule is also essential for demonstrating
value for money for the taxpayer and reimbursement claims will be subject to

validation



Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific
— Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS)

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

The Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme entitles PCNs to access funding to
support recruitment across a number of reimbursable roles;

The PCN workforce baselines are fixed for five years (up to 2024). PCN
é-?eimbursement claims under the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme will
%e assessed against the PCN baseline only;

\l

PCN reimbursement claims must only be for staff additional to the PCN

baseline.

2023/23 ARRS cumulative funding available for Wirral PCNs is £8.5m and is permane



Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific
— Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS)

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Range of roles available to recruit;

Advanced Clinical Practitioner Nurse Health and Wellbeing Coach
Advanced Paramedic Practitioner Mental Health Practitioner
o5 Advanced Pharmacist Practitioner Nursing associate
& Advanced Physiotherapist Practitioner Occupational therapist
S Advanced Practitioner Paramedic
Care Coordinator Pharmacy Technician
Clinical Pharmacist Physician Associate
Dietician Physiotherapist
Digital and Transformation Lead Podiatrist
General Practice Assistant SPLW

Trainee nursing associate




Primary Care Networks — Wirral specific
— Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS)

Additional Roles NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside
Current ARRS at Q2 23-24 and planned ARRS recruitment at Q4 23-24 WTE
I N I I R I S Ny R

Curren

o Planned Current Planned Current Planned Current Planned Current Planned Current Planned
Pharmacy Technicians 2.8 2.8 1 2.8 1 1 1 1.5 5.8 8.1
Clinical Pharmacists 18.4 19.4 6.6 6.6 0 2 1 1 35.2 38.8

Clinical Pharmacists 2 2
(Advanced)

First Contact

Physiotherapists u 2 27 &
Paramedid 45 55 14.17 16.37
Podiatrj 3 3 4.3 4.8
Clinical mctltloner 1 3 1 5
Nurses

Physicia@ssociates 0.5 1 0.93 0.93 1 3 7.6 8.6 3 2.5 13.03 16.03
Care Co-ordinators 9.6 12.6 1.2 2.1 4 5.5 2 3 3 3 19.8 26.2
Health & Wellbeing 5 ; 47 1.87 2.77 3 3 2 2 10.57 12.47
Coaches

Social Prescribers 6.65 5.65 6.68 3.8 1.6 1.6 8 8 2 2 24.93 21.05
Nursing Associates 1.86 1.73 2 0 1 1 1 1 5.86 3.73
Digital & 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 05 0.5 45 45

Transformation Lead

Adult Mental Health
Practitioner (Band 7)

GP Assistant

Adult Mental Health
Practitioner (Band 6)

3
6
3
1

Apprentice PA




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12
»WIRRAL

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board
Thursday, 19 October 2023

REPORT TITLE: STRATEGIC OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF A MENTAL HEALTH URGENT
RESPONSE CENTRE

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS (CHESHIRE AND
WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP TRUST)

REPORT SUMMARY

This Strategic Outline Case (SOC) is to support the development and investment in a new
Mental Health Urgent Response Centre (URC) on the Wirral on behalf of Cheshire and
Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (CWP) with the support of partner organisations.
This project will enable the development of suitable and sustainable accommodation in
order to deliver and support modern models of care in the most appropriate setting in terms
of service users in mental health crisis.

The Strategic Outline Case identified the development of a new build facility as described
above on the footprint of Arrow Park Hospital, Wirral as providing the great cost benefit for
partners and the population of Wirral.

The Strategic Outline Case was presented to Wirral Place Based Strategy and
Transformation Group and was supported by partners and recommended to the Wirral
Place Based Partnership Board.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is recommended to approve:

1. the strategic fit within the context of Place, System and National Priorities;
2. the identification of the preferred way forward;

3. engagement with the ICB and NHSE to consider potential funding routes;
4. engagement with WUTH to progress the commercial case;

5. the governance as noted in the management case; and

6. undertaking further work to this Strategic Outline Business Case
once a funding stream has been identified and subsequent progression to
development of the Outline Business Case.

Page 101



1.0

2.0

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

The Strategic Case articulates the case for change, setting it in both the
national, regional, and local context. It articulates how the development of an
Urgent Response Centre in Wirral to co-locate several urgent care teams both
within Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS foundation Trust and external
partners will enhance the collaborative approach to deliver person centred
care to people in mental health crisis. Also confirming that the proposal is fully
aligned with Wirral, partners, Integrated care System (ICS), Department of
Health and Social Care (DHSC) and Government policies and plans.

The development of the URC is central to the development of a first response
approach to delivering an urgent care mental health response for people in
Crisis who do not require Emergency Department (ED) attendance.
Opportunities for a system wide response which is deployed from the First
Response Service, Children and Young People, Urgent Support Teams and
other partners will support effective triage and divert from ED into the
community assets which will include Crisis Cafes and peoples' own homes.
This will reduce footfall through local Emergency Departments as appropriate.

The URC will create a centralised point within Wirral footprint for all urgent
mental health work requests and distribute the need and demand across
existing services in a co-ordinated way, utilising all the different skills within
the teams. Staff would work across community and Emergency Department
as part of the urgent mental health response. This would reduce the peaks
and troughs of individual service demand and level the overall response.

This function would also support Northwest Ambulance Service and Police
forces, and therefore ensure people with mental health needs are not being
conveyed to ED unless they required physical health interventions.

The proposal would also support ED pressures and reduce the risk of
vulnerable people with mental health needs being unnecessarily conveyed to
ED with the ethos of the centre being home/community first.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1

A long list of options was identified using the Options Framework within the
HM Treasury ‘Green Book’ (covering scope, solution, delivery, implementation
and funding). The options framework provides a structured approach to
identifying and filtering a broad range of options for delivering programmes of
work or individual projects.

Options were generated from the initial scoping of the project and an appraisal
workshop produced a shortlist of options as shown below (which includes the
preferred option).

Page 102



Short-List

Options

Option 0 - Business as Usual

Option 1 — Do Minimum (Extension or Refurbishment on Arrowe Park co-located with ED)

Geographical Footprint

Option 2 (Option A) — New-Build on a CWP Community of Partner Site within the Wirral

Option 3 (Option B) — New-Build on Arrowe Park

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1  The national policy context against which this project has been developed
consists primarily of the NHS Long Term Plan and the DHSC Five Year
Forward View for Mental Health. The table below provides a summary of the
broader national strategic direction.

National Strategic Direction Alignment with SOC Proposals

NHS ‘Long Term Plan’
(2019)

Mental Health Taskforce ‘The Five
Year Forward View for Mental
Health’ (2016)

The overriding aim of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) is to redesign
patient care to make the NHS fit for the future and to get the most
value for patients out of every pound of taxpayers’ investment.

The Long-Term Plan makes a renewed commitment to grow
investment in mental health services faster than the overall NHS
budget. It requires a more proactive and preventative approach to
reduce the long-term impact of people experiencing mental health
problems and for their families, and to reduce costs for the NHS and
emergency services.

Leaders across the system are tasked to take decisive steps to break
down the barriers in the way services are provided to reshape how
care is delivered, increase access to the right care at the right time,
drive down variations in the quality of care on offer and improve
outcomes.

‘The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health’ (FYFVMH) sets out
the national vision for health and social care services, it was the start
of a ten- year journey for NHS mental health transformation. It
acknowledges the chronic underinvestment in mental health across
the NHS in recent years and requires efficiencies made through
achieving better value for money to be re-invested to meet the
significant unmet mental health needs of people to improve their
experiences and outcomes. The recommendations include the need
to treat people in the least restrictive setting, as close to home as
possible and, in doing so, seek to address existing fragmented
pathways in care.

Page 103



NHS England ‘Mental Health
Implementation Plan 2019/20
—2023/24’

Royal College of
Psychiatrists — Guidance for
commissioners: service
provision for Section 136 of
the Mental Health Act 1983

Mental Health Act
Section 136

1983 -

CQC Health and Social Care
Act 2008: Regulation 15

CQC: ‘State of Care 2019/20’

Cross-Government Suicide
Prevention Workplan 2019

The ‘NHS Mental Health Implementation Plan’ summarises the
FYFVMH and LTP ambitions to deliver against ICS-level plans to
eliminate all inappropriate adult acute out of area placements by
2020-21 (FYFV) and to improve the therapeutic offer from inpatient
mental health services through increased investment in
interventions and activities, resulting in better patient outcomes and
experience in hospital by 2023/4 (in line with LTP ambition).

The Multi-agency Mental Health Act Group have produced the
following recommendation in regard to Section 136:
The custody suite should be used in exceptional circumstances only.

1. A vehicle supplied by the ambulance provider should be able
to attend promptly so that it is used for conveyance unless
the person is too disturbed.

2. The AMHP and doctor approved under Section 12(2) of the
Mental Health Act should attend within 3h in all cases where
there are not good clinical grounds to delay assessment.

3. The first doctor to perform a Mental Health Act assessment
should be approved under Section 12(2) of the Act.

4. A monitoring form should be agreed locally to meet all the
national requirements and should be completed in all cases.

Commissioners should ensure that there is a multi-agency group
meeting to develop, implement and quality assure the agreed
policy. This group should review the monitoring data. It should also
consider how the need for use of Section 136 might be reduced.

Section 136 allows the police to take you to (or keep you at) a place
of safety. They can do this without a warrant if:
e you appear to have a mental disorder, AND
e you are in any place other than a house, flat or room
where a person is living, or garden or garage that only
one household has access to, AND
e you are "in need of immediate care or control" (meaning
the police think it is necessary to keep you or others safe).

Before using section 136 the police must consult a registered
medical practitioner, a registered nurse, or an AMHP, occupational
therapist or paramedic.

The police can keep you at the place of safety for up to 24 hours,
which can be extended for another 12 hours if it was not possible to
assess you in that time. The time starts when you arrive at the place
of safety, or whenever the police arrived if you are not taken
somewhere else.

The intention of this regulation is to make sure that the premises
where care and treatment are delivered are clean, suitable for the
intended purpose, maintained and where required, appropriately
located.

This report is an annual assessment of health and social care in
England. Key point of relevance to this case is the need to maintain
a safe environment including managing the need to socially distance
or isolate people

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) announced the
publication of its first cross-government suicide prevention workplan.

Page 104



3.2  Wirral Place Based Priorities
Wirral Place is a national outlier in terms of offering alternative places of safety
(section 136) outside of an emergency department. The Wirral Health and care plan
has identified mental health as one of its key priorities.

Wirral Place Programmes INHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Population Health including prevention and health inequalities

Neighbourhood Model Prfg‘::'r:‘rf‘es
Effective Use of Resources
. Learning Wirral
Urgent and Primary and : Disability Mental e
Emergency Community Children and ot " enI a Delivery
th
Care Care Young People Autism = Programmes

Place Place Digital Place Estates and Place Medicines Enabling
Workforce maturity Sustainability Optimisation Programmes

A key priority for Wirral is to enable people to remain at home, with earlier
prevention, identification, and intervention for people with emerging or escalating
mental health needs.

Four areas of focus will enable this.

e The right support in the community at the right time and in the right place,
ensuring that support and help is easily accessible for all Wirral residents
(community transformation programme and specialist long term provision)

e The development of an integrated housing approach across partners to
ensure that people do not lose any days in the community due to a lack of
available accommodation (strategic housing approach for mental health)

e A review of current acute mental healthcare capacity and planning for the
next 10 years to ensure that we provide high quality and safe care within
the inpatient settings (linking to the national quality transformation
programme for MH, LD and Autism inpatient)

e To support the unscheduled care priorities there is a further priority which
is the development of a Mental Health Urgent Response Centre.

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1. On the basis of the benefit/cost ratios (BCR), and the appraisal of options
generated, option 3 provides better value (for further detail please see the
strategic outline case). This BCR is considerably higher than the 4:1 ratio
which is typically seen in Commissioners Investment and Asset Management
Strategy (CIAM’s). This can largely be attributed to the gaps in cost data,

Page 105



4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

which means that the cost of option 3 is significantly lower than option’s 1 and
2. We expect that this BCR will reduce when the CIAM is revisited at a later
date, with fuller, more comprehensive cost data.

A summary of the capital costs of this option are shown following, with a
planned outturn cost of £11,972,00.00 (rounded figures used).

Departmental Works Costs £2,928,010.00
On-Costs £1,396,801.00
Location Adjustment Inc

Fees £948,424.00
Non-Works £60,000.00
Equipment £505,642.00
Planning Contingencies (20%) £758,738.00
Optimism Bias (15%) £1,327,765.00
Total Capital Cost excluding inflation £11,187,958.00
Inflation (3% p.a.) £784,243.00
Total Capital Cost £11,972,200.00

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1.

Other than the procurement process of contractor and advisors there are no
legal implications in relation to this scheme.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1

The principles of the mental health integrated urgent response centre lies in
the ability to bring existing workforce together, alongside partner colleagues
across Wirral. Aside from the current national challenges around recruitment
for mental health practitioners there are no workforce implications in relation
to this proposal other than the relocation of staff bases which will remain in the
Wirral geographical footprint so will not impact on excess travel.

Further analysis will be undertaken at the next stage to understand the digital
requirements to support the centre.

RELEVANT RISKS

7.1

The main risk to the development of the Mental Health Urgent Response
Centre is linked to access to capital, ideally Public Dividend Capital. Without
access to capital the development cannot progress beyond the strategic
outline case.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

8.1

A Stakeholder Engagement and Communications Strategy will be produced at
the next stage of the business planning process and prior to commencement
of the Outline Business Case (OBC) process. It will set out the communication

Page 106



8.2

and engagement objectives and describes how partners will work together to
communicate and engage by identifying target audiences, key messages, and
appropriate channels. It will also describe the resources required to deliver the
strategy and how partners will manage the communications and engagement
risks.

The development of the SOC invited a wide range of stakeholders to be
involved in determining the options and benefit cost appraisal. Cheshire and
Wirral Partnership Trust (CWP) also engaged with their lived experience
advisors to contribute to the development of the case.

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way
it carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to
ensure equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy,
decision, or activity.

Promoting equality and addressing health inequalities are at the heart of
CWP’s values and partners across Wirral. Throughout these early stages of
the project, partners have given due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, and victimisation, to advance equality of
opportunity, and to foster good relations between people who share a relevant
protected characteristic (as cited under the Equality Act 2010) and those who
do not share it. Furthermore, this development will give regard to the need to
reduce inequalities between patients with access to, and outcomes from,
healthcare services and to ensure services are provided in an integrated way
where this might reduce health inequalities. An Equality Impact Assessment
(EIA) will be undertaken at the next stage of the business planning process to
ensure that are no needs or barriers which could affect people with protected
characteristics, and the likely impact of the scheme is considered low. The
EIA will then be reviewed monthly and reported to the Project Board. It is an
iterative process and will be fully considered during the design phase to
ensure any health inequalities and the 9 protected characteristics are fully
considered.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 CWP and partners will ensure that going forward all capital developments

comply with BREEAM ‘Excellent’ or above and will ensure that this
development will focus on the reduction of building emissions from all
sources. (BREEAM is a science-based suite of validation and certification
systems for a sustainable built environment).

10.2 The Capital Development ambitions for the URC are:

Building energy efficiency standards for new builds and refurbishments, such as
BREEAM ‘Excellent’ and the Zero Carbon Hospital Standard and on-site renewables.
Construction supplier alignment to net zero commitments, such as onsite contractor

Page 107



measures on waste reduction, low emission construction plant etc.
e Low carbon substitutions and product innovation, such as lower embodied carbon
construction materials

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The development of a Wirral Urgent Response Centre represents the coming
together of several key stakeholders from blue light services and NHS
provider organisations, who are currently considered anchor institutions, to
provide the opportunity of a new model of care for the population of the Wirral.
The well-established Wirral community mental health alliance (Wirral
voluntary, community, social enterprise and faith organisations) will be pivotal
to supporting people in their communities and offering alternative support at a
time of crisis. Added to this the capital investment within the Wirral boundaries
and employment opportunities that this proposal would create meet the key
principles of Community Wealth building on the Wirral.

REPORT AUTHOR: Suzanne Edwards
Director of Operations
01244 397267
Suzanne.edwards4@nhs.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Strategic Outline Case (full) v3.0
Appendix 2 - Slides

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 108



Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

Wirral Urgent Response Centre

Strategic Outline Case

14t April 2023

Version 3.0

Page 109



Version Control

Version Date Issued Notes
1-0 03/04/2023 Final draft for review.
2-0 14/04/2023 Updated following review by Justin Pidcock

Page 110



Contents

LIST OF FIGUIES ...ttt ettt e et e e e et e e e et e e e e eaaaaeeeetaeeeeeataeeeeetaeeeeetaeeeeesteeeeensseeeeaes 6
AAPPENAICES ...ttt et e e e e e e e et et e e e e e e ee et ————aaaaeeeaae————aaaaaeeeaaitaaaraaaeeeaaittaaaaaaeeeaaanes 8
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...ttt ettt ettt et e e e e ettt e e e e e s ettt e e eeeesannssbtaaeeeeesannsnsaaaaeeeens 9
1.1 INEPOTUCTION ...ttt ettt et e bt sat e st et e bt e s bt e sbeesateembeebeenbeens 9
1.2 {1 0= o (ol O 1Y PSP 9
1.3 ECONOMIC CASE..ciiiiiiieittee ettt ettt ettt e e ettt e e s bt e e e s et e e eabteeeesabaeeeenabaeeesnaneee 11
1.4 COMMEICIA] CASE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e s bt e e sabe e s bt e e sabeesabaeeeabeesbaeesaeeas 14
1.5 FINANCIAT CASE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e st e e bt e e sabeesbbeesabeesabeeesateesabeeenaee 15
1.6 MaANAEEMENT CASE....n ittt ere e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeeeaatt e eeeessaesstanaaeeeessssssnnnaaaaesaees 16
1.7 Conclusion and RecoOMMENTAtIONS ......couiiiiiiiiiieiieiteee ettt ettt st saee 17
2.0 STRATEGIC CASE ...ttt ettt st sttt et b e s bt e s at e et e et et e e sbeesbeesateeateenne 18
2.1 INEFOAUCTION ...ttt ettt et e s bt e e bt e e st e e bt e e sabeesabeeesabeesbeeeaee 18
PART A: STrat@ZiC CONTEXL ...ooveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereereeeeeeaeaesaaeresssasssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssassssrssssarnnnres 18
2.2 NALIONAI CONEEXE .ttt et e st e bt e e st e s bt e e sabeesabeeesateesabeeenaee 18
2.3 20T eqTo] o F=1 W @o] ol =) R 20
2.4 Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Organisational Overview .................... 23
2.5 Key Partner OrganisatioNS OVEIVIEW . .......ccovviiiiiiiiee e eeeeetcee e e e e e eveeee e e e e e eeeaateeeeeeeesaarsnaeeeeeeaees 32
2.6 Population and Demography (CWP Catchment) .........ccoouviiiiiiiiiieiee e 34
Part B: The Case fOr CRANEE ......ouveieeeeeee e e e et e et e e et e e e eeare e e e eeaaeeeeeanes 36
2.7 EXISTING ATTANEEIMENTS. ... uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiittietitetittteeeereereerrerarerararararererrestessasasssrsrasssarsssssssrsssssssssrssrrnnes 36
2.8 Crisis and Urgent Care Transformation Programme ............oooooueeeeieeeiieeeiieeeee e 39
2.9 Urgent Response MOAEl OF CAre .........euveeeeiiiiiieeeeeeeee et e e 39
2.10  Project INVEStMENT ODJECTIVES ......vveeiiiiiieeeeeeee et e e e e e e e e e et e eeeeeeennnes 42
2,10 BUSINESS NEEUS....oouiiiiitie ettt ettt ettt et ettt e sat e e s bt e e bt e e s bt e s bbe e s bt eeabaeenabeesabeeenene 43
2,12 POEENLIAI SCOPE oot e e e et e e e e e e et r e e e e e e e etrreaaeaeeeeaan 44
e T = 1T o 1< € 2 = T o o 11 V-SSR 45
N 1 =Y (<Y =4 Toll o o T[Tt 2T <SR 46
2.15 Project Constraints, Dependencies and Interdependencies............cccooeeeeveveeeeeeeeeecieeeee e 47
2.16  EqUality IMpPact ASSESSIMENT........uviiiiiieiieeeiieee ettt e e e e et r e e e e e e eeearaeeaeeeeeenaans 48
3.0 ECONOMIC CASE ...ttt ettt ettt et e st e ettt e bt e bt e sateesteenteenbeensee bt esseesaseenseenseenbeenseesseesnsesnnes 49
3.1 CritiCal SUCCESS FACLONS. ....eiiuiiiiiiieeite ettt ettt et e s bt e st esbe e e abeesbaeesaeeas 49
3.2 Options Development FrameEWOTK ........coo i e e 49
33 OptioNs APPraisal ANAIYSIS .....coeeeeeeeiieee et eee e e e e e e e e e e et reeeeeenanaes 52

Page 111



3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
4.0
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10
4.11
4.12
4.13
5.0
5.1
5.2
53
54
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
6.0
6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4

Identification of Short List OPtioNS..........eeeiiiiiiieiieeeee e e 54
ECONOMIC ASSESSMENT SUMIMAIY ...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiititeiietteteterarererersrerrerreerrarara——r——.—ar——.—————.———————————————. 54
ECONOMIC APPIAISAl ..ot ettt e et e e et e e e e tae e e eeab e e e eetaeeeeeasreeeeensees 57
ECONOMIC SENSITIVITY TESEING ...vvviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiit ettt aaeeeseaaaassesessssaresesssssssssssassrsssrnnes 58
Preferred OPTION ....eei e et e et e et e e ettt e e e e e tae e e e e tb e e e e etteeeeetteaeeenaees 58
Chapter APPENAICES ....evveeeeeeeee et e et e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeentanereeeeeeenaes 58
COMMERCIAL CASE ...ttt ettt sttt ettt s bt st sttt e bt e sb e sae e st eateebeenbeens 59
CHNICAT QUAITLY ..ot et e et e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeentaneeeeeeeeenaes 59
Future Capacity MOEIING .......ooiieiiieeeee et et et e et eette e e e 60
SCOPE OF PrOJECT. . eei et ettt et e e e et e e e ettt e e e eeatae e e eeataseeeeataseeeeasasaeenns 61
Scheme Description — Preferred Site.......oii et 61
SUStAINADIE DEVEIOPMENT. ...t e e e e e e e e eeeraaeaeeeeeeenaes 67
Modern Methods of CONSTIUCTION........c.c.iiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt e e s e 67
Procurement and CoNtract StrategY .....c..eeeeecuviie i ettt e e e 67
TOWN PlaNNIiNg ... e e e e e ettt e e e et e e e etae e e e etaeeeeetaaeeeeabeeeeenasaeaas 69
LAl IMPIICAIONS . .eeiiieiiiee e e et e et e e ettt e e et e e e e et e e e eetteeeeeatteeeeennees 69
WOTKFOICE PIAaNNING .. ...vvveeeeieee et e et e e e e e e e e e e eestraeeeeeeeeennes 69
EQUIPIMENT STIAtEEY ...uvviieiiiiiiiiiiiiititittttt ettt aaaraaaaaearsasssessssssssassssssssssssssssssssssssrasassrnrnnes 69
RiSK AlIOCATION MAEIIX...ceueiriiiiiieiieieenite ettt ettt sttt st st e e b e eaees 70
(0 0P o) (=T gAY o] 01T g Lo [l T OO SRRRN 70
FINANCIAL CASE ...ttt ettt ettt e b e b e b e e at e et et e e bt e bt e sbtesebesateeabeebe e bt enbeesnteennas 71
FINANCIAI OVEIVIEW ...cntiiiieiie ettt ettt ettt e s bt e shtesabesabeebeenbeesbeesaeeeaeas 71
CapPital REQUITEIMENTS .....veeeeieieeeieeeeee et e e e e e e e e e e ee et aeeeeeeeenaraneeeeeeeeennes 71
Sources and AppPlication Of FUNGS .........coooorviiiiii e 72
ProCUremMENT COSES ...ccooiiiiiiiiiii et 72
VAT TreatMENT ...ttt ettt ettt e sttt e st eseabae e e e sanreeeesanneeees 72
REVENUE COSTS ..ttt ettt ettt e et e e ettt e e st e e e e eee e s abaeeeenreeeesaneee 72
FINANCIAT RISKS ...ttt ettt et et e s bt e sbt e eabeeabeebeenbe e bt e saeeeaeas 72
Chapter APPENAICES ....evvveeeeeeee et e et e e e e e e e aeeeeeeeentnneeeeeeeeenaes 73
MANAGEMENT CASE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e s bt bt e st st ebe e bt esbeesaeesanes 74
Project GOVEINANCE STIUCLUIE .. ..vvviiiiieiiieiiiititieieeeetttetateratasaraserasessrasaasaasassrasssarsssssssrsrsrsrararsrsrnnes 74
Project Management Methodology and Arrangements ...........ooeveeeeeeieeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e 77
Project Team Roles & ReSpONSibIilILIEs. ........cccviiiieiiiiiieiiee e e e 77
Use Of EXEEINal AQVISOIS.....c..eiiiiiiiiieiiterte ettt st e 78

Page 112



6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.10
6.11
7.0
7.1
7.2
8.0

Project Delivery Programme MilESTONES..........uiiiciiiiiieiiee ettt 79
RiSKk Man@agemeENt StFAtEEY ......eeeieiiiieeiiieeeee et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeannreees 79
Benefits Realisation Planning ........c..oo oottt 80
Stakeholder Engagement and Communications Strategy ........cccueeeeeviieieeiiieececiiee e, 84
Business Continuity PIanning .......cc..ooi oo e ettt 85
Post Completion Review / Project Evaluation PIanning ............c..coveeeeeieeeeeceeeceeeeeeeeeeveeee e 85
Chapter APPENAICES ....vveeeeeeieeeeeeeee et e et e e e e e e et e e e e e eeeeerraeeeeeeeeanaes 87
CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS ..ottt ettt ettt e e s e e e e e s 88
CONCIUSION ..ttt ettt et e bt e s bt e sht e eateeate e bt e ebeesaeeeuteembeebeanaeens 88
RECOMMENAATIONS. ...ttt ettt ettt et e bt e sbt e eate e bt e beenbeesbeesaeeeaeas 88
GLOSSARY OF TERMS.... ettt ettt ettt ettt se ettt et e bt e sbe e sateeateeabe e bt e abeesaeeeateenteenbeenbeans 89

Page 113



List of Figures

Figure 1 - National Strategic Direction Alignment with SOC Proposals.........cccccvveeeiiiieiiiiiiieeeeeeeeecieeeen. 18
T (0] I A [ O T o o] [ o} SR PPPPPPUPPPPPRE 21
T (0 T 6 @ [ O XY T o o 1= o | PPN 24
FIGUIE 4 - OBJECLIVES ...ttt ettt e e et e e et e e e e tba e e e eaaaee e e saaeeeessseeeasssaeeesnsaneeesnssaeesanssens 25
FIBUIE 5 - TIE B 'S ittt ettt e ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e tta e e e eetaaeeeeeabaeeeeastaeseeentsaeeeantaeeeeensseeeeenseeas 26
Figure 6 - Geographical Location between Trust and ICS...........ccouviiiiiiiiicciiie e 27
FIGUIE 7 = TEIUIE .ottt e et e eeeeeeeeeaee e ae s e s e s e s e s s s s s e s e saasaasaasssasasssssasaesasasassssssssssssssessesesessesrenens 29
Figure 8 - FUNCLIONS aNd BENETIES ...ooiiieiiiii e et et e e e e e et e e e e e aree e e aareas 30
Figure 9 - 2021 PAM ASSESSIMENT .......cvviiiiiiiiiieieeeeteeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerererererererererererererrrrrrrererrrerererrrerrrrrrrrrerrmre 30
Figure 10 - NHS Patient-Led Assessment of the Care Environment Collection, NHS Digital ...................... 31
Figure 11 - WUTH Visions, Values, Foundations and Strategic Objectives...........ccccccovvevvveeeeeeeeieeineeeene. 33
ST U] oI A ULl D 1=T e e oY= = o] o] (oL PR 34
Figure 13 - Cheshire and Wirral Population Growth ..............ooooiiiiiiiiiiii e 35
Figure 14: Wirral Population Growth 2022 - 2043 .........ooiiiiiee ettt e aree e e 35
Figure 15: Wirral Population Growth 2022 — 2043 by AZE GrOUP.......ceeeeeeeeeeeiireeeeeeeeeeeeireeeeeeeeeeeerreeeens 35
Figure 16: Wider Determinants of Health - PHE...........c..ooiiiiiii et 36
FIGUIE 17 = SIEE PIaN ...ttt e e et e e e et e e e ettt e e e eeataeeeeeataeeeeentaeeeeesreeeeeaseeas 38
Figure 18 — The Trust’s Urgent Care MOE ...........ooeoouiiiiiiiiiie e e 40
Figure 19 - INVEStMENT ODJECHIVES......uvviiiiiiieeceeeeee et e e e et a e e e e e e eeatraaeeeas 42
FIgUre 20 - BUSINESS NEEUS ......ccoiiiiiieciiiee ettt ettt eete e e et e e et e e e eaar e e e e aaaeeeeaaaseeeeensseeessnsaeeeesnsreeeesnsrens 43
FIUIE 21 - POLENTIAI SCOPE ..vviiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e e et e e e e ta e e e e eaab e e e e atreeeesnsaeeeesnsseeeennnrens 44
FIGUIE 22 = BENETIT LOZ..ueii ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaeeeeetaeeeeeareeeeenreas 45
FIGUIE 23 = RISK LO ..o ietiiie ittt e ettt e e ettt e e e tba e e e ettr e e e e saaeeeeasaseeeeansaeeesansaeeeesnssaeeennseens 46
Figure 24 - Constraints and DePeNUENCIES .......ccccuviiiieieiiie ettt eeee e ettt e e e e e tree e e eataee e e e areeeeenareas 47
Figure 25 - Critical SUCCESS FACOIS.......vviiiiciiiie ettt ettt e e e et e e et e e e e atbee e s sntaeeeesnasaeeeennreas 49
Figure 26 - HM Treasury Key dimensions of the Options Development Framework ..........cccccooeeveieennnen. 49
Figure 27 - HM Treasury Options FrameWOrK ...........oooiiiiiiii et 50
T U R e @) o] g TSI Yole] o L= TP 51
Figure 29 - Options Development FrameEWOTK ..........cocuiiiiiiiiii e ettt 52
=V IR [ R oo o Al M A @] o] 4T ] o - TSP 54
Figure 31 - Capital Cost of Schemes INCIUAING VAT ........oiiiieiie e e 55
FIUIE 32 - BENEFILS PlaN ......cviiiicieeee et ettt e e e e et e e e aar e e e e atbee e e eataeeeesnsreeeenanseas 56
Figure 33 - Summary Impact 0f BENEFITS ........oooiiieiiieeeeeeeee e 57
Figure 34 - Economic Appraisal Of OPLIONS .......cccveiiiiiiiii et 58
Figure 35 — Capacity MOdelling OQULPULS ......ooeeeeeeieee e et e e e e e e enaneeneeens 60
FIGUIE 36: PrOPOSEA SIte...uuveiiiiiee ettt e e ettt e e e e e e e e ttaa e e e e e e eeeetaraeaeeeeeeeenanraaeeens 62
Figure 37 - Accommodation REQUIFEMENTS........uviiiiiiiieeiiiieeee e e et e e e e e eeararaeeeas 62
FIgure 38 - DeSiZN StANUArTS.....ccuvviiieeiiiee et ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e e et e e e eeatbeeeeentaeeeeentreeeeennreas 63
Figure 39 - Drawings GroUNd FIOOT ..........coouiiiiiiiiiieceeee ettt e e e e e etre e e s eita e e e e aaaee e e nnneas 63
Figure 40 - Drawings FirSt FIOON.........uvviiiiiiiieeieeeeee e e e et e e e e e e ettaa e e e e e e e eeeaataraeeeas 64
Figure 41 - Design QUAlITY WHREEI ..........oooiiieeeeeee et e e e 65
Figure 42 - Risk AllOCAtioN IMAtriX......cccuviiieiiiiie ettt ettt e e e e e sab e e e e satree e s snbaeeeeenrreeeeennneas 70

Page 114



FIGUIE 43 - CAPILal COSES ..uuvriiiieieiieeiiiiieee ettt ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e eettaaeeeeeeeeeeasrsaeaeeeeeeeeasrareeeaeens 71

Figure 44 - Capital CashflOW ......c..uviiiiiieie ettt e e e e tbe e e e e araeeeearaee s 72
Figure 45 — Risks and MitiGating ACTIONS .........uuvviiiiiiiieeeee e e e e e arereeee e 72
Figure 46: ProjeCct GOVEIrNANCE STIUCTUIE ......cvvviiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeereeesereseseressesseresarsarssreserererararrrrrsrar.rar.rr—————. 74
Figure 47: Project Board MemMDBErShiP ......ccuviiiiiiie ettt ettt e etre e e e traeeeearaee s 75
Figure 48: Task and Finish Group MembBership.........cooouueeiiiiiiioeee e 76
Figure 49 - SOC EXLEINAl AQVISOIS ...ccuviiieiiiiee ettt e ettt e ettt e et e e et e e e estbeeeessasaeeesnssaeeesnssseeesnssseeeanssees 78
Figure 50 - SUMMAry KEY MIIESTONES .......coouiiiieeiiiee ettt ettt ee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e e taeeeeearaeeeeanaeaas 79
Figure 51- Risk [deNntifiCation PrOCESS........cccuviiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e eae e e ve e e e e tae e e e earaeeeearaeeas 80
Figure 52 - BENETItS SUMMAIY .......ooiiiiiiii e et e et e et e e e e e e eetaaeeeeeanaeeeeeanreeas 82
Figure 53 - Stakeholder INflUENCE MaPPING .....vvveiieieieeeeeeee e e e e e eeeee e s 85

Page 115



Appendices

Appendix A Options Appraisal Framework
Appendix B CIAM

Appendix C CIAM Support Information
Appendix D Capital Cost Report

Appendix E OB Forms

Appendix F Capacity Modelling

Appendix G Architectural Feasibility Report
Appendix H Schedule of Accommodation
Appendix | Design Brief

Page 116




1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 Introduction
This Strategic Outline Case (SOC) is in support of investment in a new Urgent Response Centre (URC) on
the Wirral on behalf of Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (CWP) with the support
of partner organisations. This project will enable the development of suitable and sustainable
accommodation in order to deliver and support modern models of care in the most appropriate setting
in terms of service users in mental health crisis.

The OBC is based on the Five Case Model, which is the format recommended as best practice by HM
Treasury.

Whilst based on the five Case Model this SOC is currently not compliant with NHS England (NHSE)
fundamental assessment criteria, once a funding stream has been identified and commercial strategy
agreed this document can be updated accordingly.

1.2  Strategic Case
The Strategic Case articulates the case for change, setting it in both the national, regional and local
context. It articulates how the development of an Urgent Response Centre in Wirral to co-locate several
urgent care teams both within Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS foundation Trust and external
partners will enhance the collaborative approach to deliver person centred care to people in mental
health crisis. Also confirming that the proposal is fully aligned with Trust, partners, ICS, DHSC and
Government policies and plans.

The development of the URC is central to the development of a first response approach to delivering an
urgent care mental health response for people in Crisis who do not require Emergency Department
attendance. Opportunities for a system wide response which is deployed from the First Response
Service, Children and Young People, Urgent Support Teams and other partners will support effective
triage and divert from ED into the community assets which will include Crisis Cafes and peoples' own
homes. This will reduce footfall through local Emergency Departments as appropriate.

The URC will create a centralised point within Wirral footprint for all urgent mental health work
requests and distribute the need and demand across existing services in a co-ordinated way, utilising all
the different skills within the teams. Staff would work across community and Emergency Department
as part of the urgent mental health response. This would reduce the peaks and troughs of individual
service demand and level the overall response.

This function would also support North West Ambulance Service and Police forces, and therefore
ensure people with mental health needs are not being conveyed to ED unless they required physical
health interventions (e.g. those who have self-harmed).

The proposal would also support ED pressures and reduce the risk of vulnerable people with mental
health needs being unnecessarily conveyed to ED with the ethos of the centre being home/community
first.

Page 117



In response to the drivers for change the following project objectives have been agreed:

Investment
Objective 1

Location of the Wirral URC

Bolstering existing service provision, both acute and community
e  Optimising co-location of resources

Parity of access

Supporting people in crisis in the best possible location

Definition

Investment
Objective 2

To provide a therapeutic environment for service users in crisis.

Ensuring care is delivered in a calm, therapeutic and secure space

Supporting the varying needs of service users e.g. autism and dementia friendly
Enabling delivery of high-quality care in appropriate accommodation

Improving service user experience

Definition

Investment | Patient and staff experience

Objective 3

e  Fitfor purpose for both staff and service users

e Enabling co-location for colleagues whilst ensuring separate access for service users

e Considering access to the facility in conjunction with wider acute and community
offering

Definition

Investment | Demand and future proof

Objective 4

e Reducing pressure on existing emergency department
e Reducing pressure on existing place of safety facilities

Definition e Enabling appropriate deflections away from the ED
e  Supporting improved mental health capacity in the Wirral and management of future
demand

Objective 5

Investment

e Ensuring the facility acts as a key enabler for the delivery of the model of care for mental
health services in the Wirral
Definition e  Ensuring parity of access for all
e Enabling better partnership working between primary, secondary, third sector, social
care and other key partners.

Page 118



1.3  Economic Case
Based on the case for change and the agreed project objectives, the critical success factors (CSFs) for
the project are shown in the figure following. The CSFs that have been developed for this scheme are in
line with the CSFs suggested by the HM Treasury guidance.

The options considered in this case were considered against these CSFs.

CSE Description
How well the option:
Strategic fitand e meets the agreed spending objectives, related business needs and service
business needs requirements,

e provides holistic fit and synergy with other strategies, programmes and projects

How well the option:

e Maximises the return on the required spend (benefits optimisation) in terms of

Pt economy, efficiency and effectiveness from both the perspective of the

for money o ) .
organisation and wider society.
e  Minimises associated risks.
How well the option:
Potential o Islikely to be delivered in view of the organisation’s ability to assimilate, adapt and
achievability respond to the required level of change, and
e matches the level of available skills required for successful delivery.
supplier How well the option:
oL . e  Matches the ability of the service providers to deliver the required level of services
capacity and . . .
capabilit and business functionality, and
P ¥ e s likely to be attractive to the supply side.
. How well the option:
Potential

e Meets the sourcing policy of the organisation and likely availability of funding, and

Rlici Rl e Matches other funding constraints.

A long list of options was identified using the Options Framework within the HM Treasury ‘Green Book’
(covering scope, solution, delivery, implementation and funding). The options framework provides a
structured approach to identifying and filtering a broad range of options for delivering programmes of
work or individual projects.

The outcome of the options generation and appraisal workshop was a shortlist of options as shown
below.

Short-List Options

Option 0 - Business as Usual

Option 1 — Do Minimum (Extension or Refurbishment on Arrowe Park co-located with ED)

Option 2 (Option A) — New-Build on a CWP Community of Partner Site within the Wirral Geographical
Footprint

Option 3 (Option B) — New-Build on Arrowe Park

The figure following summarises the planned benefits, categorised as cash-releasing, non-cash-
releasing, societal and non-monetisable. The benefits shown following link with the benefits realisation
plan, included in the Management Case.

Page 119



Ref. Benefit Name

NCRB1

Reduction in ED Attendances

Benefit Description

Reduction in ED attendances through delivery of the scheme and provision of alternative
pathway for people in mental health crisis. If they do attend the ED this will only be
instances when they have an acute problem that needs medical attention.

Reduction in number of incidents reported in the Trust’s incident recording system through

NCRB2 | Reduction in incidents improved throughput, increased capacity and treatment of patients in the most appropriate
setting.
NCRB3 Reduction in incidents of physical Reduction in incidents; patient on patient, patient on staff, self-harm and patient
aggression and/or harm behaviour, incidents of damage to property.
. Improved Trust performance against the 4 Hour Quality Standard through management of
Improvement against 4 hour K i X .
NCRB4 . service users in the most appropriate setting. Reduced attendance at ED and therefore
quality standard o
reduced wait times.
NCRES Reduced wait times for people in
Mental Health Crisis Reduction in overall wait time for those in MH crisis.
Reduction in staff sickness due to reduced pressure on ED staff due to disruptive patients
NCRB6 | Improved Staff Wellbeing presenting at the URC instead of ED. Reduction in sickness, absence, associated with the
environment and burnout.
Reduced agency/bank spend — directly employed NHS staff will be more interested in
NCRB7 | Reduced agency/bank spend working in new builds because they will have a therapeutic environment designed to give
the patients the best care
NCRBS8 Improved Staff Retention Reduced costs associated with recruitment, and issues with retention
Reduction in out of area placements through collective use of resources, alternative
NCRB9 | Out of Area Placements o
admissions pathways.
. Reduced service user Length of Stay through reduced delays in transfer of care by managing
NCRB10 | Delays in transfer of care . . . .
patients in the most appropriate setting.
Improved system performance in regard to management of mental health crisis with the
Wider benefit linked to the other p .y P g & .
NCRB11 o project acting as an enabler to the wider model of care and supporting the URCs across the
sites in the model
patch.
Reduced Time for patient
SB1 attainment of Improvementin Increased speed of attainment of improved QALY scores through improved quality of care,
Quality Adjusted Life Year additional space for wider ranges of interventions and better flow through the system.
Key:

CRB — Cash Releasing Benefit

NCRB — Non- Cash Releasing Benefit
SB — Societal Benefit

UB — Unquantifiable Benefit

The figures following present the key economic appraisal outputs based on the assumptions and inputs

described above, expressed as Benefit / Cost Ratios.

Option 0] 1 2 3
Incremental Capital (Cost) - £8,643,915.87 £9,024,973.39 £9,024,973.39
Incremental Revenue Cost - - £12,038,087.28 -
Incremental Opportunity Cost £9,591,152.94 - -
Incremental Risk - £292,740.00 £485,830.00 £482,080.00
Incremental Costs — Total - £18,257,808.81 £21,548,890.66 £9,507,053.39

Incremental Benefit NPV

£105,288,338.18

£88,867,443.58

£108,417,986.01

Page 120




Net Present Social Value (NPSV) - £86,760,529.37 £67,318,552.92 £98,910,932.62

Benefit/Cost Ratio

Economic Ranking of Options

This economic analysis indicates that:

e All options have the potential to show a positive Benefit / Cost Ratio (BCR)
compared to BAU; and

e Option 3 is the preferred option, with a BCR of 11.40.

On the basis of the BCR the Option 3 provides better value. This BCR is considerably higher than the 4:1
ratio which is typically seen in CIAM'’s. This can largely be attributed to the gaps in cost data, which
means that the cost of option 3 is significantly lower than option’s 1 and 2. We expect that this BCR will
reduce when the CIAM is revisited at a later date, with fuller, more comprehensive cost data.

A summary of the capital costs of this option are shown following, with a planned outturn cost of
£11,972,00.00 (rounded figures used).

Capital Cost Elements Option 3

Departmental Works Costs £2,928,010.00
On-Costs £1,396,801.00
Location Adjustment Inc
Fees £948,424.00
Non-Works £60,000.00
Equipment £505,642.00
Planning Contingencies (20%) £758,738.00
Optimism Bias (15%) £1,327,765.00
Total Capital Cost excluding inflation £11,187,958.00
Inflation (3% p.a.) £784,243.00
Total Capital Cost £11,972,200.00

Page 121



1.4 Commercial Case
The preferred direction of travel is a new build facility on the Arrowe Park Hospital site adjacent to the
Emergency Department. The accommodation requirements for the project reflect the capacity
modelling undertaken and the need to deliver therapeutic, safe, high quality and fit for purpose facilities
as emphasised in the investment objectives. The figure below summarises the estimated
accommodation requirement for the project:

URC SoA Summary Sheet

Departments Departmental Gross (sqm)

Entrance Zone 168.7

Assessment Zone 174.7

Administration Zone 379.0

Support Zone 123.0

845.4
Communication Space 8% 68
Plant 8% 68

Total Gross Area (sgm) 980.80

The development of the optimum estate’s solution, based on the agreed model of care has had the
consistent and integral input from clinical leaders and frontline clinical and non-clinical staff, with a
detailed design brief being developed which includes the following functional content:

e Entrance Zone

= Joint entrance for adults and children and young people

= Joint waiting area with sections to accommodate adults, children and
quite spaces

= Interview/quiet room

= Reception (ideally positioned centrally with clear visual of the whole
area)

= Visitor WCs

e Assessment Zone

= Consult/assessment rooms

= Interview room

=  Physical health treatment room

=  Section 136 suite with assessment room, quiet room / de-escalation
room and dedicated entrance

= Clinical Support - clean utility, dirty utility, store, disposal hold.

e Administration Zone

= Open plan office and desks for various teams

= General Hot Desks and touchdown space

= Collaboration space

= None face2face rooms, 121 meeting rooms, meeting rooms

e Staff and Support Zone

=  Staff room/kitchen

= Staff change, showers, WC's
= (Cleaners room

= IT/Server room

Page 122



The designs for the development primarily follow the HBN guidance and currently assume no
derogations. The Trust is targeting a BREEAM rating of ‘Excellent’ (based on BREEAM 2018).

At this stage in the business planning process for the Wirral URC a number of options have been
considered for the methodology of delivering the preferred direction of travel which is on the Arrowe
Park hospital Site owned by WUTH and the preferred delivery will be intrinsically linked to the funding
strategy for the project.

There are currently two main options which have been considered:

e Option 1 - CWP would enter into a long lease for a suitable freehold site on Arrowe Park
Hospital for a peppercorn ground rent. CWP would then undertake the construction of the
URC and ultimate ownership of the asset.

e Option 2 - CWP would enter into a development agreement with WUTH who would agree to
construct on CWP’s behalf the URC on the Arrowe Park Hospital site in return for the capital to
construct the new facility . CWP would then into a lease agreement with WUTH for a 25-30 year
period for a peppercorn rent.

Both of these options for the preferred direction of travel will require further discussion between the
two Trusts and will also be linked to the funding stream identified for the project.

The current staffing model will not change with the development of the URC, however the colocation of
staff across multi organisations should generate increased efficiency and will support the model of care.

1.5 Financial Case
The capital requirement for the scheme is £11,972,200 (including VAT at 20%). The summary OB Capital
Cost forms and associated report for the scheme showing the costs and contingencies included in the
capital cost calculations and showing the overall capital costs of the scheme is included as an
appendices to the main body of the SOC.

Once the source of potential funds has been identified and the commercial strategy for the delivery of
the URC has been confirmed this SOC will be updated with revenue costs for the preferred direction of
travel.

In order to fund any additional schemes, CWP will need to lobby the ICB and NHSE for additional CDEL.
Given the potential scale of the Wirral URC project, ideally this would need to be cash backed by
securing additional Public Dividend Capital (PDC). Ordinarily, additional capital resources are not
accompanied by revenue support for day-to-day costs. Working on that assumption, aside from
ensuring that the accounting treatment is correct, any subsequent Financial Case would have to clearly
demonstrate the full capital and revenue consequences of any scheme, the impact on CWP’s balance
sheet and income & expenditure statement, the overall affordability and fundability of the scheme and
confirmation of support from the relevant stakeholders.

Page 123



1.6 Management Case
A clear and robust governance structure has been agreed for the delivery of the Wirral URC project and
will be implemented as part of the approval of this business case. The programme is overseen by the
Urgent Response Centre Project Board, which is accountable to the CWP Executive. Reporting to the
Project Board is the Wirral URC Delivery Group and relevant workstream groups as required.

The structure of the project will be developed to follow the principles set out in the NHS Capital
Investment Manual and the HM Treasury Green Book, supported by PRINCE2 project management
principles.

The Senior Responsible Owner (SRO) and Programme Sponsor is Suzanne Edwards Chief Operating
Officer, CWP.

The table below summarises the key milestones for the successful planning and delivery for the Wirral
URC. This shows that construction could potentially commences in January 2025 with a completion in
12 months and the facility operational by Early Spring 2026.

Programme Stage Completion Date

SOC approval (internal) April 2023

OBC approval (external) December 2023
FBC approval (external) October 2024
Start on site January 2025
Construction completion January 2026
Operational date April 2026

The Trust’s approach to risk management in accordance with its internal assurance framework is
designed to ensure that the risks associated with the project are systemically identified, appraised and
action plans developed for effective reduction, elimination and mitigation.

A planning contingency of £758,738 including VAT has been included within the OB capital cost forms
and as such form part of the capital budget for the project. A sum of £1,327,765 including VAT has
been included for optimism bias, which equates to 15%. At this time the Trust does not intend to
undertake an external assurance review but will keep this decision under review.

CWP and its partners are committed to a process of meaningful stakeholder engagement and
communication. It already has established formal and informal channels adapting its communications
and engagement as far as possible to the methods and frequency preferred by stakeholders. The
intention is to develop a Stakeholder Engagement and Communications Strategy which will be produced
at the next stage of the business planning process and prior to commencement of the OBC process. It
will set out the communication and engagement objectives and describes how the Trust will work
together to communicate and engage by identifying target audiences, key messages, and appropriate
channels. It will also describe the resources required to deliver the strategy and how the Trust will
manage the communications and engagement risks.

A benefits realisation plan (BRP) will also be developed with the aim of providing an evidence base to
support the intended health, quality and other identified benefits, where that evidence exists, and to
guantify the benefits, wherever possible, to ensure that they can be measured and demonstrated over
time.

Page 124



1.7 Conclusion and Recommendations

This Strategic Outline Business Case document provides a case for investment in the development of a
Wirral Urgent Response Centre. This SOC demonstrates:

e The strategic need for change in line with national, local and organisational
drivers;

e The proposed delivery model and scope of the project;

e The preferred direction of travel to develop a URC on the Arrowe Park
Hospital site;

e The capital consequences of the options set in the context that engagement
with the ICB and NHSE will be required to consider funding routes; and

e Detailed plans for the governance and management of the implementation
of the project in order to update the SOC and progress to the next stages
business planning process.

The Strategic Outline Business Case is being presented to the Board in April 2023 with a request to:

e APPROVE the strategic fit within the context of CWP;
e APPROVE the identification of the preferred way forward;

e APPROVE engagement with the ICB and NHSE to consider potential funding
routes;

e APPROVE engagement with WUTH to progress the commercial case;
e APPROVE the governance as noted in the management case and

e APPROVE undertaking further work to this Strategic Outline Business Case
once a funding stream has been identified and subsequent progression to
development of the Outline Business Case.

Page 125



2.0 STRATEGIC CASE

2.1 Introduction
The Strategic Case articulates the case for change, setting it in both the national, regional and local
context. It articulates how the development of an Urgent Response Centre (URC) in Wirral to co-locate
several urgent care teams both within Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS foundation Trust (CWP) and
external partners will enhance the collaborative approach to deliver person centred care to people in
mental health crisis. Also confirming that the proposal is fully aligned with Trust, partners, ICS, DHSC
and Government policies and plans.

This section of the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) also sets out the scope of the project, investment
objectives plus the associated high-level benefits, risks, constraints and dependencies which have been
identified at this stage.

The structure of this Chapter follows the guidance set out in the HM Treasury Green Book.
PART A: Strategic Context

2.2  National Context
The national policy context against which this project has been developed consists primarily of the NHS
Long Term Plan and the DHSC Five Year Forward View for Mental Health. Figure 1 provides a summary
of the broader national strategic direction.

Figure 1 - National Strategic Direction Alignment with SOC Proposals

The overriding aim of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) is to redesign patient
care to make the NHS fit for the future and to get the most value for
patients out of every pound of taxpayers’ investment.

The Long Term Plan makes a renewed commitment to grow investment in
mental health services faster than the overall NHS budget. It requires a
NHS ‘Long Term Plan’ more proactive and preventative approach to reduce the long term
(2019) impact of people experiencing mental health problems and for their
families, and to reduce costs for the NHS and emergency services.
Leaders across the system are tasked to take decisive steps to break down
the barriers in the way services are provided to reshape how care is
delivered, increase access to the right care at the right time, drive down
variations in the quality of care on offer and improve outcomes.

‘The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health’ (FYFVMH) sets out the
national vision for health and social care services, it was the start of a ten-
year journey for NHS mental health transformation. It acknowledges the
chronic underinvestment in mental health across the NHS in recent years

Mental Health Taskforce ‘The Five  and requires efficiencies made through achieving better value for money

Year Forward View for Mental to be re-invested to meet the significant unmet mental health needs of

Health’ (2016) people to improve their experiences and outcomes. The
recommendations include the need to treat people in the least restrictive
setting, as close to home as possible and, in doing so, seek to address
existing fragmented pathways in care.

Page 126



NHS England ‘Mental Health
Implementation Plan 2019/20 -
2023/24’

Royal College of Psychiatrists —
Guidance for commissioners:
service provision for Section 136
of the Mental Health Act 1983

Mental Health Act 1983 - Section
136

CQC Health and Social Care Act
2008: Regulation 15

CQC: ‘State of Care 2019/20’

Cross-Government Suicide
Prevention Workplan 2019

The ‘NHS Mental Health Implementation Plan’ summarises the FYFVMH
and LTP ambitions to deliver against ICS-level plans to eliminate all
inappropriate adult acute out of area placements by 2020-21 (FYFV) and
to improve the therapeutic offer from inpatient mental health services
through increased investment in interventions and activities, resulting in
better patient outcomes and experience in hospital by 2023/4 (in line with
LTP ambition).

The Multi-agency Mental Health Act Group have produced the following
recommendation in regard to Section 136:
The custody suite should be used in exceptional circumstances only.

1. Avehicle supplied by the ambulance provider should be able to
attend promptly so that it is used for conveyance unless the
person is too disturbed.

2. The AMHP and doctor approved under Section 12(2) of the
Mental Health Act should attend within 3h in all cases where
there are not good clinical grounds to delay assessment.

3. The first doctor to perform a Mental Health Act assessment
should be approved under Section 12(2) of the Act.

4. A monitoring form should be agreed locally to meet all the
national requirements and should be completed in all cases.

Commissioners should ensure that there is a multi-agency group meeting
to develop, implement and quality assure the agreed policy. This group
should review the monitoring data. It should also consider how the need
for use of Section 136 might be reduced.

Section 136 allows the police to take you to (or keep you at) a place of
safety. They can do this without a warrant if:

e you appear to have a mental disorder, AND

e you are in any place other than a house, flat or room where a
person is living, or garden or garage that only one household
has access to, AND

e you are "in need of immediate care or control" (meaning the
police think it is necessary to keep you or others safe).

Before using section 136 the police must consult a registered medical
practitioner, a registered nurse, or an AMHP, occupational therapist or
paramedic.

The police can keep you at the place of safety for up to 24 hours, which
can be extended for another 12 hours if it was not possible to assess you
in that time. The time starts when you arrive at the place of safety, or
whenever the police arrived if you are not taken somewhere else.

The intention of this regulation is to make sure that the premises where
care and treatment are delivered are clean, suitable for the intended
purpose, maintained and where required, appropriately located.

This report is an annual assessment of health and social care in England.
Key point of relevance to this case is the need to maintain a safe
environment including managing the need to socially distance or isolate
people

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) announced the
publication of its first cross-government suicide prevention workplan.

Page 127



This was created in response to the Suicide prevention inquiry led by the
Health Select Committee, which called for a clearer implementation
strategy for the overall Suicide Prevention Strategy for England (2012).
In July 2021, the Government published its strategy to improve the lives of
disabled people in the UK. Part one of the strategy sets out the immediate
actions needed to improve the everyday lives of disabled people. Part two
National Disability Strategy 2021  covers longer-term changes that will put disabled people “at the heart of
government policymaking and service delivery.” Part three sets out the
actions that will be taken by each Government department.
In January 2023, the Government announced it will publish a Major
Conditions Strategy that will include mental health. The Government has
said a joined-up strategy will ensure that mental health conditions are
Major Conditions Strategy considered alongside physical health conditions. The responses to the
consultation for the 10-year strategy will be used to inform the Major
Conditions Strategy and to develop a new Suicide Prevention Strategy.

The proposal set out in this SOC is in line with the ambitions of the NHS Long Term plan to develop crisis
services including:

e The NHS will ensure that a 24/7 community-based mental health crisis response for adults and
older adults is available across England by 2020/21.

e Inthe next ten years there is commitment to ensuring the NHS will provide a single point of
access and timely, universal mental health crisis care for everyone.

e The will also be increased alternative forms of provision for those in crisis.

e Ambulance staff will be trained and equipped to respond effectively to people in a crisis.

e Clinical decision units can also prevent admission.

e Trust to work hand in hand with the voluntary sector and local authorities on these alternatives
and ensuring they meet the needs of patients, carers, and families.

The NHS Long Term Plan also makes a commitment that by 2023/4 all children and young people
experiencing a mental health crisis will be able to access age-appropriate crisis care 24 hours a day, 7
days a week. This will include crisis assessment, brief response, and intensive home treatment.

2.3  Regional Context

Cheshire and Merseyside Healthcare Partnership

The Cheshire and Merseyside Healthcare Partnership Integrated Care Systems (ICS) is a collaboration of
public NHS and council social care commissioners and providers across Cheshire and Merseyside
working together with partners in the voluntary, community and independent sectors to manage the
health and care needs of the population and provide high quality, sustainable care for the future. The
Healthcare Partnership services a population of 2.7 million population across nine boroughs.

Both Cheshire and Merseyside have areas of substantial wealth and substantial deprivation contributing
to significant health inequalities across the region. A third (33%) of the population of Cheshire and
Merseyside reside in the poorest 20% of neighbourhoods in England, with 15% of children living in

Page 128



absolute poverty households whilst 18% live in relative poverty. Six local authorities in Cheshire and
Merseyside have alcohol-related mortality rates that are higher than the national average, and six also
have above average drug-related mortality rates. In Wirral, more specifically, there are significant
mental health inequalities with 16% of adults suffering from depression compared to an estimated 4.5%
in the UK more widely. This impacts women more negatively, with 24% of women having experienced
depression at some point in their life, compared to 13% of men. Additionally, the ageing population in
Wirral poses a further challenge for the ICS. Figure 2 highlights the footprint of the ICS.

Figure 2 - ICS Footprint

Warrington

Cheshire and Merseyside’s shared vision is highlighted below?:

“Everyone in Cheshire and Merseyside to have a great start in life and get the support they need to
stay healthy and live longer”.

The ICS have identified that this will be accomplished by working together, as equal partners, to tackle
health inequalities and improve the lives of the poorest fastest.

Cheshire and Merseyside have been working towards this for some years and want to continue building
on the work. This includes further strengthening the joint working throughout the Covid-19 pandemic,
which made a significant difference to the lives of local people and their families.

Cheshire and Merseyside have four key strategic objectives.

e Improve population health and healthcare
e Tackle health inequality, improving outcomes and access to services
e Enhancing quality, productivity and value for money

1 Healthwatch Cheshire west

Page 129



e Helping the NHS to support broader social and economic development

The Health and Care Bill set out legislative changes required to change to enable health and care to
work more closely together. In Cheshire and Merseyside, there has long been an ambition to improve
the way services work together, but bureaucracy has often made this challenging. The reforms
therefore support the ICS locally by removing some of the legal rules that can inhibit truly joined up
care.

The Cheshire and Merseyside ICS governance structure includes:

e Integrated Care Board (ICB) - Integrated Care Board (ICB) has been established as a statutory
organisations to lead integration within the NHS. The Cheshire and Merseyside ICB have a
unitary board and minimum requirements for board membership will be set in legislation.

e Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) - The Integrated Care Partnership provides a forum for NHS
leaders and local authorities (LAs) to come together, as equal partners, alongside important
stakeholders from across Cheshire and Merseyside.

e Place-Based Partnerships - The Cheshire and Merseyside ICB has arranged for some of its
functions to be delivered, and decisions about NHS funding to be made, in the region’s 9
borough places — through Place-Based Partnerships. The ICB remains accountable for NHS
resources deployed at borough place-level. The ICB has set out the role of designated Place-
based leaders within its governance arrangements. Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) will
continue to develop the joint strategic needs assessment and joint health and wellbeing
strategy, which both the ICP and ICB will give due regard.

There are ten principles that underpin how the Cheshire and Merseyside ICS will work with people and
communities:

1. Putthe voices of people and communities at the centre of decision-making and governance, at
every level of the ICS.

2. Start engagement early when developing plans and feedback to people and inform communities
about how their engagement has influenced activities and decisions.

3. Understand your community’s needs, experience and aspirations for health and care, using
engagement to find out if change is having the desired effect.

4. Build relationships with excluded groups, especially those affected by inequalities.

5. Work with Healthwatch and the voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) sector as
key partners.

6. Provide clear and accessible public information about vision, plans and progress, to build
understanding and trust.

7. Use community development approaches that empower people and communities, making
connections to social action.

8. Use co-production, insight and engagement to achieve accountable health and care services.

9. Co-produce and redesign services and tackle system priorities in partnership with people and
communities.

10. Learn from what works and build on the assets of all ICS partners — networks, relationships,
activity in local places.

Page 130



2.4  Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Organisational

Overview

Overview

CWP provides a comprehensive mental healthcare service to residents of Cheshire and the Wirral and a

range of specialist mental health services to communities in the Northwest and beyond. The Trust

operates from 70 sites, serves a culturally and socially diverse population of over 1 million people and

provides highly specialist services for 2 million. The Trust has an income of around £200m and a

dedicated workforce of more than 4000 staff. It covers a range of local and regional services and

partnerships covering inpatient, community and specialist mental healthcare.

The Trust provides a range of inpatient, community and specialist mental health services for service

users. These services are split into four key areas:

e Mental Health Core Services

O O O O

O O O O O

Forensic inpatient/secure wards

Child and adolescent mental health wards

Wards for older people with mental health problems

Acute wards for adults of working age and psychiatric intensive care units
(PICU’s)

Community-based mental health services for adults of working age

Wards for people with a learning disability or autism

Mental health crisis services and health-based places of safety

Specialist community mental health services for children and young people
Community-based mental health services for older people, people with a
learning disability or autism

e Mental Health non-core and specialist services

O
O
o

Community eating disorder services
Inpatient eating disorder services
Community perinatal services

e Acute - Community health core services

O

Community health services — adults’ community, children, young people and
families and end of life care

e Primary Care Services

O
o

GP practices
Out of hours GP service

The most recent CQC assessment of the Trust (undertaken in 2020) rated it as ‘Good overall, with it
being regarded as outstanding in one category. (Figure 3).

Page 131



Figure 3 - CQC Assessment

Safe Good .
Effective Good @
Caring Outstanding €
Responsive Good @
Well-led Good @

Vision and Strategic Direction

The Trust’s Five-Year Strategy outlines how the Trust will provide the best care in the right way in the
right place at the right time, with joined up care across health and social care.

The Trust’s Strategic vision is to

“Work in partnership to improve health and well-being by providing high quality, person-centred
care.”

There are 8 strategic ambitions that directly relate to how the Trust will achieve its vision, as shown
below. These strategic ambitions have driven the specific investment objectives that have been
identified for the project (See section 2.10).

1. We will serve the people of Cheshire and Wirral (and beyond) through identifying need,
reducing inequalities, and improving outcomes for all.

2. We will support the development of capability, resilience, and social value within
communities.

3. We will serve the communities by working in partnership with others and providing care
that influences advocates and support.

4. We will support the provision of integrated services that are outstanding, evidence
based, and enable equitable access for all.

5. We will make the best use of the resources available to us and will allocate them
according to need and best value outcomes.

6. We will use our influence, physical presence, and assets to reduce inequalities and
improve the environment.

7. We will be person-centred and value-based and make CWP a place which enables
people to be the best that they can be.

8. We will continuously improve, innovate and share our learning across communities.

Each objective has been defined through working with partners and people with lived experience in
order to clearly set out what the Trust needs to achieve.

Page 132



Figure 4 - Objectives

Improving
health, care
and wellbeing

Working with
communities

Working in
partnership

Delivering,
Planning and
commissioning
services

Making best
value

Reducing
inequalities

Enabling our
people

Improving and
innovating

Working within communities in partnership with the people who access our services,
third sector and other health and care partners

Ensuring our service delivery emphasises health promotion and prevention
Contributing to the Cheshire and Merseyside No More Suicide partnership with the
ambition of zero suicide

Delivering person-centred services focused on care communities and dedicated to
whole-person wellbeing.

Focusing on areas of local deprivation and working in partnership with communities to
develop services to meet local needs.

Developing and providing access to education and training opportunities with and for
stakeholders

Supporting the carers and families of those who access our services.

Being influential in Integrated Care Partnerships and working with Local Authorities and
community partners to meet local needs.

By ensuring that all people who access CWP services are also supported by partners
who support wider determinants of health

Commissioning services through other partners and leading in Provider Collaboratives
Ensuring delivery of services that are outstanding, evidence-based and enable equitable
access and outcomes for all.

Ensuring provision of integrated physical and mental health services centred on care
communities.

Ensuring that all care pathways focus on what matters most by being co-produced with
those accessing or affected by services

Delivering high quality care that reduces unwarranted variation in outcomes and cost.
Supporting the provision of sustainable care within the limits of financial, social and
environmental resources

Enhancing social value within our communities

Using benchmarking and continuous improvement to ensure our services provide value
for money

Tackling social injustice

Being an Anchor Institution in our communities

Being good citizens with a social conscience.

Contributing to improving environmental sustainability

Collaborating with partners to address economic poverty and eliminate digital poverty
within our population

Ensuring that everyone within CWP knows they belong and has the confidence to make
their own unique contribution.

Providing opportunities to develop knowledge and skills and to fulfil our potential.
Creating a place of positive health and wellbeing and, through our policies and
practices, treating colleagues equitably and fairly.

Being a community of people which is representative of the communities we serve.
Building Quality Improvement Capability (capacity, competence and confidence) in our
people, volunteers and peer support workers.

Conducting research and implementing research findings consistently and at scale to
benefit the public and increase knowledge.

Using national and international evidence to develop learning and innovation
Supporting and encouraging innovation.

Developing our digital capability

Page 133



The Trust also commits to reducing inequalities and improving the overall wellbeing of the local people
they serve. This means that, alongside their core business, they will play a significant role in making a
strategic contribution to the local economy. As such, seek to maximise the positive social value impact
we have on our local communities, contributing to improving the economic, social and environmental
wellbeing of the local population. As a result of this, The Trust will:

ks B @ ¥y

Emphasis on good Qualities we look Ambitions of how Standards of how Behaviours to
quality services for for in our staff we want to work we want all enable cultural
patients and carers and provide care individuals to feel change and
across the underpin the
organisation, Trust’s drive
patients, service towards a
users, carers, and continuous
staff improvement
culture

Figure 5-The 6 C's

e Focus on tackling health inequalities, removing the barriers to enhancing wellbeing for all

e Maximise local investment, recognising the social, economic and environmental benefits of
doing so

e Increase local employment and training opportunities for local people, especially from areas of
High deprivation and unemployment

e Be recognised as a good employer, provide outstanding careers, ensuring our employees have a
positive and fulfilling experience and empowering our staff to deliver outstanding services every
day

e Champion equality, diversity and inclusion, recognising people from different backgrounds and
experience make a valuable contribution to the way in which we work

e Be greener and sustainable, recognising the impact we have and could have on the environment

Page 134



The map at Figure 6 shows the geographical location between the Trust and its ICS health partners.

Figure 6 - Geographical Location between Trust and ICS

Haresfinch 2 MAREREIERY |
\0 . .
STHELENS  HEWTON-LE:

LWILLOWS
b
| o

£ o
GLOSSOP

| Sl
Ao T NS
m - PARTINGTON

© CHAPELEN-
LEFRITH
i %

o
CAERWYS,

Vi

o
RUTHIN

7 sy SCN O 8 -
o*'(t X/ / X =
EWCASTLE- /L | Adderley Gr T
. UNDER-LyMe | y,
g " [ o
. NAY | Porenc) CHEADLE
A raa\ 3

This map includes a wide range of partner organisations including:

e Primary care

e Secondary care

e Care Homes

e Children’s Centres

e Mental Health Facilities

e NHS Trusts

e NHS Property Services & LIFT
e Urgent & Emergency Services

CWP Clinical Strategic Direction

The Trust has an ambition to transform clinical services in order to provide the best care in the right way
in the right place at the right time, with joined up care across health and social care. This ambition, as it
aligns with the services detailed in this SOC, focuses on the 6C’s:

Page 135



e (Care

o To be more than just a support service. To work in partnership with clinicians, and to share
the responsibility in delivering person-centred care.

e Competence

o To ensure the department has the right combination of skills, training and knowledge to
assure the board that the build environment is safe, fit for purpose and compliant to all
standards.

e Courage

o To establish a culture of learning from our mistakes and building on our successors.

e Communication

o To acknowledge that talking, learning and listening to colleagues, patients and carers is the
most effective way of improving our service.

¢ Commitment

o To collaborate and work in partnership in order to achieve our goals.

e Compassion

o To do our best to improve the lives and opportunities of our patients.

Estates Profile and Strategic Direction

The Trust has a Board-approved Estates and Facilities Strategy 2022-2027. The priorities for estate
investment and development have been based on the Trust’s Clinical Services Strategy.

The priorities for 2022-2027 are:

The Quality of the Estate

Demand and Capacity

Rationalisation of the Estate
Adaptability and Flexibility of the Estate
Inpatients Transformation

Outpatients Transformation
Community Care

Digital Empowerment

. Environmental Performance

10. Surplus Land and Estate for Disposal
11. Prioritised Capital Programme Planning
12. Workforce and Work Environment

©oONDU A WN R

Page 136



The Trust currently deliver their services from a varied portfolio made up of freehold and leasehold
assets, which are constantly evolving as services are delivered from different locations. The split
between freehold and leasehold properties, in terms of their square meterage is shown below:

Figure 7 - Tenure

33,404
39,951

= Leasehold = Freehold

Green Plan

An integral part of the Estates Strategy is the planned reduction of carbon usage. The overall NHS
commitment is to be Carbon Net Zero by 2040 with interim targets in 2030. The Trust’s Green Plan
vision is:

“We will work through our Green Plan to achieve a net zero NHS, reduce harm to the environment and
to improve health outcomes and wellbeing for the people of Cheshire and the Wirral, now and for future
generations. Drawing on our people, our values, and position as an anchor institution, we will
incorporate sustainable development into everything we do. “

The Trust highlights their ambition to help the NHS become the first health service in the world with net
zero greenhouse gas emissions. The focuses of the Green Plan are:

e Incorporating net zero actions, such as improving the energy efficiency of the
built estate, decarbonising heating systems and strengthening sustainable
procurement practices

e Developing a robust climate change adaptation plan

e Enhancing net zero awareness and skill bases across clinical and non-clinical
areas of the Trust

e Strengthening our data collection processes to allow, refined target-setting,
monitoring and action planning

e Developing green travel plans for staff, patients and visitors and
purchasing/leasing ultra-low emissions or zero emission fleet vehicles

Page 137



Operational Estates Performance — NHS Premises Assurance Model 2021

The Trust has undertaken a self-assessment of operational and strategic estate management and
completed the NHS mandated Premises Assurance Model. This model supports boards, directors of
finance and estates and clinical leaders to make more informed decisions about the development of our
estate and facilities services and provides assurances that the estate is safe, efficient, effective and of
high quality.

In 2013, the first NHS Premises Assurance Model (NHS PAM) was published. Since then, the model has
been regularly updated by the Department of Health and Social Care and the NHS.

The latest version has been updated to reflect feedback from users and the working group, the NHS
Constitution and changes in policy, strategy, technology and regulation. These updates ensure the
model is as useful and effective as possible for Trusts.

Functions and benefits of the model are included in Figure 8:

Figure 8 - Functions and Benefits

 The ability to measure compliance against legislation and guidance across the
" whole NHS

The results of the 2021 PAM assessment (Figure 9) report a high level of compliance with the
expectations of NHS Estates and highlights areas where further improvements required.

Figure 9 - 2021 PAM Assessment

Hard FM - Soft FM - Safety Patient Efficiency Effectiveness ~ Governance
Safety Experience
m Outstanding m Good
= Requires minimal improvement m Requires moderate improvement

Page 138



Patient Led Assessments of the Care Environment (PLACE)

Every NHS patient should be cared for with compassion and dignity in a clean, safe environment. Where
standards fall short, they should be able to draw it to the attention of managers and hold the service to
account. PLACE assessments will provide motivation for improvement by providing a clear message,
directly from patients, about how the environment or services might be enhanced.

April 2013 saw the introduction of PLACE, which is the system for assessing the quality of the patient
environment, replacing the old Patient Environment Action Team (PEAT) inspections. The assessments
primarily apply to hospitals and hospices providing NHS-funded care in both the NHS and
private/independent sectors, but others are also encouraged and helped to participate in the
programme.

The PLACE collection underwent a national review, which started in 2018 and concluded in summer
2019. The Trust estates team facilitated the 2019 PLACE inspection based on the new guidelines the
results of which are illustrated in Figure 10. PLACE assessments provide motivation for improvement by
providing a clear message, directly from patients, about how the environment or services might be
enhanced. The results of the PLACE inspection directly inform the Trust capital programme for targeted
investment in patient environments. An example of this, as a result of the 2019 PLACE inspections, the
board approved capital programme has included a cyclical programme of ward refurbishments.

Figure 10 - NHS Patient-Led Assessment of the Care Environment Collection, NHS Digital

120.00%
100.00%
80.00% A B ANCORA HOUSE
I I I I B SOSS MOSS
60.00% - B EASTWAY HOUSE
I I I I B CLATTERBRIDGE HOSPITAL
40.00% - B WEST CHESHIRE SITE (BOWMERE HOSPITAL)
B ROSEMOUNT DAY CARE CENTRE, (GREENWAYS)
MACCLESFIELD
20.00% - I I I I
0.00%

Cleanliness Food Score % Ward Food Privacy & Condition Dementia Disability
Score % Score % Dignity % Maintenace score % score %
%

Statutory Compliance

Estate compliance is co-ordinated, managed and reported by the Compliance Support Officer (CSO) for
Infrastructure Services. Systems in place include a central dashboard for management of outsourced
maintenance, a separate dashboard for in-house certificated maintenance, planned preventative
maintenance software program licensed from Micad and water management software programme

Page 139



licensed from Zetasafe. Systems were reviewed by MIAA during September to November 2020 and
given a substantial level of assurance. The systems and reports introduced by the CSO enhanced those
already in place and were critical in reaching this level of assurance.

As of 20 December 2021, overall compliance position was at 95% covering 1,908 assets over 36
compliance elements. This covers compliance disciplines outsourced to external service providers and
services provided by the in-house trade team.

2.5 Key Partner Organisations Overview

Wirral University Teaching Hospital

Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (WUTH) serves a population of about 400,000
people across Wirral, Ellesmere Port, Neston, North Wales and the wider Northwest area.

The Trust operates from two main sites:

e Arrowe Park Hospital, Upton — Delivering a full range of emergency (adults and children) and
acute services for adults in the main hospital building. The Wirral Women’s and Children’s
Hospital provides maternity, neonatal, gynaecology, children’s inpatient, day case and
outpatient units.

e (Clatterbridge Hospital, Bebington — Delivers planned surgical services, dermatology services,
breast care and specialist stroke and neuro rehabilitation services.

Outpatient services are provided from community locations including:

e St Catherine’s Health Centre, Birkenhead — providing x-ray, community paediatric services,
paediatric audiology and a range of outpatient clinics.

e Victoria Central Health Centre, Wallasey — providing x-ray, some outpatient services and
antenatal clinic.

e @GP practices, schools, and children’s

centres. The Trust provides a full range of services
including:

e Accident & emergency services for adults and children

e Diverse range of acute and non-acute specialties

e Qutpatient services

e Day surgery services

e Maternity including a midwifery led unit

e Diagnostic and clinical support services

e Specialist services including renal medicine, dermatology, orthopaedics (hip & knee revisions),
ophthalmology (retinal), urology (cancer centre), stroke (hyper-acute unit), gynaecology
(advanced laparoscopic endometriosis centre), neonatal level 3 unit and Ronald McDonald
House a charity home providing accommodation for parents of sick children and premature
babies.

Page 140



WUTH is one of the largest hospitals in the North West and their vision, values, foundations and
strategic objectives are highlighted below (Figure 11):

Figure 11 - WUTH Visions, Values, Foundations and Strategic Objectives

Our
Vision

..deliver the best quality and safest
care to the communities we serve

QOur
Values

Getting the

@«
=
= Better
= Basics right Best
s S
S &
Outstanding Compassionat Continuous Our Partners: Digital Future: Infrastructure:
©
e Care: e Workforce: Improvement:
s 2
@ o N .
= % Provide the Be a great Maximise our Provide Be a digital Improve our
O © best care and place to work potential to seamless care pioneer and infrastructure
support improve and working with centre for and how we
deliver best our partners digital use it
value excellence

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council, or simply Wirral Council, is the local authority of the Metropolitan
Borough of Wirral in Merseyside, England. It is a metropolitan district council, one of five in Merseyside
and one of 36 in the metropolitan counties of England and provides the majority of local government
services in Wirral. It is a constituent council of Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.

The council delivers a wide range of services broken down into the following departments:

e Children, Families and Education including:
o Early Help and Prevention

Education

Children and Families

Modernisation and Support

o O O

e Resources
o Early Help and Prevention
o Education
o Children and Families
o Modernisation and Support
e Neighbourhood Services
o Highways

Page 141



O O O

O

Transport

Parks, Environment and Climate Change
Libraries, Leisure and Customer Engagement
Neighbourhood Safety and Transport

e Regeneration and Place

O

o O O O

Regeneration

Asset Management and Investment
Housing

Planning and Building Control
Special Projects

Culture and Visitor Economy

Local Plan Vision for 2037 is that Wirral offers a high quality of life to all and is an attractive place to live.

It provides an active, productive, safe and healthy lifestyle in vibrant culturally rich communities across

the Borough. It is an environmentally sustainable and prosperous Borough with a strong sense of place

and identity, a place that people are proud to call home and want to invest in. Its success complements

the attractiveness of, and makes a significant contribution to, the economic competitiveness and

international standing of the Liverpool City Region.

2.6

Population and Demography (CWP Catchment)

The catchment of CWP is ethnically diverse and characterised by economic inequality. As a result, there
is a higher need for access to health services, including mental health. Figure 12 summarises key
demographic statistics for the Trust’s population.

Figure 12 - Trust Demographics

Category Demographic Profile |
e Cheshire has an ageing population, with 23.9% of people being over 65 years old.
Age e The average age of the population in Wirral is 38.06 which is below the
regional and national averages.
Ethnicity e 10.12% of those living in Cheshire identify with a non-white ethnic group.
e 7.1% of those living in Wirral identify with a non-white ethnic group.
A e  Wirral is one of the 20% most deprived boroughs in England, with a quarter of
Deprivation . L . .
children living in low-income families.
Life e The life expectancy for those living in Wirral is 81.6 years.
expectancy ¢ The life expectancy for those living in Cheshire East is 80.3 years.
e Over 9,000 people claim unemployment benefits in the Wirral.
Unemployment ¢ The unemployment rate in Cheshire West and Cheshire and Halton is 3.4%
and 4.4% respectively. This is lower than the national average of 4.8%.

ONS data (Figure 13) highlights that the population of Cheshire and Wirral is set to increase by 7.2 %
from 2022 (1,066,265) — 2043 (1,145,609).

Page 142



Figure 13 - Cheshire and Wirral Population Growth

Cheshire and Wirral Population Growth
1,200,000
1,150,000
1,100,000

1,050,000
1,000,000

- TN N TN B WAL - XS NN TN A R SN A o SR < B WX - BA S SIS SRR NG PN
N N AR A N 2 I 2 S N A S I R R R e R R T A e

ONS data (Figure 14) highlights that the population of Wirral is set to increase by 3.2 % from 2022
(325,816) — 2043 (336,348).

Figure 14: Wirral Population Growth 2022 - 2043

Wirral Population Growth

340,000

335,000 /

330,000

325,000

320,000

TN SN Ry WK, SN S S A PR N SR SN R W SN SN SR PR
P WD DI DD RPD D SHIPCASIEIRN
S FFITILIIEITLLITIT L FLS ST S

Figure 15 shows that the 0-19 population is set to decrease by 6.6%, as well as the 20-64 population
which is set to decrease by 2.4%, however the 65+ is set to increase substantially by 23.5%.

Figure 15: Wirral Population Growth 2022 — 2043 by Age Group

Wirral Population Growth by Age Group

400,000
350,000
300,000 738bs
250,000
200,000
150,000 1781636
100,000
50,000 55Ml,
0
DD O © N D o S 0 5 O O N O D
R O NP TP PSP PP
’9@’9@’9’9@'\9@@’» DT AT AT AT AT AT DT A DA AP

R O N R e

H(0-19 m20-64 MW65+

Page 143



Figure 16 highlights the wider determinants of health for Cheshire and Wirral:

Figure 16: Wider Determinants of Health - PHE

Indicator

Cheshire West and Chester

Cheshire East

Life expectancy at birth (Female)New data 2018 -20

Life expectancy at birth (Male)New data 2018 - 20 79.4
Inequality in life expectancy at birth (Female) 2018 -20 7.9

Inequality in life expectancy at birth (Male) 2018 - 20 9.7

(I\j/lec]:irr;ciatlii;cx)rate from causes considered preventable (2016 2016 - 18 180.8
Under 75 mortality rate from causes considered preventable 2021 183.2
Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases 2021 76

Under 75 mortality rate from cancer 2021 121.5
Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease 2021 21.2
Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease 2021 26.5
Health related quality of life for older people 2016/17 0.735

Part B: The Case for Change

2.7  Existing Arrangements
Current Wirral Crisis Response Services

CWP are in the process of developing an adult First Response Service that will bring together the
different teams and functions that provide support to people experiencing a self-defined crisis. The
following functions make-up the First Response Team (FRS):

e Home Treatment

e Liaison Psychiatry

e Street Triage

e 24/7 Crisis Line

e Criminal Justice Liaison

e CWP enhanced transport

Page 144



The FRS is also working closely with Children Young People and Families (CYP&F), Learning Disability (LD)
Neurodevelopment Disorder (NDD) and Acquired Brain Injury (ABI) teams and their urgent response
services to provide an integrated approach to people in mental health crisis across all ages.

In addition, the following partners also work closely with the FRS:

e Northwest Ambulance Service (NWAS)

e Police

e Local Authority Emergency Duty Team

e Crisis Café Providers

e |SL (Organisation who provide tailored services at home and in the community to enable people
to reach their potential and achieve their goals)

e Red Cross

These multiple providers and teams however are currently accommodated at multiple sites across the
Wirral geographical footprint.

The primary focus for services users currently accessing crisis response services is the emergency
department (ED) at Arrowe Park Hospital and the ED is also the current designated “place of Safety”
under section 136 of the Mental Health Act 1983.

The current delivery model increases the risk of fragmented care pathways, limited system oversight
and poorer experience of services for both those that access care and those that provide care and
support.

The current service issues include:

e Poor experience of Emergency Departments for service users in mental health crisis, especially
in section 136 suites.

e The quality of environments varied, with some not being fit for purpose.

e Cheshire and Wirral are a national outlier on section 136 provision.

e Increasing demand within acute care especially in emergency medicine.

e Service users do not think of “NHS 111 First” pathways for mental health.

e Unwarranted variation in acute care pathways and multiple hand offs and transitions across the
pathway of care.

e Physical health and mental health not integrated within urgent care pathways.

e Multiple assessment from multiple providers.

Page 145



Estate

As noted in the section above urgent care in mental health services are focused on the Arrowe Park
Hospital site in terms of service users in crisis who attend the ED on the site. However, the teams which
deliver these services are based on different sites including:

e Crisis Resolution Home Treatment Team — Springview, Clatterbridge Health Park
e Liaison Psychiatry Team and Street Triage — Arrowe Park Hospital.
e Local Authority Emergency Duty Team - Stein Centre, St Catherine’s

Hospital Figure 17 shows the current site plan for Arrowe Park Hospital.

Figure 17 - Site Plan

The ED at Arrowe Park Hospital is currently undergoing extensive refurbishment as part of a £28.8m
upgrade due to be completed in Spring 2023. This upgrade will provide better accommodation for
patients who have parallel physical and mental health needs, with an area which has four consulting
rooms where patients presenting with a mental health condition can be cared for. Each room will be
fully anti-ligature and compliant for escape if required. Whilst the area does not have a true defined
136 suite, it will be a suitable environment for a patient to be detained under sections 135 / 136 of the
Mental Health Act whilst also receiving care for physical health.

Specific areas for improvement across Wirral in terms of supporting people in metal health crisis
include:

e Requirements for dedicated alternative place of safety on the Wirral with
suitable accommodation for patients in mental health crisis who do not
necessarily require physical health interventions.

e De-escalation/quiet room to be provided as part of a dedicated 136/place of
safety suite.

Page 146



e Delivery of crisis response services from a building that delivers a calming
and therapeutic environment, providing a non-clinical experience.

e Facilities which enable teams and services to work together in a more
integrated way.

2.8 Crisis and Urgent Care Transformation Programme
The Crisis and Urgent Care Transformation Programme highlights the following key objectives:

e To provide an open, accessible mental health crisis line for people in self-defined crisis.
Demonstrating the Crisis Lines achievements, targets, demand, accessibility and outcomes from
contacts and calls etc.

e To develop and implement Assessment Suites in each locality and demonstrate the impacts on
contacts, ED and diversion including provision of 136 facilities where required.

e Demonstrate improved patient experience, including reduction in waiting times, alternatives to
section 136 and access to alternative support within the community. Demonstrate a seamless
all age approach for patients in self-defined crisis.

e Transform the response culture; reduce silos through an inclusive approach to engagement by
developing the Trust wide First Response Service.

e Development of Integrated Urgent Care Centre’s Trust wide.

2.9 Urgent Response Model of Care
Service Model

The purpose of crisis and urgent Care Transformation as set out in the NHS Long Term Plan is to support
multidisciplinary working and enable a more effective response to patients, by providing fast and
efficient care closer to home, improving patient care and experience, whilst reducing unnecessary ED
attendances. The Trust are working on transforming service delivery, by bringing services together, with
an aim to ensure that patients get the right care, in the right place, whenever it is needed.

As well as increasing capacity and improving models of traditional NHS crisis care services,
implementation of these ambitions will include a central role for NHS-funded voluntary sector services
in providing complementary and alternative models of crisis care. It is expected that NHS services will
work alongside other system partners to deliver comprehensive and accessible local crisis care
pathways.

The creation of integrated URC’s across the Trust is an innovative and ambitious response to support
those with emergency mental health needs that don’t require acute medical intervention. The Trust is
keen to provide a ‘one stop shop’ to be able to cater to emergency primary mental health crisis and
minor health complaints.

The multi-agency model of care has the potential to deliver the following benefits:

e Benefits to service users:
o Great experience of integrated, joined up care and support when experiencing a crisis.
o Right place, right time, right person principle reducing transitions, hand-offs and multiple
assessments.

Page 147



e Benefits to people supporting and providing care and support:
o Peersupport, improved morale
o Clear standards and operational guidelines
o Better value from resources through a shared approach of skills, knowledge and assets

e Benefits to system:
o Opportunity for greater collaboration
o Escalation of strategic issues for resolution
o Strategic problem solving
o Better value from resources

The Trusts multi-agency model of care reduces waste, provides a better experience for all, is person
centred and enables those accessing the integrated urgent care offer to define their own crisis, through
a one front door approach, servicing all age and care groups.

The ambition is to provide a thorough therapeutic and holistic psychiatric evaluation, by a multi skilled
mental health workforce, in a site that has been designed to offer the up most compassion and care.

The Trust have developed this model which highlights their current state and desired state for the
pathway (Figure 18):

Figure 18 — The Trust’s Urgent Care Model

©000060

Urgent Response
Service

Made vp of reps from
each bubble on the left,
Including physical health,

2 bed co-ordinator, 3

police officer and 3
paramedic

i

One decision

This model shows that the Crisis Line can be accessed through numerous means, such as, individual,
Carer, NHS 111, NWAS, Police, Primary Care and can be dealt with in several ways, including linking in
with the 3rd Sector and Primary care provision.

The development of the URC is central to the development of a First response approach to delivering an
urgent care mental health response for people of all ages in crisis who do not require ED attendance.

Page 148



Opportunities for a system wide response which is deployed from the FRS, including CYP&F and urgent
support teams along with other partners will support effective triage and divert from ED into the
community assets which will include Crisis Cafes and peoples' own homes. This should reduce footfall
through the Wirral ED as appropriate.

The URC will create a centralised point within the Wirral footprint for all urgent work requests and
distribute the need and demand across existing services in a co-ordinated way, utilising all the different
skills within the teams. Staff would work across community and ED as part of the urgent mental health
response. This would reduce the peaks and troughs of individual service demand and level the overall
response.

This function would also support NWAS and Police forces, and therefore ensure people with mental
health needs are not being conveyed to ED unless they require more acute physical health
interventions.

The next stage in the implementation of the model highlights the urgent face-to-face locality response,
as noted previously this is currently disjointed, with multiple services trying to support the service users
in an isolated matter. The preferred state highlights the desire to bring these services together with the
need for improved collaboration, to ensure the needs of the patients are met in the right place at the
right time. This will also allow for improved efficiencies and better-quality outcomes.

If a face-to-face assessment is required, and this cannot be completed within the individuals' home,
crisis café or other community setting the URC will have available assessment rooms where people can
be seen by the most appropriate practitioner in a suitable environment. The facilities will be provided
to support all ages along an alternative place of safety for individuals who have been detained on
section 136 of the mental health act. If more acute services are required, the service user may be
referred to crisis resolution home treatment teams or inpatient acute care.

Environment to Deliver Service Model

The URC will have a multi-disciplinary team (MDT) approach. This will require close working across the
different organisations which can only be achieved when there is a clear direction, focus and goal which
every individual is working towards. The centre will be led by a team with many years’ experiences and
a special understanding for the diverse service user cohort. The staffing model also includes the
ambition to provide minor physical health care within the centre.

The suggested services and teams based at or visiting the unit are highlighted below:

e Learning Disability

e Adults Mental Health Team

e Police

e Ambulance Service

e Local Authority— Emergency Duty Team
o CYP&F

e Neighbourhood Teams

e Home Treatment Teams

Page 149



e Liaison Psychiatry

e Older Peoples Team

e Safeguarding Team

e Drugand Alcohol Team

2.10 Project Investment Objectives
The project investment objectives associated with this SOC are shown below. The measures associated
with the project objectives have been used as the basis of the economic appraisal in the Economic Case,
and the benefits realisation plan identified in the Management Case. The project investment objectives
are based on the need for the Wirral URC to support the delivery of a joined up integrated model of
care for service users in crisis, commissioning requirements and organisational objectives.

Figure 19 - Investment Objectives

Investment
Location of the Wirral URC

Objective 1

e Bolstering existing service provision, both acute and community
e  Optimising co-location of resources

e  Parity of access

e Supporting people in crisis in the best possible location

Definition

e Ensuring care is delivered in a calm, therapeutic and secure space

e Supporting the varying needs of service users e.g. autism and dementia friendly
Definition e Enabling delivery of high-quality care in appropriate accommodation

e Improving service user experience

Investment

Objective 3

e Fitfor purpose for both staff and service users

e Enabling co-location for colleagues whilst ensuring separate access for service users

e Considering access to the facility in conjunction with wider acute and community
offering

Definition

Investment | Demand and future proof

Objective 4

e Reducing pressure on existing emergency department
e Reducing pressure on existing place of safety facilities

Definition e Enabling appropriate deflections away from the ED
e  Supporting improved mental health capacity in the Wirral and management of future
demand

Investment

Objective 5

e Ensuring the facility acts as a key enabler for the delivery of the model of care for mental
health services in the Wirral
Definition e  Ensuring parity of access for all
e Enabling better partnership working between primary, secondary, third sector, social
care and other key partners.

Page 150



2.11

Business Needs

This section identifies the 'business gap' in relation to overall existing arrangements i.e. the difference

between 'where we want to be' (as suggested by the proposed model of care and the investment

objectives) and 'where we are now' (in terms of existing arrangements for the service). This highlights

the problemes, difficulties and inadequacies associated with the status quo. The table below (Figure 20)

outlines the existing arrangements and describes the problems with these existing arrangements in

order to identify business need.

Figure 20 - Business Needs

Investment Location
Objective 1

Existing
Arrangements

Urgent care in mental health services are focused on the Arrowe Park Hospital site in terms
of service users in crisis who attend the ED on the site or in the community, however the
teams which deliver these services are based on different sites across the Wirral Geography.

Business Need

Development of a centralised URC where teams can be collocated in order to:

e Bolster and improve existing service provision, both acute and community.

e Colocation of physical and mental health services on one site.

e  Optimising co-location of resources and the associated improvements in patient
outcomes.
Parity of access.
Supporting people in crisis in the best possible location.

Investment

Objective 2

Existing
Arrangements

Therapeutic Environment

Currently services are delivered in a variety of locations including the ED at Arrowe Park,
although the facility is undergoing significant investment and will have some assessment rooms
it will not have a dedicated 136 area and still be part of a more clinical feeling acute hospital

department.

Business
Need

A new URC will provide dedicated accommodation for people in mental health crisis but who
do not need the acute physical support of an ED department, a specifically designed facility
will:

e Ensure careis delivered in a calm, therapeutic and secure space.

e The facility can be non-clinical and non-institutional.

e Support the varying needs of service users e.g., autism and dementia friendly.

e Enabling delivery of high-quality care in appropriate accommodation.

e Improving service user experience.

Investment
Objective 3

Patient and staff experience

Existing
Arrangements

Currently services are delivered in a variety of locations including the ED at Arrowe Park,
although the facility is undergoing significant investment and have some assessment rooms it
will not have a dedicated 136 area and be part of a more clinical feeling acute hospital
department.. The teams which deliver these services are based on different sites across the
Wirral Geography and this leads to a number of issues as noted previously in the SOC.

Business
Need

A URC which will provide dedicated therapeutic accommodation for people in mental health
crisis but who do not need the acute physical support of an ED department, whilst still being
collocated with the ED on Arrowe Park Hospital, should patients’ acuity in terms of physical
health deteriorate. Also enable co-location for colleagues and provide dedicated staff welfare
facilities.

Page 151



Investment Demand and Future Proofing
Objective 4
The lack of dedicated alternative facilities for people in mental health crisis along with
Existing dedicated place of safety/136 provision adds to the pressure on the ED at Arrowe Park. Also,
Arrangements | the dispersed nature of the various teams does not promote integrated or coordinated
pathways for people in mental health crisis.
Development of a dedicated URC collocated with the ED at Arrowe Park Hospital which can
support with:
*  Reducing pressure on existing emergency department
B *  Reducing pressure on existing place of safety facility within the ED.
Need *  Enabling appropriate deflections away from the ED and support care in the right

place at the right time for patients.
*  Supporting improved mental health capacity in the Wirral and management of
future demand.
Supporting integrated and coordinated care by all partners for people in crisis.

Investment
Objective 5

Partnership Working - Enabling the Model of Care

Existing
Arrangements

The teams which deliver mental health crisis response services are based on different sites
across the Wirral Geography, which can lead to disjointed working, multiple assessments and
handoffs for people in crisis.

Business
Need

A dedicated URC with space for all the associated teams and partners to come togetherin an
MDT approach which will:
e Ensure the facility acts as a key enabler for the delivery of the model of care for
mental health services in the Wirral.
e  Ensure parity of access for all.
e Enable better partnership working between primary, secondary, third sector, social
care and other key partners.

2.12

Potential Scope

The potential scope for the project has been developed based on the investment objectives and

business needs identified in the previous section. The scope has been assessed against a continuum of

need ranging from minimum to maximum (Figure 21).

Figure 21 - Potential Scope

Potential
Scope

Minimum Intermediate 1 Intermediate2  Intermediate 3 ‘ Maximum
Improved UR Urgent Response Provision of co- | Provision of co- Provision of
assessments assessments all ordinated UR ordinated UR additional
co-ordinated undertaken in assessments to assessments, with | suitable

by the crisis people's homes or | support ED with | teams co-located | assessment space
line to the community, teams and new 136 to support ED
support ED with teams collocated in a provision withina | with teams

but teams not | collocated but URC but with URC - BUT not collocated and
collocated collocated with new 136

Page 152




Minimum Intermediate 1 Intermediate 2 Intermediate 3 Maximum

and no new with no new 136 no new 136 ED but with a provision within a
136 provision | provision provision service user URC collocated
transport service with ED on
in place. Arrowe Park

This business case will take forward the maximum scope which is to provide fit for assessment space to
support ED with teams collocated and alternative 136 provision.

2.13 Benefits Planning

Based on the investment objectives and the agreed scope of works, benefits have been identified as
categorised as follows:

e CRB-cash-releasing benefits (e.g., avoided costs)

e Non CRB - non-cash-releasing benefits (e.g. staff time saved)

e SB-societal benefits (e.g., achievement of targets)

e UB-unmonetisable benefits (e.g., improvement in staff morale)

Figure 22 shows the main categorised benefits.

Figure 22 - Benefit Log

Benefit ‘ Description

NCRB | ReductioninED Reduction in ED attendances through delivery of the scheme and provision
Attendances of alternative pathway for people in mental health crisis.

NCRB | Reductionin Reduction in the number of incidents reported in the Trust's incident
incidents recording system through improved throughput, increased capacity and

treatment of patients in the most appropriate setting

NCRB | Reduction in Reduction in incidents against different categorisation to B2 above.
incidents of Reduction in incidents; Patient on Patient, Patient on Staff, self-harm and
physical aggression | patient behaviour, incidents of damage to property,

and/or harm

NCRB Improvement Improved Trust performance against the 4 Hour Quality Standard through
against 4-hour management of service users in the most appropriate setting. Reduced
quality standard - attendance at ED and therefore reduced wait times
Patient Flow

NCRB Reduced Wait As per B4 with specific reference to people attending in mental health

times for peoplein | crisis. Reduction in overall wait time through being seen at the URC.
Mental Health

Crisis

UB Improved Improved patient/staff experience measured through performance against
patient/staff surveys etc.
experience

Page 153



NCRB | Improves staff
wellbeing

Reduction in staff sickness. Reduced pressure on ED staff. Taking away
disruptive patients. Reduction in sickness absence associated with the

environment, and burnout.

NCRB Reduced

"Reduced agency/bank spend through improved environment, retention

Agency/Bank etc.
Spend

NCRB Improved staff "Reduced costs associated with recruitment, and issues with retention
retention

NCRB Out of Area
Placements

Reduction in Out of Area Placements through collective use of resources,
alternative admissions pathways etc Further work is needed to understand
the full scope of this benefit to understand where the cost sits, how the
scheme might reduce the initial need for OOA, what level of potential
repatriation can be achieved (if any) and what costs are currently being
born by stakeholders in relation to OOA that the project may alleviate.

NCRB | Delays in transfer
of care

Reduced service user Length of Stay through reduced delays in transfer of
care by managing patients in the most appropriate setting

NCRB Wider benefit

"Improved system performance in regard to management of mental health

linked to the other | crisis with the project acting as an enabler to the wider model of care and
sites in the model. supporting other URCs across the patch.
SB Reduced Time for Increased speed of attainment of improved QALY scores through improved

patient attainment
of Improvement in
Quality Adjusted
Life Year (QALY)
score

quality of care, additional space for wider ranges of interventions and

better flow through the system

2.14 Strategic

Project Risks

The indicative strategic risks associated with the planned investment, plus the management actions to

assist in their mitigation, are shown at Figure 23.

Figure 23 - Risk Log

Risk Heading (there is a risk
of)
Project Management

Description and Consequence

Management Action

Insufficient resources in
CWP/System to properly
manage the project,
contractors and design team
caused by limited resource

Potential delay to programme caused by
lack of resources

Ensure adequate internal resource
with the required skill set and
experience to manage a capital
project of this nature.

Allow for funding in the capital
costs for internal or external
project support.

Approvals

Failure or delay to obtain
relevant approvals (Business
Case, planning approvals
etc.)

Delay or termination of the programme.

Early engagement with ICS and
NHSE to discuss potential funding
routes.

Early engagement with the local
planning authority.

Ensure adequate internal resource

Page 154




Risk Heading (there is a risk

Description and Consequence

Management Action

of)
with the required skill set and
experience to manage a capital
project of this nature.
Financial

Potential cost overrun

Cost overrun meaning that the project .
becomes unaffordable

advisor

e Appropriate calculation of
optimism bias and planning
contingency

Ongoing cost planning with cost

Failure to achieve capital
funding for the project.

Ongoing liaison with ICS and NHSE

External

External policy changes
(e.g., Government removes
funding on offer.)

No alternative funding source identified.
Programme delays or termination.

Ongoing liaison with ICS and NHSE

2.15 Project Constraints, Dependencies and Interdependencies
As with all planned capital investments the programme is subject to potential constraints which have
been identified and reviewed throughout the development of the proposals. The constraints and
dependencies of the proposed development are laid out in Figure 24.

Figure 24 - Constraints and Dependencies

2| £ |5
£ ] =
Element How this is being managed J = g—
n [} S
& & 7
8 a 2
. . I Early engagement with NHSE
Capital fund labilit . v
apitaltunding avariabiity Early engagement with the ICS.
Timescales and expectations around business case Early engagement with ICS and v
approvals NHSE
Engagement with WUTH and CWP.
Site constraints Engagement of healthcare planr.1er v
to appraise future accommodation
requirements
The project is reliant on planning permission in Early discussions to take place with v

order to progress the scheme.

local authority planners.

the new development and the project being
delivered within the agreed cost envelope.

Board

Revenue costs to demonstrate financial viability to Engagement with Trust finance v
progress the project. team

Success of the project is dependent on the budget Establish of workstream groups

being adequate to support the design and build of which report to the Programme v

The project is reliant on the capacity to deliver a
capital scheme and will need to manage clinical,
management, estates and facilities and corporate
support services availability.

Identification of resource capacity
requirements for OBC and FBC

Page 155




Element How this is being managed

Constraint
Dependency

Assumption

The project will require the support of key * Ongo.lng liaison with ICS. .
stakeholders, including partners and the ICS. * Ongoing engagement with | v
partners.
e Development of robust business
The project will align to the Trust Strategy and four cases aligning the scheme with v
strategic priorities. national, regional and local
priorities

2.16 Equality Impact Assessment
Promoting equality and addressing health inequalities are at the heart of Trust values. Throughout
these early stages of the project, the Trust has given due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination,
harassment, and victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity, and to foster good relations between
people who share a relevant protected characteristic (as cited under the Equality Act 2010) and those
who do not share it.

Furthermore, the Trust will give regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients with access
to, and outcomes from, healthcare services and to ensure services are provided in an integrated way
where this might reduce health inequalities.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) will be undertaken at the next stage of the business planning
process to ensure that are no needs or barriers which could affect people with protected characteristics,
and the likely impact of the scheme is considered low. The EIA will then be reviewed monthly and
reported to the Project Board. It is an iterative process and will be fully considered during the design
phase to ensure any health inequalities and the 9 protected characteristics are fully considered.

Page 156




3.0 ECONOMIC CASE

3.1  Critical Success Factors
Based on the case for change and the agreed project objectives as outlined in the Strategic Case, the
critical success factors (CSFs) for the project are shown at Figure 25. The options considered in this case
have been considered against these CSFs.

Figure 25 - Critical Success Factors

CSF Description
.. How well the option:
Strategic fit . L . .
X e meets the agreed spending objectives, related business needs and service
and business .
needs requirements,
e provides holistic fit and synergy with other strategies, programmes and projects
How well the option:
e  Maximisers the return on the required spend (benefits optimisation) in terms
Potential value £ ffici d effecti £ both th ive of th
for money of economy, efficiency and effectiveness from both the perspective of the
organisation and wider society.
e  Minimise associated risks.
How well the option:
Potential e s likely to be delivered in view of the organisation’s ability to assimilate, adapt and
achievability respond to the required level of change, and
e matches the level of available skills required for successful delivery.
Supplier How well the option:
ca p:cit and e Matches the ability of the service providers to deliver the required level of services
capabiI:’ty and business functionality, and
P e s likely to be attractive to the supply side.
) How well the option:
Potential . . — . - .
e e Meets the sourcing policy of the organisation and likely availability of funding, and
affordability : .
e Matches other funding constraints.

3.2 Options Development Framework

An options development session took place with key management, estates and clinical stakeholders at
the Trust and partners. The session focused on development of the long-List of scheme options. The
session was carried out in line with HM Treasury guidance in developing the long list of potential options
for the SOC in line with the key dimensions of the HM Treasury Options Framework, as outlined at Figure
26.

Figure 26 - HM Treasury Key dimensions of the Options Development Framework

Key Dimensions  Brief Description

Scoping Options | The “what”, in terms of the potential coverage of the project. Potential scopes are driven by
business needs, service requirements and the scale of organisational change required to
improve service capabilities. Examples include coverage in terms of business functions,
levels of service, geography, population, user base and other parts of the business.

Service Solution | The “how” in terms of delivering the “preferred” scope for the project. Potential service
solutions are driven by available technologies, recognised best practice and what the
marketplace can deliver. These solutions provide the potential “products” (inputs and

outputs) and as such the enabling work streams and key activities required.

Page 157



Service Delivery

The “who” in terms of delivering the “preferred” scope and service solution for the project.
Potential options for service delivery are driven by available resources, competencies and
capabilities - both internal and external to the organisation. Examples include in-house
provision, outsourcing, alliances and strategic partners.

Implementation

The “when” in terms of delivering the “preferred” scope, solution and service delivery
arrangements for the project. Potential implementation options are driven by deadlines,
milestones, dependencies (between outputs), economies of scale, benefit realisation and
risk management. The optimal option provides the critical path for delivery of the agreed
products and activities and the basis for the project plan. Options for implementation
include piloting, modular delivery, big bang and phasing (tranches).

Funding

The “funding” required for delivering the “preferred” scope, solution, service delivery and
implementation path for the project. Potential funding options are driven by the availability
and opportunity cost of public funding, value for money and the characteristics of the
project. Potential funding options include the public or private capital, the generation of
alternative revenue streams, operating and financial leases, and mixed market
arrangements.

Use of the options

alternative viable
process and in the
forward are identif

be rejected at this

framework-filter is considered best practice for consideration of a longlist of possible
options. The method disaggregates the design of viable options into its basic components, breaking down
the choices to be made into a sequence of logical steps. When constructing the longlist, a predetermined
or complete final option should be avoided. Instead, the method supports the building of a number of
options by considering the logical sequence of option choices. This is an iterative
initial pass through the framework minima, maxima and a provisional preferred way
ied. Variations around the preferred way forward, which at this stage is not a preferred
option, are considered in the light of the choices made at the preceding levels of choice. Option choices
that do not at least meet the “Do Minimum” requirement of meeting the core objectives must therefore

stage. Figure 27 below shows the process in diagram form.

Figure 27 - HM Treasury Options Framework

Consider

eption
C5Fs at each level

Scope

Service Solu

Service Delivery

Service Implementation

Funding

When consideri

mber = carry ferward
ferred way forward

v Mepts CSFs Business as Usual
Preferred way forward (the counterfactual)
tion 7 Meets C5Fs but

g =minim
Is less attractive Do-rn LY

Carry forward

S Fai|e toirrent CSEs Preferred way forward

Drop

Other viable optian(s)
Advantages Disadvantages

A

ng options take into account: SMART objectives, and C5Fs’ known constraints, dependencies,

unmonetised and unquantifiable factors, and possible collateral effects and unintended consequences

Page 158




Longlist consideration begins with the choice of service scope. The maximum and minimum potential
scope should be identified. The minimum must, by definition be, the scope required to just meet the
business needs, so it therefore meets the strategic objectives. The maximum may or may not be viable.
Between these two extremes, examination in a workshop setting will generate valuable insights into
viable possibilities. Several alternative option choices for scope between the maximum and minimum
should be examined to test the effect on viability through considering the CSFs. Each choice should either
be rejected or carried forward as possible.

The next choice concerns the service solution choice which is about how the required changes will be
realised. On this first iteration of the framework filter this choice is made assuming that the preferred
scope identified above is used. This approach continues until all option choices have been considered (see
below - scope, solution, delivery, implementation, funding).

The focus of the options development session was the development of the service scope element, and
was successful in generating four options, in addition to Business as Usual and Do Minimum
benchmarking options. The options developed are outlined in Figure 28. The long list of options is
detailed against the five options dimensions in Figure 29.

Figure 28 - Options Scope

Option Scope

BAU Fragmented service delivery model coordinated by the crisis line remotely.

Do Improved UR assessments co-ordinated by the crisis line to support ED but teams not collocated
Minimum and no new 136 provision

Option 1.0 | Urgent Response assessments all undertaken in people's homes or the community, with teams
collocated but with no new 136 provision

Option 2.0 | Provision of co-ordinated urgent response assessments to support ED with teams collocated in a
URC but with no new 136 provision

Option 3.0 | Provision of co-ordinated urgent response assessments, with teams co-located and new 136
provision within a URC - BUT not collocated with ED but with a service user transport service in
place.

Option 4.0 | Provision of additional suitable assessment space to support ED with teams collocated and new
136 provision within a URC collocated with ED on Arrowe Park.

Page 159



Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

3.3  Options Appraisal Analysis

The options appraisal framework is set out in Appendix A.

Figure 29 sets out the Options Appraisal Analysis in accordance with the HM Treasury described process, designed to i

Carried Forward elements.

Figure 29 - Options Development Framework

Key Do Minimum Option 1 Option 2
Dimensions
1. Scope Fragmented service Improved UR Urgent Response Provision of co- Provisi
delivery model assessments co- assessments all ordinated UR ordina
coordinated by the ordinated by the crisis | undertaken in assessments to assess
crisis line remotely. line to support ED but | people’shomesorthe | support ED with teams
teams not collocated community, with teams collocatedina new 1:
and no new 136 teams collocated but URC but with no new within
provision with no new 136 136 provision not col
provision but wi
transp
place.
2. Service Do nothing Extension or New build or New build on the New b
Solution refurbishment on refurbishment on a WUTH site at Arrow
Arrowe Park CWP site within the Clatterbridge. site co
collocated with ED. Wirral geographical EDinc
footprint. 52app
Carry Forward Carry Forward Carry Forward Carry Forward Preferr
3. Service No Delivery Traditional tender Design and Build / P23
Delivery Framework
Carry Forward Carry Forward Preferred

Page 160



Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

4. Service No implementation Phased Approach Single phase “big
Implementation required bang”
N/A Carry Forward Preferred
5. Funding None Required ICS capital / potential HM Treasury Capital
capital slippage
N/A Carry Forward Preferred

T9T abed

Page -53-



Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

3.4 Identification of Short List Options

The preferred way forward, and those options which have been carried forward, are shown at Figure 30.

Figure 30 - Short List Options

Business As Usual

Option 1
Do Minimum

Option 2

Option 3
Preferred Way
Forward

Fragmented
service delivery
model
coordinated by
the crisis line

Provision of
additional suitable
assessment space
to support ED
with teams

Provision of co-
ordinated UR
assessments, with
teams co-located
and new 136

Provision of
additional suitable
assessment space
to support ED
with teams

Service Solution

Arrowe Park
collocated with

or partner site
within the Wirral

el S remotely. collocated and provision withina | collocated and
new 136 provision | URC —BUT not new 136 provision
within a URC collocated with within a URC
collocated with ED but with a collocated with
ED on Arrowe service user ED on Arrowe
Park. transport service Park.

in place.
Do nothing Extension or New build on a New build on the

refurbishmenton | CWP community Arrowe Park site

collocated with
ED in a campus

ED. geographical approach.
footprint.
R De e Not required D&B/P23 D&B/P23 D&B/P23
Framework Framework Framework

Implementation

Not required

Phased Approach

Phased Approach

Single phase “big
bang”

Funding

Not required

HM Treasury / ICS
capital / potential
capital slippage.

ICS/HM Treasury
Capital

ICS/HM Treasury
Capital

3.5 Economic Assessment Summary

Process

The economic appraisal of the short-listed options follows HM Treasury Green Book guidance and is

underpinned by the Comprehensive Investment Appraisal (CIA) model. Key assumptions are:

Covers an appraisal period of 60 years and uses a discount rate of 3.5%;

Costs, benefits and risks are expressed in real prices at 2020/21 levels;

VAT, planning contingency and transfer payments are excluded from cash

flows.

Page 162




CIA model inputs are described in the sections that follow.

An electronic version of the CIA model is available at Appendix B, and the CIAM support information is

available at Appendix C.

Capital Costs

The capital costs have been developed by the Trust’s advisors and are summarised at Figure 31 (may
not fully calculate due to rounding) (full OB capital cost forms are at Appendix E). Figure 31 provides a

summary of the cost breakdown, at the required PUBSEC reporting index of 300, but total costs at

outturn prices (assessed at mid-contract PUBSEC index levels) and includes a percentage increase for
inflation.

Figure 31 - Capital Cost of Schemes including VAT

Capital Cost Elements Do Minimum Option 2 Option 3

Departmental Works Costs £2,509,942.00 £2,928,010.00 £2,928,010.00
On-Costs £1,657,949.00 £1,396,801.00 £1,396,801.00
Location Adjustment Inc Inc Inc
Fees £914,011.00 £948,424.00 £948,424.00
Non-Works £60,000.00 £60,000.00 £60,000.00
Equipment £433,445.00 £505,642.00 £505,642.00
Planning Contingencies (20%) £731,209.00 £758,738.00 £758,738.00
Optimism Bias (15%) £1,271,512.00 £1,327,765.00 £1,327,765.00
Total Capital Cost excluding inflation £10,722,263.00 £11,187,958.00| £11,187,958.00
Inflation (3% p.a.) £751,423.00 £784,243.00 £784,243.00
Total Capital Cost £11,473,686.00 £11,972,200.00 | £11,972,200.00

Key assumptions are:

Lifecycle Costs

For the development options, Departmental Works Costs are based on the
Healthcare Premises Cost Guides (HPCGs) applied to the areas derived from
the 1:200 drawings prepared by the Architect;

On-costs are based on the site layout drawings and any known conditions
such as site levels, plant/services age and capacity, and other constraints;

Non-works costs are included;
Equipment costs are included;

Optimism Bias has been assessed in line with HM Treasury requirements.
Optimism bias calculations for each option are included in Appendix E;

Planning contingencies are included in the OB forms and the Financial Case
but are excluded from the Economic Appraisal in the CIAM. This means that
the capital costs in the CIAM are exclusive of VAT and Planning Contingencies.

Page 163



Lifecycle costs for building and engineering works have been assessed and are based on standard NHS

replacement profiles, those being:

e Allstructural components - 60 years

e General fabric - 50 years

e Mechanical and electrical services — 25 years

e Internal finishes — 10 years

At this stage, assumptions regarding life cycling were made and a baseline figure from a comparable

mental health scheme was applied. Life cycling should be revisited at a later stage.

Opportunity Costs

Opportunity costs are assumed to be zero under all the short-listed options except the BAU and Option

1 position.

Assessment Financial Benefits

The proposed development of the Wirral URC is expected to deliver a wide range of benefits. Figure 32

summarises the planned benefits, categorised as cash-releasing, non-cash-releasing, societal and non-

monetisable. Also see Section 6.7 for the benefits realisation plan.

Figure 32 - Benefits Plan

Ref. Benefit Name

NCRB1

Reduction in ED Attendances

Benefit Description

Reduction in ED attendances through delivery of the scheme and provision of alternative
pathway for people in mental health crisis. If they do attend the ED this will only be
instances when they have an acute problem that needs medical attention.

Reduction in number of incidents reported in the Trust’s incident recording system through

NCRB2 | Reduction in incidents improved throughput, increased capacity and treatment of patients in the most appropriate
setting.
NCRB3 Reduction in incidents of physical Reduction in incidents; patient on patient, patient on staff, self-harm and patient
aggression and/or harm behaviour, incidents of damage to property.
. Improved Trust performance against the 4 Hour Quality Standard through management of
Improvement against 4-hour . . . .
NCRB4 . service users in the most appropriate setting. Reduced attendance at ED and therefore
quality standard o
reduced wait times.
Reduced wait times for people in L L . .
NCRB5 . Reduction in overall wait time for those in MH crisis.
Mental Health Crisis
Reduction in staff sickness due to reduced pressure on ED staff due to disruptive patients
NCRB6 Improved Staff Wellbeing presenting at the URC instead of ED. Reduction in sickness, absence, associated with the
environment and burnout.
Reduced agency/bank spend — directly employed NHS staff will be more interested in
NCRB7 | Reduced agency/bank spend working in new builds because they will have a therapeutic environment designed to give
the patients the best care
NCRB8 | Improved Staff Retention Reduced costs associated with recruitment, and issues with retention
Reduction in out of area placements through collective use of resources, alternative
NCRB9 | Out of Area Placements

admissions pathways.

Page 164



Ref. Benefit Name Benefit Description

Reduced service user Length of Stay through reduced delays in transfer of care by managing

NCRB10 | Delays in transfer of care . . . .
patients in the most appropriate setting.

. " Improved system performance in regard to management of mental health crisis with the
Wider benefit linked to the other ] ] ” .
NCRB11 o project acting as an enabler to the wider model of care and supporting the URCs across the
sites in the model tch
patch.

Reduced Time for patient . . . .
. . Increased speed of attainment of improved QALY scores through improved quality of care,
SB1 attainment of Improvementin

. . . additional space for wider ranges of interventions and better flow through the system.
Quality Adjusted Life Year

Key:

CRB - Cash Releasing Benefit

NCRB — Non- Cash Releasing Benefit
SB — Societal Benefit

UB — Unquantifiable Benefit

Summary Impact of Benefits

Figure 33 summarises the financial impact of the benefits for each option over the same 60-year period
as the costs (see the CIAM at Appendix B).

Figure 33 - Summary Impact of Benefits

Summary (Discounted) - £000  Business as Usual Do-Minimum Option 2 Option 3
Cash releasing benefits £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Non-cash releasing benefits £0.00 £102,339,635.33 | £85,942,668.92 | £102,786,022.59
Societal benefits £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Total benefits £0.00 £102,339,635.33 | £85,942,668.92 | £102,786,022.59
Rank 4th 2nd 3rd 1st

Risks

An analysis of risk has been undertaken including design, construction, performance, operating, revenue
and technology and other costs. At this stage, a number of assumptions had to be made based on a
comparable MH scheme. This can be revisited at a later date.

3.6 Economic Appraisal
Figure 34 presents a summary of the key outputs of the economic appraisal based on the assumptions

and inputs described above, expressed as Net Present Values (NPV) (see Appendix B).

This economic analysis indicates that:

Page 165



e All options have the potential to show a positive Benefit / Cost Ratio (BCR)
compared to BAU and;

e Option 3 is the preferred direction of travel, with a BCR of 11.40.

On the basis of the BCR the Option 3 provides better value. This BCR for all options is higher than the 4:1
ratio we usually expect in CIAM’s. This can be attributed to the significant gaps in cost data, which skew

the findings slightly towards benefits. We expect the BCR’s to reduce when the CIAM is revisited at a

later date with more comprehensive cost data. This is evidenced in figure 34.

The outputs of the CIA model are included at Appendix B.

Figure 34 - Economic Appraisal of Options

Option (0] 1 P 3
Incremental Capital (Cost) - £8,643,915.87 £9,024,973.39 £9,024,973.39
Incremental Revenue Cost - - £12,038,087.28 -
Incremental Opportunity Cost £9,591,152.94 - -
Incremental Risk - £292,740.00 £485,830.00 £482,080.00
Incremental Costs — Total - £18,257,808.81 £21,548,890.66 £9,507,053.39

Incremental Benefit NPV

£105,288,338.18

£88,867,443.58

£108,417,986.01

Net Present Social Value (NPSV)

Benefit/Cost Ratio

Economic Ranking of Options

£86,760,529.37

£67,318,552.92

£98,910,932.62

3.7

Economic Sensitivity Testing

Economic sensitivity testing will be undertaken at a later date when the data is more complete.

3.8 Preferred Option

The outputs of the qualitative and economic appraisals confirms that Option 3 which provides suitable
clinical assessment space to support ED collocated with the teams and new 136 provision on the Arrowe
Park site is the preferred direction of travel at this stage.

3.9 Chapter Appendices
Aol Appendix Title
Number PP
A Options Appraisal Framework

CIAM

CIAM Support Information
Capital Cost Report

OB Forms

moon|w

Page 166



4.0 COMMERCIAL CASE

4.1 Clinical Quality
Since the inception of the projects to deliver URC’s across the CWP geographical footprint,

improvements in clinical quality have been a key driving factor supporting the delivery of the

development of a first response approach to delivering an urgent care mental health response for

people in Crisis who do not require ED attendance.

The development of the optimum estate’s solution, based on the agreed model of care has had the

consistent and integral input from organisation and clinical leaders along with frontline clinical and non-

clinical staff. This will continue throughout the further development of this SOC and the subsequent

OBC and FBC and will increasingly incorporate feedback and input from service users and groups.

Clinical quality aspects have informed and been integral to the project through the following means:

e Processes:

e Design:

Appointment of a healthcare planner to lead on the development of the
high-level design brief from the model of care and high level capacity
planning.

A schedule of accommodation has been developed based on the agreed
model of care.

Various workshops including an operational workshop which included
mental health and emergency medicine clinicians.

Alignment with key estates guidance e.g. HBNs and HTMs.

Clear evidence and future plans for sustained stakeholder involvement in
design development.

Outline designs based on established service user need, as defined in the
design brief.

e Suitability for purpose:

Supporting delivery of the identified service user and service efficiency
benefits.

Proposed facility which will support with the integration of various teams
who deliver the urgent response model of care.

Affordability of the estate’s solution.

Page 167



4.2  Future Capacity Modelling

Overview

The capacity modelling exercise provides the Trust with an insight into a high-level perspective into the
potential activity that could be delivered by the service and suggests the way in which the services and
departments could be configured for optimum performance and efficiency of the Urgent Response
Centre.

Methodology

The following parameters were used to calculate possible patient contacts per Consult / Assessment,
Interview / Counselling rooms and Physical Treatment Rooms for mental health urgent response
services based on the number of potential rooms available.

The following parameters were used to calculate possible patient contacts per room:
e 45-minute appointments
e 60-minute appointments
e 120-minute appointments

The modelling assumes the centre will run 24 hours, 7 days a week for 52 weeks per year based on 85%
and 90% utilisation allowance. See Appendix F for workings.

Assessment Zone

The following outputs in Figure 35 highlight the number of sessions that could be accommodated per
day:

Figure 35 — Capacity Modelling Outputs

Assessment Zone Minutes
At 24 hours per day 1 c_onsult/exam 45 60
room delivers (minutes)
Room / Space Quantity Number of Sessions
of rooms

Contact/Clinical Space
Consult assessment 2.0 64 48 24
Interview rooms 1.0 32 24 12
Treatment Rooms 1.0 32 24 12
Total number of sessions 128 96 48
Total number of sessions at 85% 109 82 41
Total number of sessions at 90% 115 86 43

Page 168



4.3 Scope of Project

Functional Content

The preferred direction of travel is a new build facility on the Arrowe Park Hospital site which would
comprise of the following functional content:

e Entrance Zone

= Joint entrance for adults and children and young people

= Joint waiting area with sections to accommodate adults, children and
quite spaces

= Interview/quiet room

= Reception (ideally positioned centrally with clear visual of the whole
area)

= Visitor WCs

e Assessment Zone

= Consult/assessment rooms
= |nterview room
=  Physical health treatment room
= Section 136 suite with assessment room, quiet room / de-escalation
room and dedicated entrance
=  Clinical Support - clean utility, dirty utility, store, disposal hold.
e Administration Zone

=  QOpen plan office and desks for various teams

= General Hot Desks and touchdown space

= Collaboration space

= None face2face rooms, 121 meeting rooms, meeting rooms
e Staff and Support Zone

= Staff room/kitchen

= Staff change, showers, WC'’s
= (Cleaners room

= |T/Server room

4.4 Scheme Description — Preferred Site

Site Description

The proposed site (Figure 36) is adjacent to the existing emergency department on the Arrowe Park
Hospital site. The proposals indicate that the site will be developed as a single-phase project. The
financial cost estimates and project timescales are based on this assumption. (Appendix G provides a
feasibility report prepared by DAY Architecture which details the various options on Arrowe Park
Hospital site).

Page 169



Figure 36: Proposed Site

Exterral Routefor St wes 5o Lanseaning vsble
from aft Rest

00

C Access Control Gates
L

Section 136
Drop-Off Area

Option 01
Proposed Footprint

incicatve zone only. Extents TBC by tracking

| eogl

136 Secure Fence Line

hort Stay Visitor Parking

B @ oW

3

Accommodation Requirements

The accommodation requirements for the project reflect the capacity modelling work outlined at
Section 4.2 and the need to deliver therapeutic, safe, high quality and fit for purpose facilities as
emphasised in the investment objectives. Figure 37 summarises the estimated accommodation
requirement for the project (Appendix H provides detailed accommodation schedule).

Figure 37 - Accommodation Requirements

URC SoA Summary Sheet
Departments Departmental Gross (sqm)
Entrance Zone 168.7
Assessment Zone 174.7
Administration Zone 379.0
Support Zone 123.0
845.4
Communication Space 8% 68
Plant 8% 68

Total Gross Area (sqm) 980.80

Design, Design Principles, and Design Standards

The designs standards that have been used as the baseline for the development of the plans are shown
at Figure 38.

Page 170



Figure 38 - Design Standards

HBN / HTM Reference Title

HBN 00-01 General Design Guidance for Healthcare Buildings
HBN 03-01 Adults Acute Mental Health Units

HBN 11-01 Primary and Community Care for Healthcare Buildings
HTM 00 Policies and Principles of Healthcare Engineering

At this stage no derogations from HBN / HTM guidance are anticipated. However, should this be
necessary as the design develops, this will be documented and appraised using the new NHSE guidance,
with an aim of assessing the derogations reported, the reasons behind these and the risk and mitigation
that the Trust’s advisors (in-house and external) consider appropriate to ensure user safety.

Day Architecture has developed a series of site plans and indicative layout drawing, based on the agreed
model of care, schedule of accommodation and capacity requirements as set out in the Strategic Case.
The plan for the URC at Arrowe Park is included at Figure 38 (Appendix G provides further detail).

Figure 39 - Drawings Ground Floor

T
I

Shower | WC
ey

Page 171



Figure 40 - Drawings First Floor

Layout Acceptance

The Feasibility Report and plans for the scheme have been developed in conjunction with key
stakeholders involved in the project with the aim of establishing:

e  Footprint works on site available

e Indicative overall area for the project. Key because capital costs and Estates
and Facilities revenue costs have been established from this value

e Shows all stakeholders including the Trust, Clinicians, Staff, Service Users,
etc. and other members of the Project Team the development direction of
the project

e Formulates the strategic approach to the premises development including a
site plan

Page 172



The layouts will be further developed and sign off against relationships of rooms, size, location, shape,
etc at OBC stage. This will be achieved through detailed design workshops with the appointed
Architects and Engineers, key Clinicians, Trust advisors (Risk Management, Infection Control, Fire Safety,

Security, etc).
Design Quality

The Trust is keen to ensure that the “Design Quality” and “Quality Agenda” is addressed to inform the
design and ultimately demonstrate how:

e Design solutions will reflect service user, visitor and staff needs in terms of
“sense of place and space”.

e Design solutions will be sensitive to the physical, emotional and well-being
needs of service users, visitors and staff.

e Design solutions will include and respond to the requirements of the “human
senses” and the opportunities that art and the performing arts can offer.

e Design solutions will take on board environmental needs and be sensitive
to the characteristics of the local and immediate surrounding area.

As the design is developed it will need to reflect some of the key areas from the design quality wheel
shown in Figure 40 below:

Figure 41 - Design Quality Wheel

Effective
Value;
Released
Value

Smells,
Aromas, Touch,
Hear

Adaptability, Daylight,
Flexibility & Views &
Growth Lighting

Sense of
Space &
Awareness

Wayfinding &
Movement

Patient & Staff Maintainability
Security & Sustainability

Patient Choice Acoustic
& Control Control

Right Spaces
to Different Built Use
Patient Groups And Form
in Right Place Privacy &
Dignity

Page 173



For the URC this will be centred around the key areas shown in Figure 41 below:

Figure 41 - URC Design Quality

Design Quality

Smells, Aromas,
Touch, Hear

This has the potential to positively stimulate the services user’s feelings,
memories and experience.

Daylight, views

e Daylight — The optimisation of natural light within a space has the

Patient
Environment

and lighting ability to provide health benefits.
Responding e Views — Views to outdoor spaces have shown to be therapeutic,
to 5 senses reduce stress and boost productivity.
e Lighting — Has the potential to improve visual condition and
comfort for patients and staff.
Sense of space Individuals are aware of their body in relation to other objects and people,
and awareness so it is key to ensure service users and staff feel comfortable in the centre.
Maintainability Maintainability is key to the building system design, ensuring the comfort,
accuracy, security, and economy of maintenance tasks within that system.
Acoustic control Good acoustic control is key to ensure good sound quality and privacy.
; Built use and Built use and form is key to ensure the environment is fit for purpose and
Built form supports the needs of the service.
Environment
Safety The design should be driven by safety considerations for all, site to be
secure with good visibility and anti-ligature considerations within the
publicly accessible areas of the building. Staff safety features such as panic
call and CCTV to be discreet (considerations of how modern technology
could assist in this).
Privacy and Privacy and dignity are person centred values which ensure there, views,
Dignity choices and decisions are respected.
Right spaces It is key to offer the right space for the right care that is accessible to

service users in the right place.

Patient Choice
and control

This offers the service user control of their health and a choice in how they
would like to receive services.

Patient and staff
security

This provides the support in which care, and treatment can safely be
provided by staff for service users and is a fundamental baseline
requirement.

Wayfinding and
movement

This is a purposeful, intended, and self-regulated movement that guides
and individual from one space to another and is key when navigating new
space.

Creating
Value

Adaptability,
flexibility and
growth

This is a key form of a systems growth and success in a space where needs
and expectations are constantly changing.

Effective value;
released value

The creation of effective and released value can only be co-created by the
health provider and service user and will be unique in every case.

Page 174




4.5 Sustainable Development
CWP has a Board-approved Sustainable Development — Environmental Strategy (2021 - 2024) in which
the Trust commits to the principles of Sustainable Development and will progressively integrate these
principles into its daily activities. It is the Trust’s vision to set the national standard for leadership in
healthcare, staff wellbeing, engagement and community. To achieve this, it is important to not only look
at the services the Trust offer and how they can improve but also the three pillars of sustainability,
covering environmental, economic and social performance.

The Trust already incorporates sustainability in many aspects of its activities. However, recognise that
more can be done. The huge challenge presented by COVID-19 is also an opportunity to rethink the way
care is delivered. Realising the potential for sustainable development will help the Trust meet the
objectives of its Clinical Strategy. The financial benefits accruing from increasingly sustainable activities
will also allow the Trust to invest further in its clinical services.

CWP ensure that going forwards all capital developments comply with BREEAM ‘Excellent’ or above,
ensures that the Trusts plans will focus on the reduction of building emissions from all sources.

The Trusts Capital Project ambitions are:

e Building energy efficiency standards for new builds and refurbishments, such as BREEAM
‘Excellent’ and the Zero Carbon Hospital Standard and on-site renewables

e Construction supplier alignment to net zero commitments, such as onsite contractor measures
on waste reduction, low emission construction plant etc.

e Low carbon substitutions and product innovation, such as lower embodied carbon construction
materials

4.6 Modern Methods of Construction
The Trust is committed to maximising the application of Modern Methods of Construction on its project
and to complying with Government policy in this respect. At the next stage of the business planning
process the Design Team will consider the use of modular build / off-site construction methods as part
of the alternative construction methodologies, as a means to deliver time and cost savings as well as
whole life cost benefits and in use costs.

4.7 Procurement and Contract Strategy
Delivery Methodology

At this stage in the business planning process for the Wirral URC a number of options have been
considered for the methodology of delivering the preferred direction of travel which is on the Arrowe
Park hospital Site owned by WUTH and the preferred delivery will be intrinsically linked to the funding
strategy for the project.

There are currently two main options which have been considered:

e Option 1-CWP would enter into a long lease for a suitable freehold site on Arrowe Park
Hospital for a peppercorn ground rent. CWP would then undertake the construction of the
URC and ultimate ownership of the asset.

Page 175



e Option 2 - CWP would enter into a development agreement with WUTH who would agree to
construct on CWP’s behalf the URC on the Arrowe Park Hospital site in return for the capital to
construct the new facility. CWP would then into a lease agreement with WUTH for a 25-30-year
period for a peppercorn rent.

Both of these options for the preferred direction of travel will require further discussion between the
two Trusts and will also be linked to the funding stream identified for the project.

Construction

Once the preferred delivery methodology is confirmed then consideration will need to be given to the
construction procurement method, these could potentially include:

e Traditional Tender
e Design and Build/ ProCure 23 Framework.

The traditional method tends to be used where the client has knowledge and experience of delivering
such projects. A Design & Build/ProCure 23 Framework is considered to be for clients who may not
have the experience, capacity and capability to manage the project. A Design and Build procurement
approach assumes that the contractor is experienced in delivering the construction and can use this
experience to improve the project delivery.

The Procurement Route will be aligned to the Contract Strategy with the appropriate forms of contract.
The type of contract will be agreed with the design team and appropriate amendments to the standard
form will be made to consider; contract terms, insurances, payment processes, retention, defects
liability periods, treatment of latent defects, etc if required.

Advisors

CWP propose to utilise the NHS Shared Business Services (SBS) ‘Construction Consultancy Services’
procurement framework agreement, which provides Estates, Facilities and Capital teams a compliant
route to market for the provision of Consultancy Services from a wide-range of specialisms, utilising
both Small & Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and national providers, to deliver either a single service or
provide a ‘one-stop shop’ for a range of services. Through this route providers will be asked to commit
to developing projects utilising Building Information Modelling (BIM) Level 2 across the range of
Consultancy Services, dovetailing with the Government’s Soft Landings (GSL) agenda to help deliver
added value and meet the Government’s target of BIM being used in all public sector construction
contracts.

The Trust anticipates procuring a range of specialist advisors to support the development of the OBC,
including:

e Architect;
e MEP Engineer;

e  Structural & Civil Engineer;

Page 176



e Principal Designer;

e Landscape Designer;

e BREEAM Assessor

e Sustainability Advisor;

e Fire Engineer;

e Healthcare Planner;

e Cost Advisor;

e Project/Programme Manager(s); and

e Business Case Author.

4.8 Town Planning
Once a preferred funding route has been identified and as the business planning process progresses the
Trust supported by the design team will engage with the Local Authority town planners.

4.9 Legal Implications

Other than the procurement process of contractor and advisors as described at Section 4.4, there are no
legal implications in relation to this scheme.

4.10 Workforce Planning
Staffing Implications of New Unit

There are no workforce implications in relation to this proposal other than the relocation of staff bases
which will remain in the Wirral geographical footprint so will not impact on excess travel.

TUPE and Consultation

There are no TUPE or formal consultation processes required. In accordance with Trust workforce
principles and guidance the Trust will consult with staff regarding the planned change. A Stakeholder
Communications and Engagement Strategy will be developed following the sourcing of capital and the
update of this SOC.

4.11 Equipment Strategy
An Equipment Strategy will be developed as part of the OBC and FBC development to understand the
levels of new equipment required for the facility and a capital figure has been allowed for in the OB
Forms and is included in the overall capital envelope.

Page 177



4.12 Risk Allocation Matrix
Figure 42 includes the indicative risk allocation matrix identifying key risk categories and their allocation
to the Trust or the contractor / supplier, or if it is a shared risk. This risk category apportionment will be
reviewed as part of the risk management process and will be reflected in the risk register.

Figure 42 - Risk Allocation Matrix

AR Trust Contractor Shared
Risk Risk Risk

Design 4

Brief v

Financial v

Logistics 4

M&E v
Management v
Operational 4

Planning 4

Programme 4
Quality v

4.13 Chapter Appendices

l\?ﬁri?ar::m Appendix Title

F Capacity Modelling

G Architectural Feasibility Report
H Schedule of Accommodation

I Design Brief

Page 178



5.0 FINANCIAL CASE

5.1 Financial Overview

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) capital budget (referred to as the capital
departmental expenditure limit - CDEL), covers all capital spending by the DHSC and the NHS. Both the
DHSC and the NHS are legally obliged not to spend above this limit. A major part of CDEL is allocated to
NHS Trusts and NHS foundation Trusts (i.e. NHSTs) in each existing Integrated Care System (ICS), via a
system-wide envelope. The ICB (Integrated Care Board) and its constituent NHSTs, have a joint
responsibility to prepare a plan setting out their planned capital resources in line with that allocation.

Each Trust is allocated an individual allocation (i.e., control total) for each financial year. Indicative
control totals for 2023/24 and 2024/25 have been provided to CWP, which includes a recognition of two
major projects due to be completed in 2024/25. There is no capacity within either of these existing
control totals for either year to absorb any additional other material capital schemes.

In order to fund any additional schemes, CWP will need to lobby the ICB and NHSE for additional CDEL.
Given the potential scale of the Wirral URC project, ideally this would need to be cash backed by
securing additional Public Dividend Capital (PDC). Ordinarily, additional capital resources are not
accompanied by revenue support for day-to-day costs. Working on that assumption, aside from
ensuring that the accounting treatment is correct, any subsequent Financial Case would have to clearly
demonstrate the full capital and revenue consequences of any scheme, the impact on CWP’s balance
sheet and income & expenditure statement, the overall affordability and fundability of the scheme and
confirmation of support from the relevant stakeholders.

5.2  Capital Requirements
The capital requirement for the preferred direction of travel scheme is £11,972,200 (including VAT at
20%). The summary OB Capital Cost forms and associated report for the scheme showing the costs and
contingencies included in the capital cost calculations and showing the overall capital costs of the
scheme is included in Appendix D. The potential funding sources to meet this capital requirement are
discussed below in section 5.3.

The makeup of the capital cost is as per Figure 43 with planning contingency included at 10% and
optimism bias calculations are at 15%.

Figure 43 - Capital Costs

Cost Summary Cost £ VAT (20%) £ Cost (incl VAT) £

Construction costs Total (OB2 and OB3) 6,332,823 1,264,565 7,587,388
Fees (15%) 948,424 - -
Non-Works costs (OB4) 50,000 10,000 60,000
Equipment costs 421,368 84,274 505,642
Planning risk contingency 632,282 26,456 758,738

Page 179



Sub total 8,374,897 1,485,295 9,860,192
Optimism Bias 1,106471 221,294 1,327,765
Inflation adjustment

(Assumed start on site January 2025 and 664,676 119,567 784,243
completion January 2026)

Forecast outturn capital cost 10,146,044 1,826,156 11,972,200

The profile of indicative capital spend is shown at Figure 44.

Figure 44 - Capital Cashflow

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Spend

. £1,000,000 £10,466,558 £505,642 £11,972,200
Profile

5.3  Sources and Application of Funds

The total capital value of the preferred option is £11,972,200 allowing for VAT at 20%. It is assumed
that CWP will need to lobby the ICB and NHSE for additional CDEL and this would need to be cash
backed by securing additional PDC.

5.4 Procurement Costs

Procurement costs associated with both the construction and equipping elements of the scheme are
included in the overall fees structure and shown at OB4 of the capital cost forms (Appendix E).

5.5 VAT Treatment

No VAT recovery has been assumed at this stage with the exception of professional fees. This
assumption will be tested further at OBC stage.

5.6 Revenue Costs

Once the source of potential funds has been identified and the commercial strategy for the delivery of
the URC has been confirmed this SOC will be updated with revenue costs for the preferred direction of
travel.

5.7 Financial Risks
Some indicative financial risks have been identified and are summarised in Figure 45, together with
mitigating actions.

Figure 45 — Risks and Mitigating Actions

Financial Risks Mitigating Actions

Failure to translate design could lead | Detailed design drawings to be developed in conjunction with CWP and
to facilities not being fit for purpose WUTH clinical/management/estates colleagues to minimise the risk to
design and will be completed at OBC stage.

Multiple engagement sessions planned to mitigate the risk further.

Continuing development of design Sign-off of by clinical/management staff of key spaces, SoA, 1:50 and
could lead to facilities not being fit detailed drawings to be agreed at key milestones to mitigate risk.
for purpose Multiple engagement sessions planned with key stakeholders.

Page 180



Failure to build to brief could cause
delays, additional cost and design
not supported by users.

Full Trust and partners involvement in design and early consideration of
procurement process.

Incorrect cost estimates leading to
increase in capital costs

Project Team and estates work stream group (once set up under the
project governance) to ensure designs are cost led to ensure budgets are
achieved. Rigorous cost planning required throughout the healthcare
planning/design planning period. Work in regard to capital costs and
affordability will be managed through the estates work stream group with
clear accountability to the Project Board.

Capital costing work is started early in the process in order to identify any
potential issues.

Legislative / regulatory change e.g.
Brexit impact, Covid impact, market
suitability

Early market testing and quantity surveyor to give regular updates on
current market demand, pricing and any potential legislative change.

5.8 Chapter Appendices

Appendix -
Number Appendix Title

D Capital Cost Report
E OB Forms

Page 181




6.0 MANAGEMENT CASE

6.1 Project Governance Structure
A clear and robust governance structure has been agreed for the delivery of the Wirral URC project and
will be implemented once the SOC and key principles have been agreed. The programme is overseen by
the Urgent Response Project Board, which is accountable to the CWP Executive. Reporting to the
Project Board is the Task and Finish Working Group and relevant workstream groups. Figure 46 shows
the governance structure of the Project.

Figure 46: Project Governance Structure

A&E Delivery Board
(Chair: CEO WUTH)

Urgent Treatment Centre
Board

(Chair: COO CWP)

Urgent Treatment Centre
Project Task & Finish Group
(Chair: AD Infrastructure
CWP)

Page 182



Wirral Urgent Response Project Board

The Project Board has decision-making and programme assurance responsibility and is accountable to
the CWP Executive and is subject to regular scrutiny and review through reporting. It is responsible for
the successful delivery of the Urgent Response Centre’s across the Cheshire and Wirral geographical
footprint. The other urgent response center’s within East and West Cheshire are outside of the scope of
this SOC. The Project Board will be informed of ongoing strategic guidance from the CWP Executive.
The Project Board represents the higher-level interests of the Trust, users and suppliers within the
project and has overall responsibility for strategic planning, service quality and the operational and
financial performance of the programme. It is therefore responsible for the investment of financial and
human resources.

The Project Board'’s responsibilities are to:

1 To review, approve and monitor the project brief, Project Initiation Document and
Business Case

2 To review and approve project health checks at each stage of the project

3 To review and approve any major deviation from agreed plans via Exception Reports and

or Business Change Requests
To ensure that necessary resources are committed to the project.

5 To arbitrate on any conflicts within the project

6 To review and monitor risks and issues that are escalated for attention ensuring risks are
effectively mitigated and the planned actions are having the desired effect

7 To negotiate a solution to any problems between the project and external bodies

8 To judge whether constraints of time, budget and resources are reasonable

The Project Board is chaired by Suzanne Edwards, Director of Operations/Deputy Chief Executive for
CWP. The full membership of the Project Board is shown at Figure 47.

Figure 47: Project Board Membership

Role / Department Organisation
Suzanne Edwards (SRO) Director of Operations/Deputy Chief Executive CWpP
Emma Danton Programme Manager WCHT
Mark Buchanan Consultant WUTH
Paul Mason Director of Capital Planning WUTH
Stephen Bailey Deputy Chief Operating Officer WUTH
Craig Hayden NWAS
Darren Birks Head of Mental Health Commissioning C&M ICB
Justin Pidcock Associate Director of Infrastructure Cwp
Sean Boyle Lead Mental Health Practitioner CWpP
Hayley Sherwen Mental Health Liaison Officer Merseyside Police

Page 183



Wirral URC Task and Finish Group

The Wirral URC Task and Finish Group is responsible for the successful delivery of the Wirral URC project
and reports directly to the Project Board. The Task and Finish Group is chaired by Justin Pidcock and its
responsibilities are to:

e Ensure the scheme delivery to meet all critical delivery objectives including
time, cost and quality

e Manage the Procurement Structure and Contract Strategies

e Agree the Project Plans and key critical path milestone dates and ensure the
project stays within the agreed delivery timeline

o Agree key activity sign-off and delivery
e Ensure capital costs remain within the agreed parameters in this SOC

e Oversee the risk register and issues log and escalate where advised.

Membership of the Task and Finish Group is detailed at Figure 48.

Figure 48: Task and Finish Group Membership

Name ‘ Role ‘ Organsation
Dave Appleton Head of Clinical Services Cwp
Kathryn McDermott Head of Capital Planning and Portfolio cwp

Justin Pidcock Associate Director of Infrastructure (Group chair) CWpP

Sean Boyle Lead Mental Health Practitioner CWpP

Mark Buchanan ED Consultant WUTH

Operational Lead for the Integrated Front Door and

Emergency Duty Team (EDT) Wirral Council

Louise Fitzpatrick

Paul Mason Director of Capital Planning WUTH

Jacqui Hale Project Manager WCHT

Director

(Business Case Writing Support and Health Planning) AA Projects

Jonathan Turner

Workstream Groups

As the business planning process develops towards Outline Business Case (OBC) a variety of delivery
groups will be set up including The Delivery Group is responsible for implementing the work stream
group packages:

e Built Environment Group — focus on design and build of the project including
ensuring project build adherence to current standards (fire regulations and
security requirements), ordering equipment, signing off plans and delivery
of model plans that support the delivery of the building.

Page 184



e C(linical Reference Group — tasked with reviewing current clinical model to
ensure that it is fit for purpose for the new building. Review operational
policies to ensure fidelity to the model.

e Stakeholder Group — ensure that those affected by the changes are
communicated with (internally within the Trust, External partners, local
community).

e Financial Group — oversee the project spend, confirm capital and revenue
implications, and provide due diligence and financial assurance.

e Expert By Experience Group — establish consistent patient and carer
representation at meetings. Ensure there is an engagement plan for the
wider patient and carer group affected by the project. Identify appropriate
engagement with the built environment group and the Clinical Reference

group.

e Staff Group - establish consistent staff representation at meetings. Ensure
there is an engagement plan for the wider staff group affected by the project.
Identify appropriate engagement with the built environment group and the
Clinical Reference group.

6.2 Project Management Methodology and Arrangements
Robust project management arrangements are in place to drive programme and project delivery.

The structure of the programme has been developed to follow the principles set out in the NHS Capital
Investment Manual and the HM Treasury Green Book, supported by PRINCE2 project management
principles.

All project management and consultancy services, and project management methodology are as set out
in the NHS Shared Business Services framework - Construction Consultancy Services upon which all
delivery services have been secured.

6.3  Project Team Roles & Responsibilities

Key Project Roles

The Senior Responsible Owner (SRO) and Programme Sponsor is Suzanne Edwards, Director of
Operations/Deputy Chief Executive, CWP.

The project SRO is accountable for the success of the programme ensuring that the outcomes meet
declared objectives and deliver benefits. The SRO will ensure that the programme maintains business
focus in a changing healthcare context and that risks are managed effectively. The key roles and
responsibilities of the SRO are to:

e Provide input into the development of the Project Brief, business case and
Project Initiation Document (P.I.D)

e Secure funding from the appropriate Trust committee for the project

Page 185



e Present the business case/Project Brief at meetings to committees and
boards as appropriate

e Ensure that there is a coherent project team structure and logical set of plans
e Authorise expenditure and proposed tolerances

e Ensure that risks and issues are validated

e Approve the Project Plans and Reports

e Take responsibility for use of resources and authorise corrective action
where necessary

e Liaise with the PMO Lead to assure the overall direction and integrity of the
project

e Liaise with the finance lead to ensure costs and savings are captured and
monitored accordingly

e Ensure that the benefits have been realised by holding a review and forward
the results of the review to the Project Board

e To actively participate and input in the formal project closure process, as
directed by the PMO lead

6.4 Use of External Advisors

External Project Roles

Delivery of the preferred direction of travel will require the appointment of direct external
appointments to support the internal Project Team. The key appointments include the external Project
Manager, Cost Advisor, Architect, Health Planner, and other Construction / Engineering disciplines.

Current appointments are as shown at Figure 49.

Figure 49 - SOC External Advisors

Name Project Role

Business Case Consultant
AA Projects Healthcare Planner

Cost Manager
Day Architecture Architect

Costs of Project Implementation
The costs associated with fees and contractor fees are included in the OB forms.
The total fees are calculated at £948,424.00 or 15% and include the following:

e Contractor management

Page 186



e Architectural, interior design, healthcare planning, M&E, structural design
fees

e BREEAM Consultant fees
e Business case author fees
e Project management fees
e Cost management fees

e CDM Co-ordinator fees

e Survey fees

e Internalfees

6.5 Project Delivery Programme Milestones
Figure 50 summarises the key milestones for the successful planning and delivery for the Wirral URC
project. This shows a potential operational date subject to funding of August 2026.

Figure 50 - Summary Key Milestones

Programme Stage Completion Date

SOC approval (internal) April 2023

OBC approval (external) December 2023
FBC approval (external) October 2024
Start on site January 2025
Construction completion January 2026
Operational date April 2026

6.6 Risk Management Strategy
Risk management for the project will enable the identification, assessment, and prioritisation of risks
followed by coordinated and economical application of resources to minimise, monitor, and control the
probability and/or impact of negative effects or to maximize the realization of opportunities. For risk
management to be effective risks need to be identified, assessed, and controlled and the process needs
to be visible, repeatable, and consistent. It is the role and responsibility of the project board to ensure
that risks and issues are highlighted and raised through to the project lead and Senior Responsible
Owner. The process for identifying and managing a risk or opportunity is illustrated at Figure 51.

Once the full project governance structure is implemented following identification of a clear funding
route, a project specific risk register will be developed and then managed by the project board.

Page 187



Figure 51- Risk Identification Process

¢ |dentify and list what could go wrong with the project
e |dentify and list what could go right with the project
¢ Consider events both internal and external that could impact the project

risks and opportunities

 Consult with the project group and service involved in the project/change to develop

e risk or opportunity®

cost, people, scope

¢ What is the probability of the opportunity occuring?

¢ What is the probability of the risk occuring both before and after mitigation is in
place?

* What is the agreed tolerance level for each risk, that should it occur is acceptable or
unacceptable for the project? E. j imeli i i igh ri

¢ What s your response to the risk or opportunity?
¢ What will you do to minimise the risk? Who will be responsible for the risk?

g. Project timelines slippage by 2 weeks is a high risk

* Will you reduce it to an acceptable level? Prevent it? Transfer it? Accept the risk and

proceed?
¢ |s there further action?

¢ Review your risks and opportunities
¢ Are there mitigations in place for managing the risk?
e What is the progress of the risk or opportunity?

* As risk management is a continuous process, risks and opportunities should be
monitored at regular intervals but also by exception when risks change

6.7 Benefits Realisation Planning
Benefits Planning

Benefits planning and realisation will be developed in accordance with NHSE requirements.

The Benefits Realisation Strategy will provide an evidence base to support the intended health, quality,

financial and other identified benefits, where that evidence exists, and to quantify the benefits,

wherever possible, to ensure that they can be measured and demonstrated over time. The Benefits

Realisation Plan (BRP) will include detailed benefits. The BRP will detail:

e Key deliverables required to secure the benefit
e Performance measure

e Baseline and Baseline date

e Target outcome

e Datasource

Page 188



e Officer responsible for ensuring benefits are realised
e Benefits measurement timescale

e Risks to benefit delivery

e Benefit dependency

The communication and use of this strategy will help ensure that there is a shared understanding across
the project team, workstreams and stakeholders of the process of benefits management and realisation
in relation to:

The approach to benefits planning, which includes how benefits are
identified, defined, measured, recorded and prioritised

e The functions, roles and responsibilities of those involved in benefits
planning and benefit realisation

e  When and how reviews and assessments concerned with measuring benefit
realisation will be carried out, and who is to be involved

e Measurement methods and steps that will be used to monitor and assess the
realisation of benefits

e The tool(s), system(s) and source(s) of information that may be used to
enable benefit measurement

e The use and definition of any benefits management terminology that is
specific to the Project.

The realisation of benefits will in most cases continue beyond project closure and into benefits
realisation. The management activities for outstanding/incomplete benefits will transfer from the PMO
to the Benefit Owner and be accountable to the Director or appropriate manager of the service area
where the benefit will be delivered.

The benefit owner will remain with the benefit and be responsible for the continual reporting of benefit
performance information for the purpose of monthly Business Plan Return reports and service area
quarterly planning and performance reviews.

A summary of the high level benefits that have currently be identified as a consequence of this
development project are set out in Figure 52, note these are the benefits which have been utilised
within the draft CIAM within the economic case, which can be found at Appendix B.

Page 189



06T abed

Figure 52 - Benefits Summary

Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

Ref. Benefit Name \ Benefit Description Calculation of benefit
L Reduction in ED attendances through delivery of the scheme and provision of alternative
NCRB Reductionin ED . . L .
pathway for people in mental health crisis. If they do attend the ED this will only be See draft CIAM for assumptions.
1 Attendances : . -
instances when they have an acute problem that needs medical attention.
- Reduction i ber of incident ted in the Trust’s incident di t . . -
NCRB Reductionin t:rol:Jc ;Oirr:nrz:g;l tehrrzumhu u(:nir?c:zzts);decamacif ar:j t:;:tcr;::t c:?cc;iiel:fssiftﬁtrenmost At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
2 incidents & . p . ghput, pacity P this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
appropriate setting.
Reduction in
incidents of L . . . . . . -
NCRB hysical Reduction in incidents; patient on patient, patient on staff, self-harm and patient At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
3 ol . behaviour, incidents of damage to property. this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
aggression and/or
harm
NCRB Improvement Improved Trust performance against the 4 Hour Quality Standard through management
4 against 4 hour of service users in the most appropriate setting. Reduced attendance at ED and therefore See draft CIAM for assumptions.
quality standard reduced wait times.
Reduced wait
NCRB ti fi | L e . .. .
.|mes or peop'e Reduction in overall wait time for those in MH crisis. See draft CIAM for assumptions.
5 in Mental Health
Crisis
Reduction in staff sickness due to reduced pressure on ED staff due to disruptive patients At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
NCRB Improved Staff . . N . . ) - . -
6 Wellbei presenting at the URC instead of ED. Reduction in sickness, absence, associated with the this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
elibeing environment and burnout.
NCRB Reduced Reduced agency/bank spend — directly employed NHS staff will be more interested in
7 agency/bank working in new builds because they will have a therapeutic environment designed to give See draft CIAM for assumptions.
spend the patients the best care
At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
NCRB | d Staff . . . . . . . o . .
3 RrEtper:t\;zn a Reduced costs associated with recruitment, and issues with retention this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
L . . At this stage, there is not h data to sufficiently calculat
NCRB Out of Area Reduction in out of area placements through collective use of resources, alternative . 153 age ereisno .enoug @ a. .0 sutniciently calcufate
N this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
9 Placements admissions pathways.
At thi here i h fficiently calcul
NCRB Delaysin transfer | Reduced service user Length of Stay through reduced delays in transfer of care by t.t 'S stage, thereis not_enoug data. t.o sufticiently calculate
. . ) . . this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.
10 of care managing patients in the most appropriate setting.




Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

Benefit Name

Benefit Description

Calculation of benefit

NCRB
11

Wider benefit
linked to the
other sites in the
model

Improved system performance in regard to management of mental health crisis with the
project acting as an enabler to the wider model of care and supporting the URCs across
the patch.

At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.

SB1

Reduced Time for
patient
attainment of
Improvement in
Quality Adjusted
Life Year

Increased speed of attainment of improved QALY scores through improved quality of
care, additional space for wider ranges of interventions and better flow through the
system.

At this stage, there is not enough data to sufficiently calculate
this benefit. However, this can be revisited at a later date.

T6T obed

Page -83-




Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

6.8 Stakeholder Engagement and Communications Strategy

A Stakeholder Engagement and Communications Strategy will be produced at the next stage of the
business planning process and prior to commencement of the OBC process. It will set out the
communication and engagement objectives and describes how the Trust will work together to
communicate and engage by identifying target audiences, key messages, and appropriate channels. It
will also describe the resources required to deliver the strategy and how the Trust will manage the
communications and engagement risks.

Communications and Engagement Objectives
It is anticipated the Trust’s communications and engagement objectives are:

e To provide a realistic timeline and reassurance of the Trust’s commitment to
this development.

e Toinform all Trust staff about key developments and benefits.

e To ensure that all stakeholders are appropriately and regularly involved,
engaged and informed about the work we are doing, the case for change and
the benefits that will be realised through the development of Wirral URC.
This will work on the principle of ‘no surprises’.

e To work with patient engagement team and Trust management to build
meaningful and two-way communication and engagement with service
users, carers to ensure that they have a genuine opportunity to influence the
planning, development, design, production and evaluation of services.

e To ensure that equality, diversity, and inclusion is considered and promoted
in all communications and engagement activities.

e To ensure that the public, particularly residents and communities, are
informed and engaged about the development and have opportunities to
provide feedback.

Stakeholder mapping will allow the Trust to determine the appropriate messages, timing, channels and
resources to communicate and engage with each audience, broadly segmented as shown at Figure 53.

Page 192



Figure 53 - Stakeholder Influence Mapping

N
Involve Partner
M —

=

~

Power

Interest

e Partner — high power, interested: requires individually tailored
communications. It is important that their involvement is encouraged
throughout the programme as a good relationship with them is essential to
the successful recognition and positioning of the programme.

e Involve — high power, less interested: It will be beneficial to provide this
group with general information on a regular basis as it is possible that the
interest of stakeholders within the group could grow as the programme
progresses.

e Consult — low power, interested: whilst not considered high power, without
involvement from this group the successful delivery of the project is at risk.
It is therefore important that this group feel their opinions, concerns and
ideas are heard and understood.

o Inform —low power, less interested: Whilst not essential to the success of the
programme, this group will be extremely valuable in enabling access to a
wide range of further stakeholders. They should therefore be kept informed,
and use of existing mass communications channels is often the best method
to update this group on key developments.

6.9 Business Continuity Planning
The Trust recognises the need to adequately plan to ensure business continuity during the development
and delivery processes for the new facility. A business continuity plan will be developed during OBC and
FBC stages.

6.10 Post Completion Review / Project Evaluation Planning
The Trust is committed to the full evaluation of capital schemes and projects through a formal
evaluation methodology in line with the requirements of NHSE’s Post Project Evaluation (PPE) guidance.

The Programme Team intend to complete an NHSE-format PPE report c. 12 months of scheme
completion. The evaluation will also encompass the evaluation of the scheme whilst in construction.

Page 193



The objective is to prepare a report which assesses how well and effectively the scheme was managed
during the initial operation of the new facility.

In line with the guidance the programme will be evaluated against the investment objectives set out in
this SOC and the processes involved in the programme delivery. In summary:

e Lessons will be captured throughout a project lifecycle and published and
declared at project completion (to inform subsequent projects on a rolling
basis);

e Formal evaluation of alignment with business case and user expectations will
be completed within twelve months of project completion;

e Anannual declaration of cumulative activity and evaluations will be declared
to the Programme Board; and

e A final consolidated PPE will be produced and published at Programme
Closure.

The aim of the PPE is to:

e Improve the design, organisation, implementation, and strategic
management of other projects.

e Ascertain whether the project has been running smoothly so that corrective
action can be taken if necessary.

e Promote organisational learning to improve current and future performance.
e Avoid repeating costly mistakes.

e Improve decision-making and resource allocation (e.g., by adopting more
effective project management arrangements).

e Improve accountability by demonstrating to internal and external parties
that resources have been used efficiently and effectively.

e Demonstrate acceptable outcomes and/or management action, thus making
it easier to obtain extra resources to develop healthcare services.

In addition, a Post Completion Report will be completed, using NHSE format, within 6 months of
practical completion of the new facility. The process will be over seen by the Project Management
Team.

The lessons learnt will be of benefit to:

e The Trust — in using this knowledge for future projects including capital
schemes.

e Other key local stakeholders — to inform their approaches to future major
projects.

Page 194



6.11 Chapter Appendices

Appendix -
Number Appendix Title
A CIAM

Page 195



7.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Conclusion

This Business Case document provides a case for investment in the development of a Wirral Urgent
Response Centre. The SOC demonstrates:

e The strategic need for change in line with national, local and organisational
drivers;

e The proposed delivery model and scope of the project;

e The preferred direction of travel to develop a URC on the Arrowe Park
Hospital site;

e The capital consequences of the options set in the context that engagement
with the ICB and NHSE will be required to consider funding routes; and

e Detailed plans for the governance and management of the implementation
of the project in order to update the SOC and progress to the next stages
business planning process.

7.2 Recommendations

The Strategic Outline Business Case is being presented to the Board in April 2023 with a request to:

e APPROVE the strategic fit within the context of CWP;
e APPROVE the identification of the preferred way forward;

e APPROVE engagement with the ICB and NHSE to consider potential funding
routes;

e APPROVE engagement with WUTH to progress the commercial case;
e APPROVE the governance as noted in the management case and

e APPROVE undertaking further work to this Strategic Outline Business Case
once a funding stream has been identified and subsequent progression to
development of the Outline Business Case.

Page 196



8.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Acronym Full Title

BAU Business as usual

BCR Benefit Cost Ratio

BRP Benefits Realisation Plan

BSMHFT Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust
CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service
CCG Clinical Commissioning Group

CIAM Comprehensive Investment Appraisal Model
cQc Care Quality Commission

CRB Cash Releasing Benefit

CSF Critical Success Factor

cwpP Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
DHSC Department of Health and Social Care

DQIfH2 Design Quality Indicator for Health 2

EIA Equality Impact Assessment

FBC Full Business Case

FM Facilities Management

FT Foundation Trust

FY Financial Year

HBN Health Building Notes

HTM Health Technical Memorandum

HWB Health and Wellbeing Board

ICS Integrated Care System

LOS Length of Stay

LTP Long Term Plan

MMC Modern Methods of Construction

NCRB Non Cash Releasing Benefit

NHS National Health Service

NHSE National Health Service England

NPV Net Present Value

NzC Net Zero Carbon

OBC Outline Business Case

ONS Office for National Statistics

PD Programme Director

PMO Programme Management Office

PPE Post Project Evaluation

QlpPpP Quality, innovation, productivity and prevention
SOC Strategic Outline Case

SRO Senior Responsible Owner

SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats

Page 197



Wirral Urgent Response Centre:

Acronym Full Title

URC Urgent Response Centre
VFM Value for Money
WUTH Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Page 198

Page -90-



LN
<
|
o
L
d
Qs
A
Q%
<
— L
-
-
WA
L
I




00¢ abed

The Purpose of the Strategic Case WIRRAL

HEALTH AND CARE PLAN

The purpose of the Strategic Case is to:

 Make the case for change

« Demonstrate how it provides strategic fit with key drivers for the sponsoring
organisations and partners.

To do this we need to demonstrate a clear understanding of:

* The rationale, drivers and objectives

« Existing arrangements — The current situation

« Business Needs — The opportunities and problems associated with the current situation
» Potential Benefits, Risks, Constraints and Dependencies

The aim is to explain how further intervention and spend on key “inputs” will deliver “outputs”
that improve the organisation's capability to deliver better outcomes and benefits to
stakeholders and the population of Wirral, while recognising the associated risks



TOg abed

Current Situation and Context WIRRAL

HEALTH AND CARE PLAN

Across Cheshire and Wirral there are multiple providers, multiple teams and multiple process for the
provision of urgent care in mental health, increasing the risk of fragmented care pathways, limited
system oversight and poorer experience of services for both those that access care and those that
provide care and support.

The current service issues include:

Poor experience in some Emergency Departments

Quality of environments varied, some not fit for purpose

Increasing demand within acute care

Service users do not think of “NHS 111 First” pathways for mental health

Unwarranted variation in acute care pathway

Multiple hand offs and transitions across the pathway of care

Physical health and mental health not integrated within urgent

care pathway

Multiple assessment from multiple providers

No health-based place of safety outside of WUTH Emergency Department (section 136)



20z abed

Strategic Context WIRRAL

National and Regional v s
Drivers = Jrrr- B

« The NHS Long Term Plan sets
an ambition of transforming

. . Clinical Advisor N
urgent care and delivering more HEALTH CARe P oo _rr ””‘““'Yg
. '] i | LLIED HEALTH I L [
ComprehenSIVe CrisIS pathways Prrzr?:h?hh:jrl:ﬁ” GENERAL PRACTITIONER PHARMACIST

in every area that are able to

meet the continuum of needs l

MENTAL
HEALTH

and preferences for accessing ] THE CLINICAL ASSESSMENT SERVICE L5 s Whe
crisis care, | TEAM
_ " COMMUNUTY PSYCHIATRIC NURSE D CLINICIANS \
¢ The purpose Of CrISIS a.nd e DIPAMM[NTS PAEDIATRIC NURSE PALLIATIVE CARE \t..:it'\l.f e UUIJUF COMMUNITY
Urgent Care Transformation SPECIALIST SUB-GROUPS | ) [vous 2N | | Pranacst e
is to support multidisciplinary oATHOLOGY SpeCLsy ENALSPECIALST e £
CANCER SPECIALIST PRACTICE T e]

working and enable a more
effective response to patients.
The aim is to ensure that
patients get the right care, in the OIRECT
right place, whenever it is e e

needed. ﬁ

PSYCHIATRIC SPECIALIST
TRANSPLANT SPECIALIST

VIDEO
) | consuLTamon


https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/&c=E,1,TBZr_D8a3zrP0VSB-uF3VeoQIs8O1hpQIGwPKoL6NC2oe8hrFgSyGhttMfyoKpQAz1HTX7UsIzYCeW7QMIsKcXsCUaiLOZ9JUcFtx-XSSER8ifve&typo=1

€0¢ abed

Strategic Context and Vision

Crisis and Urgent Care Transformation WIRRAL
Programme Objectives

To provide an open, accessible mental health crisis line for people in self
defined crisis. Demonstrating the Crisis Lines achievements, targets, demand,
accessibility and outcomes from contacts and calls etc.

To develop and implement Assessment Suites in each locality and demonstrate
the impacts on contacts, ED and diversion (We are now going to explore the
provision of 136).

Demonstrate improved patient experience, including reduction in waiting times,
alternatives to section 136 and access to alternative support within the
community. Demonstrate a seamless all age approach for patients in self
defined crisis.

Transform the response culture; reduce silos through an inclusive approach to
engagement by developing the Trust wide First Response Service (FRS).

Integrated Urgent Care Centres



Strategic Context and Vision WIRRAL
Cheshire and Mersey Model of Care

CurrentState  Preferred State @ @ ¢ @ @ $ @
(- Y

Crisis -

Resolution Urgent Response

9-? HIT Service —> 3" Sector
t.% ' Made up of reps from Primary
NG each bubble on the left, ” Care
g Duty AMHPs ARE including physical health,
only “ﬂ;fa,m Liaison Psych a bed co-ordinator, a
police officer and a Crisis Cafes
 Criminal | paramedic
Justice
) Rl Connectors

EDT !
Qut of hours

Inpatient
Acute
Care



G0z abed

Urgent Response Centre Key Principles WIRRAL

The focus of the URC will be around collaborative working allowing services to work from the buildinHeALTH AND cARE PLAN
local community. Most assessments will take place in the community with the minority attending the URC

Service User Cohort

) ) Services/Teams operating from the URC
e Full age services - Children to older adults

e Learning Disability Team — Visit (hot desk)
e Adult MH Team — Base

e Individuals with learning disabilities and autism

e Individuals who require an A&E attendance will be directed via
the crisis line to A&E and the URC will aid with people who don’t e Ambulance Service — Visit (Hot desk)

require that level of support. e Police — Use as a base (Dedicated desks)

Design Principles e LA emergency Duty Team - Use as a base

e Provision of a safe, therapeutic, and secure environment for (Dedicated desks)
service users and staff. e Children and Young People — Base
e Ensure the space makes the services user feel at ease and not e Neighborhood Teams - Visit (Hot desk)

restricted, to get the most productive outcome.
e Home Treatment Team — Base

e Ensure the build is designed to promote recovery. Liai Psvchiat B
. iaison Psychiatry — Base

e Develop an environment that is not clinical in nature and different

to a traditional health build. e Crisis Line — The base remains at Chester

e Ensure the design is autism and dementia friendly.

e Section 136 provision on site



90¢ abed

Urgent Response Centre Design Vision WIRRAL

What are the key facility themes?

» Separate entrances — CAMHS/ Adults/ S136, Police & NWAS/ Staff &
Visitor

Staff &
Visitor

+ Separate wait areas for both adults and children and young

* Reception - centrally located but with visual separation between the two
separate waiting zones, whilst allowing staff to operate across both
reception points for flexibility and staff safety.

* Consult/Assessment rooms - Adults

* Consult/Assessment rooms - CAMHS

Wait Area:

* Interview Room - confidential interviews, discussion and counselling Gk

Adults

* Physical health treatment room

» Section 136 suite with assessment room, quiet room / de-escalation
room and dedicated entrance

T ¥

Entrance Entrance

* Open plan office and desks for various teams

* Crisis line command Centre



10z abed

Recommendations WIRRAL

HEALTH AND CARE PLAN

The Strategic Outline Business Case is being presented to WPBPB with a request to:

. APPROVE the strategic fit within the context of CWP;
. APPROVE the identification of the preferred way forward;

. APPROVE engagement with the ICB and NHSE to consider potential
funding routes;

. APPROVE engagement with WUTH to progress the commercial case;
. APPROVE the governance as noted in the management case and

. APPROVE undertaking further work to this Strategic Outline Business
Case once a funding stream has been identified and subsequent
progression to development of the Outline Business Case.



80¢ abed

Next Steps and Discussion WIRRAL

HEALTH AND CARE PLAN

* Support for the development of a Mental Health Urgent Response
Centre co-located on Arrow Park site?

* Agree the recommendations?

e Access to capital — indicative costs circa £12m (new build)

* Influence at Cheshire and Mersey through to National forums?
* Link to Right Care Right Person

Questions?



Agenda Iltem 13
NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
THURSDAY, 19" OCTOBER 2023

REPORT TITLE: FINANCE, INVESTMENT & RESOURCE GROUP
HIGHLIGHT REPORT

REPORT OF: ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (WIRRAL
PLACE), NHS CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE

REPORT SUMMARY

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is working with each of the nine places in the Cheshire and
Merseyside Integrated Care System (ICS) to establish robust governance and assurance
mechanisms through strong partnership arrangements. The Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board (WPBPB) is the forum where NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will conduct
business pertaining to the Borough transparently in the public domain and in collaboration
with system partners. These arrangements will also support further delegation of decision
making and resources to each Borough.

The WPBPB is supported by four key governance and assurance groups. This paper
presents the key issues from the Finance, Investment and Resource Group.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.
RECOMMENDATION/S

The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is recommended to note the content of the
report from the Finance, Investment and Resources Group.

Page 209



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The Finance, Investment and Resource Group has been established to develop and
review financial reporting across Wirral Place to ensure that there is a focus upon
deploying our resources wisely so that they contribute effectively to the health and
wellbeing of our population.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered as it has been agreed that this group is required
as part of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s governance and assurance
arrangements in Wirral.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Since the last report to the Place Based Partnership Board the Finance, Investment
and Resource Group has met twice, meeting on 26" July and 27™ September.

The meeting held in July received covered the following issues:

An update on the financial performance of the Pooled Fund at Month 3, noting that
the Better Care Fund element remained in line with plan and that other pressures
were emerging in relation to all age continuing care and prescribing budgets.

The financial framework supporting the 23/24 Wirral Investment Plan was discussed
and agreed. This followed on from the conclusion of the prioritisation workshops
across the borough and partners confirmed agreement for the plan.

The Wirral Place financial recovery plan was discussed noting that the ICB had
asked for submission of a plan before the end of September.

The Wirral system financial position covering NHS partners was reported for Q1
noting that the system had a year-to-date planned deficit of £10.3m compared to an
actual deficit of £16.1m, an adverse variance of £5.8m. The forecast out-turn position
remains in line with the planned deficit of £25.6m although all partners
acknowledged significant risks to the delivery of this position. The system savings /
cost improvement plan reported that £8m had been delivered in Q1 compared to a
plan of £9m, an adverse variance of £1m.

The meeting held in September covered the following issues (subject to agreement
of minutes of the meeting):

An update on the financial performance of the Pooled Fund at Month 5, noting that
the Better Care Fund element remained in line with plan and that other pressures
were emerging in relation to all age continuing care and prescribing budgets.

The Wirral system financial position covering all partners was reported for Month 5
(Local Authority report to Month 3) noting that the system had a year-to-date planned

Page 210



3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

deficit of £14.7m compared to an actual deficit of £23.0m, an adverse variance of
£8.3m. The forecast out-turn position remains in line with the planned deficit of
£25.6m although all partners acknowledged significant risks to the delivery of this
position. The system savings / cost improvement plan reported that £16.2m had
been delivered at Month 5 compared to a plan of £17.6m, an adverse variance of
£1.4m.

The workplan for Finance, Contracting and Commissioning group of the unscheduled
care board was discussed noting that the Finance and Investment Group will now
take over responsibility for the financial management of the Wirral Investment Plan
for the remainder of the financial year.

The Terms of Reference for the group were reviewed in line with planned date. The
inclusion of a primary medical services representative within the group was noted.

The group reviewed and updated its workplan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

Wirral Council are supporting the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board and, when
required, the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
will support the remaining governance and assurance infrastructure.

RELEVANT RISKS

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is reporting the financial position and managing the
associated risks through its Board Assurance Framework. This includes the risks
identified with the delivery of the financial plan.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Engagement with system partners has taken place in the development of the Terms
of Reference for the Finance, Investment and Resources Group. This is a group that
has been agreed as part of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s governance for Wirral.
The Finance, Investment and Resources Group has a membership that includes
Healthwatch Wirral and representation from the voluntary, community, faith, and
social enterprise (VCFSE) sector.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside have a legal requirement to make
sure their policies, and the way they carry out their work, do not discriminate against

Page 211



anyone. The business of these groups will be conducted with an awareness of the
general duty requirements and place equality considerations. No Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) is required for this report, although impact assessments will be
required for any service changes proposed through the Finance, Investment and
Resources Group.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are committed to carrying out
their work in an environmentally responsible manner, these principles will be
followed by the Finance, Investment and Resources Group.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration.
These partnerships are led by Wirral Council with external partners and
stakeholders, including residents. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will support the
Council in community wealth building by ensuring health and care organisations in
the borough have a focus on reducing health inequalities and contribute to the
development of a resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral. The Finance,
Investment Group will take account of this in their work.

REPORT AUTHOR: Martin McDowell
Associate Director of Finance, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
email martin.mcdowell@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

APPENDICES

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Papers brought to the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board meetings on 13™ October

2022, 8" December 2022 and 9" February 2023 provide background information on the
groups and how they align to the Board.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board 13™ October 2022
8" December 2022
9" February 2023
9" March 2023

Page 212


mailto:martin.mcdowell@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Agenda Iltem 14

NHS!

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
THURSDAY, 19" OCTOBER 2023

REPORT TITLE: PRIMARY CARE GROUP HIGHLIGHT REPORT
REPORT OF: PLACE DIRECTOR (WIRRAL), NHS CHESHIRE AND
MERSEYSIDE

REPORT SUMMARY

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is working with each of the nine places in the Cheshire and
Merseyside Integrated Care System (ICS) to establish robust governance and assurance
mechanisms through strong partnership arrangements. The Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board (WPBPB) is the forum where NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will conduct
business pertaining to the Borough transparently in the public domain and in collaboration
with system partners. These arrangements will also support further delegation of decision
making and resources to each Borough.

The WPBPB is supported by four key governance and assurance groups. This paper is a
highlight report from the Primary Care Group.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.
RECOMMENDATION/S

It is recommended that the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board notes the work of the
Primary Care Group and continues to receive updates as a standing agenda item.

Page 213



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

3.25

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The Primary Care Group has been established to oversee the exercise of NHS
Cheshire and Merseyside’s statutory powers in Wirral relating to the provision of GP
primary medical services under the NHS Act 2006, as amended by the Health and
Care Act 2022, and other primary care services as delegated in future. The Group
will report on these matters to the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board to support
the effective conduct of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s business in Wirral.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered as this group is required by NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside to support governance and assurance in Wirral on primary care matters.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Since the last report to the Place Based Partnership Board the Primary Care Group
has met on one occasion. This report covers the meeting held on 26™ September
2023 (no scheduled meeting in August 2023).

The meeting held on 26" September 2023 considered the following items of
business.

Risk Register: The Group reviewed the risk register that pertains to primary care
services in the borough and agreed to remove the risk associated with floating
accommodation for asylum seekers. It was also agreed to re-format the register to
align with the new Cheshire and Merseyside ICB risk register template.

Work Plan: The Group reviewed progress against the work plan for 2023/24.

Review of Terms of Reference: The Group received updated terms of reference to
account for changes in meetings frequency, quoracy accuracy and updated job titles
for members.

Medicines Management reporting: The Group considered an illustrative example
of the medicines management summary report which is part of the Medicines
Management Group agenda. It was agreed the level of detail is sufficient for Primary
Care Group to be informed on progress for medicines optimisation.

Primary Care Access Plans: The Group received an update on developing plans
prepared by the Primary Care Networks in response to the national Primary Care
Access Recovery Plan. There are five access improvement plans (one for each
PCN) with a focus on modernising general practice and improving patient
experience. Wirral is coming out as high overall on the baseline metrics, although
there are some individual practices within PCNs that some improvement is needed.
SBS advised there is lots of support and funding available to practices/PCNs. The
first update report is due in November 2023

Page 214



3.2.6

3.2.7

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

New guidance on NHS Talking Therapies: The Group received updated guidance
on joint working between NHS Talking Therapies (previously known as Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies) services and Community Mental Health
services.

Primary Care Finance: The Group received a report that detailed the month 5
position - there is an 177k overspend against a budget of £26. 635m. This is
predicted to be 651k by year end.

The Group were asked to note the 2023/24 budget changes presented and note that
the budget was set with standardised inflation rates, but actual inflation is higher.

Place Finance advised they are working with the ICB to bring this to the national
team’s attention.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

Wirral Council are supporting the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board and, when
required, the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
will support the remaining governance and assurance infrastructure.

RELEVANT RISKS

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is developing a risk management and assurance
framework, which will include place. The Primary Care Group has an existing Risk
Register which will contribute to a Place register.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Engagement with system partners has taken place in the development of the Terms
of Reference for the Primary Care Group. This is a governance group that is
required by NHS Cheshire and Merseyside for each place. The Primary Care Group
has a membership that includes Healthwatch Wirral and representation from the
voluntary, community, faith, and social enterprise (VCFSE) sector.

Page 215



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside have a legal requirement to make
sure their policies, and the way they carry out their work, do not discriminate against
anyone. The business of these groups will be conducted with an awareness of the
general duty requirements and place equality considerations. No Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) is required for this report, although impact assessments have
been received by the Primary Care Group in instances where they have been
required to decide on a specific issue.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are committed to carrying out
their work in an environmentally responsible manner, these principles will be
followed by the Primary Care Group.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration.
These partnerships are led by Wirral Council with external partners and
stakeholders, including residents. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will support the
Council in community wealth building by ensuring health and care organisations in
the borough have a focus on reducing health inequalities and contribute to the
development of a resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral. The Primary Care
Group will take account of this in their work.

REPORT AUTHOR: Simon Banks

Place Director (Wirral), NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
email: simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

APPENDICES

There are no appendices to this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Papers brought to the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board meetings on 13" October
2022, 8" December 2022 and 9" February 2023 provide background information on these
groups and how they align to the Board.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board 13™ October 2022

8" December 2022
9" February 2023
9™ March 2023
22" June 2023

Page 216



mailto:simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Agenda Iltem 15

» WIRRAL NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
Thursday, 19" OCTOBER 2023

REPORT TITLE: STRATEGY AND TRANSFORMATION GROUP
HIGHLIGHT REPORT

REPORT OF: PLACE DIRECTOR (WIRRAL), NHS CHESHIRE AND
MERSEYSIDE

REPORT SUMMARY

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is working with each of the nine Places in the Cheshire and
Merseyside Integrated Care System (ICS) to establish robust governance and assurance
mechanisms through strong partnership arrangements. The Wirral Place Based
Partnership Board (WPBPB) is the forum where NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will conduct
business pertaining to the Borough transparently in the public domain and in collaboration
with system partners. These arrangements will also support further delegation of decision
making and resources to each Borough.

This paper is a highlight report from the Strategy and Transformation Group.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATION/S

It is recommended that the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board notes the work of the

Strategy and Transformation Group and continues to receive updates as a standing agenda
item.

Page 217



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.3.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The Strategy and Transformation Group has been established to develop and review
Wirral place strategic and operational plans to deliver national, Cheshire and
Merseyside and local priorities. The Group will ensure that these plans secure
continuous improvement, with a focus on health inequalities, and are delivered within
financial allocations. The Group will receive assurance on the delivery of strategic
and operational plans and associated work programmes.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered as it has been agreed that this group is required
as part of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s governance and assurance
arrangements in Wirral.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

This report covers the meeting of the Strategy and Transformation Group (STG) held
on 21% September 2023. The meeting was chaired by the Chief Strategy Officer,
Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (WUTH) in the absence
of the Place Director. The meeting considered the following items of business.

Wirral Health and Care Plan: The Group received an update on the reporting
arrangements to oversee the delivery programmes agreed in the Wirral Health and
Care Plan. The Wirral Improvement Team have developed a common approach to
programme reporting using the SmartSheets tool. The Group agreed the monitoring
and control strategy to support programme delivery.

Programme Reporting: The STG has agreed to receive delivery updates from the
delivery programmes agreed in the Wirral Health and Care Plan. A reporting cycle
has been agreed with the Senior Responsible Officer for each programme. The
reports considered at the meeting on 21°%' September 2023 addressed the
implementation of three Cheshire and Merseyside “at scale” programmes in Wirral -
Cancer, Diagnostics and Elective Care.

Cancer services are still recovering from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
WUTH is performing well against the performance benchmarks for cancer services.
As Table One shows, the faster diagnosis standard (national operational standard
75%) is being delivered ahead of this being a mandated target from April 2024. The
31 day first definitive treatment position is better than the Cheshire and Merseyside
position and is nearing the national operational standard of 96%. The 62 day
performance position remains a key area of focus with longer waiting times in
urology and colorectal services due to an increase in referrals of around 50%. The
prehabilitation programme is working well, supporting people before treatment.
WUTH has also scored highly in the national cancer patient experience survey and is
placed second in the region.

Page 218



3.3.2

3.3.3

3.4

Operational Standard Cheshire and Wirral University
Merseyside Teaching Hospital NHS

Foundation Trust

28 day diagnosis/ruling out 67% 76.4%

of cancer (75%)

62 day first definitive 65.3% 73.1%

treatment (85%)

31 day first definitive 93.9% 95.6%

treatment (96%)

Table One: Cancer Operational Standards — 12 months rolling July 2022-June 2023

WUTH is the top performing acute trust in Cheshire and Merseyside for diagnostic
services. The Trust is providing support to other acute trusts in Cheshire and
Merseyside in areas such as endoscopy and sleep studies. The Trust is also
providing a Community Diagnostic Centre (CDC), this service is expanding from April
2024. The national operational standard for diagnostics is that 90% of patients will
be seen in 6 weeks by March 2024, WUTH are already meeting this target.

The Trust is also performing well in terms of elective care recovery. There are no
patients waiting over 104 weeks and the Trust is on track to achieve zero 65 week
breaches by the end of March 2024. Continuing Industrial Action is putting the
elective recovery plan at significant risk. Performance against 52 weeks remains a
challenge, particularly non admitted target of zero by the end of March 2024.
Outpatient waiting times remain a challenge in Gastroenterology, Dermatology, Foot
and Ankle and Pain with recovery plans in place across these areas. Operative
waiting times in Colorectal and Gynaecology are below where expected and both
services have recovery plans in place.

Intermediate Care Beds Review: In June 2021, NHS Wirral Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) agreed to commission a new Discharge to Assess
(D2A) bed-based model for “people who are clinically optimised and do not require
an acute bed but may still require care services provided with short term, funded
support”. The main component of this model was to consolidate existing
intermediate care beds provided across five existing sites into three wards
comprising of 71 beds at the Clatterbridge Hospital site. These are referred to as the
“CICC beds”.

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside and Wirral Council are undertaking a review of the
existing service provision, delivery of expected outcomes and return on investment.
The review is taking place alongside a longer-term place-based capacity and
demand modelling exercise to inform future commitments to intermediate care
provision in Wirral. The procurement of future requirements and contract award to a
preferred provider will follow the outcomes of the second phase of the review.

The Group received an update on the progress being made in this review. The

review is expected to conclude in December 2023 to inform decision making in early
2024.

Page 219




4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

Wirral Council are supporting the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board and, when
required, the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
will support the remaining governance and assurance infrastructure.

RELEVANT RISKS

NHS Cheshire and Merseyside is developing a risk management and assurance
framework, which will be applied to the organisation’s business in each Place. This
will be considered by the Place Based Partnership Board in October 2023.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Engagement with system partners has taken place in the development of the Terms
of Reference for the Strategy and Transformation Group. This is a group that has
been agreed as part of NHS Cheshire and Merseyside’s governance for Wirral. The
Strategy and Transformation Group has a membership that includes Healthwatch
Wirral and representation from the voluntary, community, faith, and social enterprise
(VCFSE) sector.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside have a legal requirement to make
sure their policies, and the way they carry out their work, do not discriminate against
anyone. The business of these groups will be conducted with an awareness of the
general duty requirements and place equality considerations. No Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) is required for this report, although impact assessments will be
required for any service changes proposed through the Strategy and Transformation
Group.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside are committed to carrying out
their work in an environmentally responsible manner, these principles will be
followed by the Strategy and Transformation Group.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

Community Wealth Building in Wirral focusses on partnerships and collaboration.
These partnerships are led by Wirral Council with external partners and
stakeholders, including residents. NHS Cheshire and Merseyside will support the
Council in community wealth building by ensuring health and care organisations in

Page 220



the borough have a focus on reducing health inequalities and contribute to the
development of a resilient and inclusive economy for Wirral. The Strategy and
Transformation Group will take account of this in their work.

REPORT AUTHOR: Simon Banks
Place Director (Wirral), NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
email: simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

APPENDICES

There are no appendices to this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Papers brought to the Wirral Place Based Partnershiﬁ Board meetings on 13" October

2022, 8" December 2022, 9™ February 2023 and 27™ July 2023 provide background
information on these groups and how they align to the Board.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Wirral Place Based Partnership Board 13™ October 2022
8" December 2022
9" February 2023

9" March 2023

22" June 2023

27" July 2023

28" September 2023

Page 221


mailto:simon.banks@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 16
NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
Thursday, 19 October 2023

REPORT TITLE: WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP WORK
PROGRAMME
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT SUMMARY

The report details the annual work programme of items for consideration by the Wirral
Place Based Partnership Board. The Board is comprised of members from multiple
organisations and the report enables all partners to contribute items for consideration at
future meetings.

RECOMMENDATION/S
The Wirral Place Based Partnership Board is recommended to note and comment on the

proposed Wirral Place Based Partnership Board work programme for the remainder of the
2023/24 municipal year.

Page 223



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Wirral Place Based Partnership Board have the
opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

A number of workplan formats were explored with the current framework open to
amendment to match the requirements of the Committee.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners.
The programme will be informed by the Wirral Plan 2021-2026 as well as the
priorities of partner organisations.

Once elected, the Chair of the Board will work with the Place Director and other
members of the Board to set the agenda for the remainder of the 2023-24 Municipal
Year.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no
direct financial implications arising. However, there may be financial implications
arising as a result of work programme items.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

There are no direct implications to Staffing, ICT or Assets.

RELEVANT RISKS

The Committee’s ability to undertake its responsibility to provide strategic direction to
the operation of the Council, make decisions on policies, co-ordinate spend, and
maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and
budgets may be compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and
regularly review its work across the municipal year.

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

Not applicable.

Page 224



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality
implications.

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and
climate implications.

COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct community wealth
implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Jones

Principal Democratic Services Officer
telephone: 0151 691 8363
email: michaeljonesl@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Wirral Place Based Partnership Board Work Programme

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Wirral Council Constitution
Health and Care Act 2022

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 225




This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

WIRRAL PLACE BASED PARTNERSHIP BOARD
WORK PROGRAMME 2023/2024

Suggested Agenda November 2023

Performance Report

ltem Purpose Lead Officer
Dentistry Discussion and Decision Tom Knight
Place Quality and Oversight and Assurance Lorna Quigley

Place Finance Report
incorporating Pooled Fund
Update

Oversight and Assurance

Martin McDowell

Place Delivery Assurance
Framework

Oversight and Assurance

Simon Banks

Wirral Health and Care
Plan Dashboard

Oversight and Assurance

Julian Eyre

Unscheduled Care
Programme Delivery

Oversight and Assurance

Janelle Holmes

Estates and Sustainability
Programme Delivery

Oversight and Assurance

Paul Mason

Transformation Group

Finance and Investment Information Martin McDowell
Group

Primary Care Group Information lain Stewart
Quiality and Performance Information Lorna Quigley
Group

Strategy and Information Simon Banks

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS — WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED

Item Purpose Approximate Lead Officer
Timescale

Neighbourhood Information December Nesta Hawker

programme

Intermediate Care Discussion and December Lorna Quigley

Beds Review Decision (JSCB)

Medium Term Oversight and December Graham Hodkinson

Page 227




Item

Purpose

Approximate
Timescale

Lead Officer

System Capacity
Plan

Assurance

STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS

Item Purpose Reporting Lead Officer
Frequency

Place Quality and Oversight and Each scheduled Lorna Quigley

Performance Report | Assurance meeting

Place Finance Report | Oversight and Each scheduled Martin McDowell

incorporating Pooled | Assurance meeting

Fund Update

Place Delivery Oversight and Quarterly from Simon Banks

Assurance Assurance December 2023

Framework

Wirral Health and Oversight and Each scheduled Julian Eyre

Care Plan Dashboard | Assurance meeting

Unscheduled Care Oversight and Each scheduled Janelle Holmes

Programme Delivery | Assurance meeting

Estates and Oversight and Quarterly Paul Mason

Sustainability Assurance

Programme Delivery

Workforce Oversight and Quarterly from Deborah Smith

Programme Delivery | Assurance February 2024

Finance and Information Each scheduled Martin McDowell

Investment Group meeting

Primary Care Group | Information Each scheduled lain Stewart
meeting

Quality and Information Each scheduled Lorna Quigley

Performance Group meeting

Strategy and Information Each scheduled Simon Banks

Transformation meeting

Group

Page 228




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Place Quality and Performance Report including C-Difficile
	7 Place Finance Report incorporating Pooled Fund Update
	8 Developing a Risk Management Framework for Wirral Place Partnership Arrangements
	9 Wirral Health and Care Plan Dashboard
	Appendix 1 Wirral Health and Care Plan Dashboard

	10 Unscheduled Care Programme Delivery
	Appendix 1 – Unscheduled care programme highlight report 26.09.23
	Appendix 2 – Cheshire and Merseyside long length of stay report

	11 Primary Care Networks
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9

	12 Mental Health Urgent Response Centre
	Appendix 1 - Strategic Outline Case
	Appendix 2 - Slides
	Wirral Urgent Response Centre �Strategic Outline Case
	The Purpose of the Strategic Case
	Current Situation and Context 
	Strategic Context �National and Regional Drivers
	Strategic Context and Vision�Crisis and Urgent Care Transformation Programme Objectives 
	Strategic Context and Vision�Cheshire and Mersey  Model of Care 
	Urgent Response Centre Key Principles�The focus of the URC will be around collaborative working allowing services to work from the building into the local community. Most assessments will take place in the community with the minority attending the URC�
	Urgent Response Centre Design Vision 
	Recommendations
	Next Steps and Discussion


	13 Finance and Investment Group
	14 Primary Care Group
	15 Strategy and Transformation Group
	16 Wirral Place Based Partnership Work Programme
	Draft Work Programme Nov WPBPB V1


